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for the year ended January 31, 2002 and Form 10-Q for the period ended October 31, 2002 .
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Also Admitted in New York Telephone : (770) 232-9200
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Number of shares of Commas Stock outstandingon April 30, 2002: 12,636,949 .

Documents Incorporated By Reference:
None
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EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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Securities registered pursuant to- Section 12 (9) of the Act:
Common Stock, $.05 par value pershare .

brdtate by cheekmarkwhether Covlata ConunaIdaCana, he..('Cmlstaf or the $ampanyll) has flied all reports
required to be filled by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Seaside, Exchange Act of 1834 during the ping 12 mandw
(or for such shorter period that Covista was required to Me such reports), and (2) has been sublect to much filling .
requirements for the paid90 days , .

lndkmte by chedr mark B fdcsure of dellrrquent More pursuant to Itam 405 of Regulation S"K to not. contained
hamkr, andwM riot be contaifed, to the best ofCompany's knawladge, 9i daWlve proxy or Itdomuafloe statements
Incorporated by reference In Part 111 of ids Foes tt}K arflay amendmentto tibia Form 10-K , .

Aw%ste me" value (based upon a"$429 daft pricey of to vc&sg slocit.hot by acnaflmWtea of Covffa as of
April90, 20Q2: s1e,960,s11
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Potential IMyseiOFe andother readers are urged to conatder rises factorsm evahradng the farward4ooldn9 statemente and are cautioned notmPlace undue nrfience on such forurarddcoWng ammmenm. The torHrarrFiooWng

	

tricf,~d herein are only .made as of the date of this Report and Covbte undermkee ro abilgation t Puhildy update such forward-locking
dmtrtertti to retle< tsubsequentevents cc circumstances.
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Business

	

.

Osnerrd .:

	

. . .
Cavtsta'was incorporated to 1968 an Faradytm Electronics Corp . In November 1991, Covista changed 8sname from Faradyne Electronics Corp . to Total-Tel USA Communfoadorse, Inc. In September, 2000, Covistaadopted Its present name, Covista Commanlceticrm, l

	

.

Covlata is along distance telaeommunlcalloM Internet anddata services provider. Coviem operates two
distinct business segments: retail and wholesale. The retail segment provides long distance, data and kdematservices to small and medium sited businesses, pfmdpany 6n the Northeast region of the United States. The
wholesale segment sells long distance telecommunication services to other canters for resale. Covista utilizes its
own switching equipment and leased fiber optic transmission cable. Covl3W3 Products and services Include abroad range of voice, data and Internet solutions, including long distance and tolHres services . calling cards, data;'
Internet access, virtual private network, directoryassistance and teleconferencing services. The wholesale division
ptovidea' domestlo and international termination services to carriers worldwide at competitive .rams. Costa.
qurrentty owns and operates three switches, one In New York City , one In Newark, New Jersey, and one In
Philadelphia Pennsylvania and announced plane to expand to additional switch sites In Minneapols, Dallas and
Chattpnooga In July 2001, Coviste announced that It had acquired long-term access to nationwide network
fadilties compdaing 2,822,400,000 channel miles of telecommunications capacity measured by length of voice.
Wade circuim In addition, Coviara currently offers Internet services using two routers-that It owns and operates
located In New York City and Northern New Jersey. Covista processes approximately 86 percent of all its call
volume through as own fadtiuea. Covtata also operates a network operations center in Northern New Jersey to
monitor and controt 8s New Jersey network and to coordinate its various services . In October, 2001; Covista
announced the opening of a new call center facility In Chattanooga, Tennessee, and that it t planning to relocate
its corporate headquarters to Chattanooga from Me Fails, NewJersey. Covista previously was known as Total-
Tel USACommunications, Inc.

.

	

' In the retail market, Covista has segmented potential customers and tailored its service offerings, safes,
marketing approach and network developmentt provide service in a cost-effective manner. Covgm begevea-lm
customer aenlos to be one of Its princpal compeddve advantages Covista applies adedkrsted teem approach to
sogdtlng and servicing its clients, with substantial Invoivemerd of sales, aastemeiservice end technical personnel
In all aspects of customer roletlonp. Covista Intends t continue to fcdis Its efforts on ama0 is mecum-dzed
businesses with.seles of $1 million to $60 million and monthly comniurdcetloro-bills that 'range from $600 to
$30,000. Covista'a locus an customer servlae has also enabled it to attract larger customers. During the fourth

' quarter 2002, Covista continued expanding services Into the residential retail market with anow. product offering.

For Fiscal 2002, Covsta had gross revenues of approxbnaW $96 minion, derived approxmatelyy W6
from wholessm and 5096 from retail services. ForF*W 2001 .Covkrta'a gross revenues were approximately $134
millon. Covism's hstall sales activities have been concentratedin Northern NewJersey and NewYork City. where,
Covista believes, approodmateiy hall of all United States multinafnai corporations have headquarters. Based on
Industry sources, this area is believed to represent 4096 of the total United States tefeconarnmkcaftna market. For
the nearform, at least, Coviste intends loo' continue Its effort on further penetrating commercial users of ft servIbes
In the Northeast, from theWashington . D.C . market through Boston, Massachusetts, -and to augment theaervIces
offered to ft customers.

	

.

Caviar's principal executive offices era located at 4803 Wghway 68 North, Chattanooga, TN, 37418, and
. Its telephone numberm (423) 848-9700.



History and

	

s Development
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. .

Prior to 1984, AT&T dominated both the local exchange end long dlafance madeatpleuse by owning the .
. operating ent9lea that provided both local exdiartge and long distance services to moat of the United, StatesPOPUISdon. Although long distance compeMn began to emerge In the late 19711% the critical event triggering the 'growth of long d

	

competition was the breakup of AT&T and the separation of its local and long distancebusinesses as mandated by the Modified F1nal Judgment (the 'MF.n relating to the breakup of AT&T. To fostercompetition In the long dtstertce market, the MFJ pmhibW.AT&Ts divested kcal exchange businessag, theRegional Ben operating Conpantes FR80Ca'), from soling ae single-eourca pnwfdera of telecommunicationsServices.

	

.

Although the MFJ established the preconditions for Competition m the market for long distance services in
1984, the tnarkst for local exchange services has, umn recently, vktuely been closed to competition and has
largely- been'dominated by regulated monopolies. Efforts to open . to local exchange madwt began In the late1980s an a-stale by-staoe b=ra.

The Telecommunhftans Act of 1988, (ltns '1996 AW), Is considered to be the most ccmprehetmive .' reform'of the-nafltan's telecommunications Iowa, affectthe development of competition forfocal telecommunications 'services . The 1996 Act provides for the removal of legal barriers to entry Into the local telecommunicalons
services matq the Interconnection of the Incrmtbent Local Exchange . Carrier (the ILEG') network with
compedhors' networks end the relaxadan of theregulaiton of certain telecommunications services provided by Local
Exchange Carriers (1ECal end others. Procedures and requirements were estebkhed to be followed by the .
RBOCs.indudtng the requirement that RBOCe offer fecal services for male as a precondfdon to their entering Shelong distance and telecommunications equipment manufacturing markets.

	

' ,

	

,

The continuing deregulation of the telecommunications industry and technological change has resulted In
an increasingly informadon-IntanaNe business environment Regulatory, technological, marketing end competitive
trends have substantially expanded Ccvlata's opporunifles in the converging voice and data communications
services markets. For example, technologkttd advances, Including rapid growth of the . lntemet, the Inxreesed use
of packet switching technology for voice communications, and the growth of muldmeda appitcaftM are expected
to result Insubstantial growth In the high-speed data services market

This new market opportunity should permit Competitive Local Exchange Carriers CCLECsj with operating
and marketing expertise to offer a tut range of telecommunications services, Including local and long distance
Calling, toll-iree calling, custom calling features, data aervkua, and Internet access and services.
Telecommunications companies with an established base of long distance customers may have an opportunity to
sell additional services to such ouarnem.

Covista has observed that RBOCs and the Tier I canters (carriers with annual revenuea in excess of $5
billion). primarily concentrate their sales and marketing efforts on residential and large business customers. Thus,
Ccvif believes there Is a significant market opportunity with reared to small and medbmo-ebted businesses to
which customer service maybe a signHIcantpart of their burying decision. Covista has also entered the residential
long distance business which CPvIst had notprevicusy concentrated Its marketing efforts.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEUV



A.Vi switches. Currently, Covlda .operates an advanced telecommumkadons network that Includes three. Metal awllches, located N NewYork City, Newark, New Jersey and PhIladelPhle; Pennaylv7ng. The Philadelphia_

	

switch was acquired-horn a merger with Capsule COmmunkatona (see Subsequent Events) . Covista has installedMotel DE( 600 switches In .Newsrk and-Philadeiphia and-a Megahub DEX800E switch In New York, which
t"provides "kfteio:hGnge switching capebdlties and Is cumently being used as CQVata's bnemdonai gateway

switching platform. Covista is Installing those Model DEX 600 switches, one in Minneapolis, one in Dallas and onein Chattanooga which are scheduled to be operational In FY 2003.

CUMM Network

Ccviata's strategy has been to develop a geographic concentration

	

g

	

rodudng Custard.,through the sale of telecommunications services In areas where a has installed

In July-2001, Covida announced that it had acquired long-term access to nationwide network faoditfes
comprising 2,822,400,000 channel miles of telecommunications capacity measured by length of voice-grade
circuits.

During Fiscal 2002, Covia billed, appnmdmately 1.08 boon minutes, with approximately 8596 of its
minutearavertts own switches. Covista be0evea that Increasing the. traffic carried on Its own network would improve
operating margin3.

	

.

lrnemadonaL Covsta is Interconnected with a .number of United States and foreign whoteasie
International carriers through its New York switch. The purpose of connecting to a variety of carriers Is to provide
state-cRthe "an, lowest-coat routing and network rellab0ity. These Interconnected International carriers are she a
source ofwholesale Intemetlonal-trafio and revenue.

Internet Currently, Covida owns and operates an IP (Internet Protocol) Network gist Includes two Cisco
7500 routers, located In -New York City. Covida also owns and operates an Ascend TNT remote access server
(RAS) located In New York . The RAS provides diakup Internet access services . Through associations with
providers . of wholesale Digital Subscriber Unea ('DSL'), Covista offers DSL Internet aervfce in the Philadelphia,
New York, New Jerseyand Connecdcut markets. Caviare also offers Internet services over dedicated DSO, DS1
and DS3 digital transmisslon .drailts.

	

'

MarFeatures. Covista is interconnected by SS7 out-of-band digital sIgnaling throughout its network.
The SS7 stgnallng system reduces connect rime delays, thereby efthandng overall network ettldendes.
Additionally, the SS7 technology is designed to permit the anticipated expanalon of Covista's Advanced Intelligent
Network CMNJ cspabUltles throughout its network Covlsta'a advanced switching platform would enable ti to p)
deploy features and functions qu6ddy throughout Its . entire netwooK N) expand switch capacity In .a cost-effective
manner, end (N) lower maintenance costs through reduced training end spare parts requirements.

Seaafty and Re6ab ft . Ccvida has a Network Operating Center (NOC) N Northam New Jersey, which
monitors and controls Covida's network and coordinates Ira various services from a central location. Increasing the .Security. re0abitity end efficiency ofCavls&s operations . Centralized electronic monitoring and control of Covisto's
network allows- Covista to avoid duplication of tuts fLrcdbri In each switch site. The NOC also-helps reduce
Covbta's per-c6domer monitoring and aratamer service ~cbsts. , In addition ; Covita's network employs an .
'authorized access" architecture. .,Unlike many. telecommunications companies, which allow universe! a9ces to
their netwod% Codda utdose an automatic number lderidficadon security aoeerwtg architecture Aft ensures
only the Automatic Number Identification (ANis) of time users who have subscribed to COVWs services and
have satisfied Covlata's credit and provisioning criteria have access to the network Caviare believes that this
architecture provides CaNsta the ability to better control bad debt and fraud: In a manner which Is Invisible and
nonimrualve to the customer. This architecture also allows Covistfl'to betteLmanage network capacity. as
Unauthorized and unplanned users cannot access the netatodc: Covida plans to relocate the NOC to the Corporate

' Headquarters In Chattanooga TN in Racal Year 2003.

Product and Service OffabW

PRINCIPM_ PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Covfata offers retail telecommunications Services prime* to small and medurtroized businesses and
residential long distance users. Covlsta's retail service offerings currently Include . long distance_ and tgd-te
services (both with and without an MN). multiple acceaa .optioris, calling card, data, Internet access, DSL, 4-mill,
facsimile_ dimctnrv assistance and teleconterendnc services . Covlda'a wholesale servtni* W-J.,rira rlnmrwcH& and



amen services '

.Covlda'a retell services Include the following:

f ' . Retell Semites, Ccvista provides telecommunications services to over 10,000 commercial aretcmenhprimarily small and medfunt-simd businesses located la the Northeastern region $the Untied Slates Coin ,
axourn

as

"s

ed
rvisaft

'or through

	

irtdepmtdent marketing reprsserttatives . Retail commercial ccmmuNcadom servicesapprotdmatelY 50% of Covkm's Racal 2t

	

revenues, andproduced revenues of appnoxhrtatety$47,423,

	

0 to F3sca12002 and $63,487.000 In F~CaI 2001 . Retail reven0es
M.

In haca12t702 due s cordbtueddownward pricing pressure

and

reductiorq Nvolume, whldh Covlata attributes m ever Increasing ccmpetlion within
the indwfry. In .additian, the attack on, the World Trade Cer_tter on September 11,2001 had a direct negativeimpact on the rstelt"aelea of Covlste due t damage to the

switch

located t New York CIF.

	

While CoNatabelieves Drat R may return to its previous whims levels: es the worldwide demand for oommuNkatlona serviceswill

	

min, e also belevea that the intense competition for those minutes from other telecarmasticatlono providers
will

ccrdinu to force 51own prices . Tttis wntInued downward effect on price may adverselyaffect operations,

"

	

Long Distankm Covista afters atub rage of switched and dedicated domestic and intonalona) long .
distance. services,, Including "1+' outbound smite In all 60 states along with global termination to over:200 counbfeb. Long distance services include krtra-U1TA (Local Access Terminafhtg Area), Inter-LATA,
and worldwide international services. Long distance feature$ Include both verffled and non-verified
accounting codes, station-to,statlan'calling. third-party calling. directory assistance and opemtotieaalated.calling.

"

	

Tolf-has Services: Ccvista offers a full range of switched and dedksted domestc tovm services.
Including tolHres origination In all 60 states, International tog-free origination from over 30 countries, and
tog-free directory assistance . AIN enhanced tog-free services Include the following features : Command
Routing, Dialed Number* Idenitficatlon Service Area CodwExchangs Routing, Real Time Automatic
Number Identification Delivery, Day-of-Year Routing, Day-of-Week Routing, Time-of-Day Routing.
Percentage Allocation Routing, PIN protected 800 services, Integrated voice response services and store
locator services.

Access Options: Covtsta often Its long distance and ta"ee customers multiple access options,
Including dedicated access at DSO; Dal, and DS3speed(s) and switched access .

Calling Card and Services: Covista often nationwide switched access, customized calling card
services. Customers have the option of calling cards, which are personalized, branded or generic.

Internal: Covista currently offers high-quality, dedicated OSL and dlai-up Internet access, e-mal, IP
addressing and Domain Name Services.

"

	

Data Services: Covlata offer advanced data tranamlsaton services, Including prIvate .gne and. Frame
Relay services., . Data services have multiple Acess options, Including dedicated access at 060, 081,

	

,'
and D3-speed(s) and switched access.

"

	

'Customer Mana7-4Onent Control Features: All of CcvWa customers have .tte option of custo nized
management reporting fegturse, including ltterstatefb'astate area code summaries, International
destination mahbr, daily usage summaries, state summaries, time of day summaries, duration dabibudon
mahbr, wception reporting of long duration cage, and Incomplets.'and blcdwd call reporting.

Wlmlessla Sendsea Covida offers the following wholesale services: domestic and Imernaflonsi temrktatlan. switch
pods, cotocation facilities and transport servicesto a broad spectrum of domestic and International carriers. Covida
offers International wholesale termination and transport services primarily to domestic and international
telecommurileaNbna tanters. Once Covista Interconnects with a carrier customer, the carrier tray utilize Covk ta on
an as-needed beds. depending upon the pricing offered *by Covlata and Is competitor ps'well as capacity.

	

.
Ccvleta has been tested and approved, its an authorhed carrier for, and Included In the routing tables of all of Its
long distance end irdemadonal canter customers. CcvW's wholesale resutla were severely affected by the
September 11 terrorist attack. The Company suffered the temporary toss of Act New Yak City switch, which is
alluded kt the Immeclate vicinity of the World Trade Center. As aresin, Covlata incurred a atnificartt reduction In
wholesale revenues. The Impact of the revenue IcM combined with additional empenses, was in e7COS8 of
approximately $6.000,000. Covista has sled an Inauance calm for losses and e.xpenses associated with the

.. ..events of September 11, and received an Initial $1,OOn,000 In the FY 200. Tho total claim and final settlement . . .

	

.
cannot be determined at this ilme. Wholesale revenues were apprmdmately $47,889,000 and$19,743,000 during
Fr"»at corn e».r nc»ar ~nm . fee»aNivaM Ann narcanfaae of total revenue. the Wholasain~n.m" are a~ael



. Telecommunications Services Market

Overview of the United Sues Market The United States market for telecommunications seiv(cas can .bedlMed Into four basic asmice sector; long distance, kxal e)Change, Internet access and IrdemallonaL

. Long Distaece Senokso. A. long detance'tdephone cell can be envisioned an consisting of three. segments. Starling with the originating customer, the cap bevels along a local exchange network to a long disten9canterrs-point('POPI. At the POP, the cap i combined with other cells and sent
'distance network to a POP on the long distance canters network near where the cap will terminate. The call isthen sent from this POP along a local network to the terminating customer. Long distance carriers provide only theconnection between the two local networks; and, unless the long distance' carrier Is a toed service provider, payaccess chargesm LECs tar orginating endterminating cape:

	

.

Local Exchange Services: 'A local=11 la one that does not require the services of a long distance cWer.In general, the local exchange carrier connects and-user customers within a locally denned area known
as a Local .Access and Transport Area of 9ATA' and also provides the local access (Ingress and egress) of moat longdistance tails.. .

lntemet .Servics. Internet services ere generallyy provided In at least two distinct segments. A localnetwork connection Is required from the Internet Service Provider (93P') cuatomerto the ISPa local faciDlem For

dedicated
IsMer

	

ntd; Intefor
-
comCall, Processingh

	

connections are typically ru~ched,
provided by LEC

	

g ('ICP"), or other providers, ehher as
Independent service providers or, In some cases, by a carrier that i both a Competitive Local Exchange Carrier
(CLEC ) and tan Internet Service Provider ( ISP).

	

For residential and small and medium-sized business users,
these connections are generally Public Switched Telephone Network ('PSTNj connections obtained on a dial-up
access basis as a local exchange telephone call. Once a local connection i made to the 1SPa local fecpmes,
Information can be transmitted and obtained over a packet-switched IP data network, which may consist of

	

'
segments provided by many Interconnected networks operated by a number of ISPe .

	

The collecdon of
Interconnected networks makes up the Internet. A key feature of Internet architecture and packet switching Is that
a single dedicated channel between communication points Is never established which distinguishes Internet-based
services from the PSTN.

International Service. A typical interational tong datence call originates on a total exchange network or
private Ire and is tarred to the International gateway switch of a king d carrier. The cap Is then transported
along a fiber optic cable or a satellite eonnedlon to an international gateway switch In Me termUmtfng country and
finally, to another local exchange network or private line where the call' Is terrninated. Generally, only a small
number of carriers are licensed by a foreign country for International long distance and, In many countries, only the
Postal Telephone & Telegraph administration (PTT') is licensed or authorized to provide bmerthaticcat tong
distance service. Any carrier which deelres to transport switched caps to or from a parilcular country, In addition to '
obtaining a license or other permission (if required), must enter Into operating agreements or other arrangements
with the PTT or another kremational carrier in that country or lease capacity from acarrier which already has such
arrsngemeitta. .

	

. .

	

.

Market Opporirm1Hoa .

As a result of the 1998 Act and other Federal, slate, 'and' international Initiatives, 'numerous
telecommunications markets have been opened to competition. In addition, the Increasing globalization of the
word economy, along with Increased reliance upon data tranamisafon and Internet access, has expanded - .
traditional telecommunkxtlona markets . Covista has targeted its services prUtgipally to small and medium-sized
businesses based upon its belief that such customers are not aggressively targelad-by Tier I providers and ere

' underaerved whir respect to cuatomer service and support. Also, Covtats, through a recently Introduced product .
offering, Is targeting residential long distance users with competitive rates for domestic and International long
distance usage.



Long Distance Market

COMPEn170N

overview

Covists operates to a "hill* competitive Industry end estimates that 8 ties no greater then a 1% share ofthe market In which A operates . Covista eopecls that competition will bondnue to Intendfy In the future due toregulatory changes, Including the continued implementation of the 1998 Act, and further Incresese N the afze.resources, mid number of market participants. in each of is markets, Covista will face competition from larger,
m
bettat
ade available

	

a toCCovista through ths .198Ad and

_

othernfederallanand ~
While

n~
business oppduN

	

may b
regulatory Initiatives.

e
s. regulators are' Akelyto provide ILECs with an increased degree of flexibility with regard to pricing of their servbea as competitionIncreases.

` :

	

Competition forCovieWs products and services to based upon price, gURIAY, the ability tobundle services,name recognition. network reliability, wrvice features, billing services, perceived quality end reaponaiveneas tocustomers' needs.

	

While Covista believes that It currently has certain advantages. relating to price.'gually,.' customer service and reaponalvertesa to.crstomer needs; there i no assurance that Covista will be able tomaintain dress advantages or obtain additional advantages. A conBnu %trend toward business comblnanons and' anlances in the tescommunications Industry may create significant new competitors to Cdvtst& Many of Covlata'®
' " exdstng'and potential competitors have financial, technical, and other resources sigNncangy greater than those of'Cwiaia . In addition, In December, 1997, the FCC tamed rules to Implement the provleions of the World TradeOrganlmdon Agreement an Basic Telecommunications, which was drafted to Iberalge restrictions on foreign

ownership of-domestic telecommunications companies and to- allow foreign telecommunications companies to" enter domestic markets: The new FCC rules went Into effect In February, 1998 and are expected to -make it
substantially easier for. many non-United States telecommunications companies to enter the United States market;
thus further increasing the number of competitore. The new rules will also give non-United States Individuals and
corporations greater ability to Invest In United States telecommunications companies, thus increasing the financial
and technical resources potentially available to existing and potential competitors as wan as Covists .

Thelong distance telecommunications Industry Is highly competitive and affected by the Introduction .m
new services by, and the market activities of, major Industry participants. Covista competes 'against various .
national and regional long distance canters, including both kdlNes-based providers and swtchess ressilers
offering seaendaiy the same services as Covista . In addition, significant competition is expected to be provided by
ILECa including RBOCe. Recently, Verimn, the RBOC for CovlaWs region, has been authorized to provide long
distance services In certain states. Ccvlsta'a success will depend upon Its ability to provide high-qualtyy services at
prices competitive with, or lower than, those charged by Re competitors. In addition, a high level of customer
attrition or 'chum' has characterized the long distance Industry. Such attrition Is attributable to a variety of factors,
Including Inisatives of competitors as they engage In advertising campaigns, marketing programs, and provide cash
payments or other bicenttvea. End users are often not obligated to purchase any minimum usage amount and can
discontinue service without penalty at any time. CoviaWs revenue has been. and Is expected to continue to be,
affected by chum.

Tier 1 providers and other carriers have Implemented new price plane aimed at residential customers with
-slgniflCaruly simpfd rate structures, which may have the impact of lowering overall tong distance prices. There
can also be no assurance that brig distance carriers will not make stmt offerings evateble to the stoat to
mecilurtretzed businessei. which Covista primarily serves While Covista believes that small and medium-etmd

. business custamore pre not aggressively targeted by large long distends providers, such as the Tier I providers,
" there can be no assurance that Covista'a customers and potential cudomera will not betargeted by these or other
providers In the future. Additional pricing pressure may come from IP transport, which Is a developing use of
packet-swilched technology which can transmit voice aommimicafic>i at a coat which may be below that of
traditional circult-swfhed long &terms service. While IP bandpod la not yet available In an areas, Its use requires
the dialing of additional digits. While the service has generally produced sound quality Interior to traditional long
distance service. kaould eventually be perceived as a substitute for traditional long distance service. This, In turn,
could put further pricing pressure on " distance rates. Any reduction In kmg distance prices may have a
material adverse effect on Ccvida'ebusiness, Menctah condition and reautts of operations.

Some of Covlatd'a principal competitors are also major suppliers of services to Covlata . Covista both Inks
its switching equipment with It'anamissfan facifitlea and services purchased or leased from these suppliers, and also
resells services obtained from these suppliers. 'There can be no assurance that these suppilers will continue to
offer seroviceea to Covista at competitive rates or on attractive terns, t st aA, and any failure to do so eou d have a



Seasonal Nature at Dual==

Companys business is not somenal.

Patents, Trademarks, ucaaei,'am.

Company does net hold any nmtarlal patents, franchJaeaadorm.

GOVERNMENT REdt1LATiONS , .

J

	

, Federal Regulations - The1998 Act ,

Statutory Requirements. The 1998 Act requires all LEC8 (Jncludlng ILECS and CLECS, (I) not to prohibit
or unduly restrict resale of their services: Mto provide focal number portability, (dl) to provide dilating partly and
nondiscriminatory access to telephone numbers, operator services, directory assistance, and directory listings ; UV) '
to afford access to poles, : ducts, conduits, and dghb-of-way, and . (V) to establish reciprocal compensation
arrangements for the transport and termination of local telecommunications traffic. It also requires ILECa to

' negotiate local interconnection agreements in good faith and to provide Intereonnecdon .(a) for the transmWion and'
Muting of telephone exchange service and exchange access, (b) et any technically feasible point within the ILWs
network, (c) which Is at least equal In quality to that provided bythe ILEC to deed, its affiliates, or any other party to
which the ILEC provides Interconnection, end (d) at 'rates and terms and conditions which am just, reasonable and
nondiscriminatory. ILECa also am required under the 1998 Act to provide nondisadminatoy access to netweK
elements on an unbundled basis at arty technically feasible point, to otter their local telephone services for resale at
wholesale rates, end to facilitate colocailon of equipment necessary for competitors to interconnect with cracceas
Unbundled Network Dements ('UNEe), '

Cavista's services am subject to .mgulailon by federal, state and locd'governmental agendas. The FCCexercises juriedl don over ad htcNCea and services of teleeammurdcabom common carriers to the extent those

	

,facllides am used to provide, originate or terminate interstate or Intenmtfflnal communications. State regulatoryagencies retain jurisdiction overrarders' fadftea and services to the eodent they am used to originate or temdnete

	

,
intrastate communimtiona. Municipalities, and other local 'government agendas may require carriers .to obtain' . 9censes or franchises regulating use of public rightsd-way necessary to Install and operate their networks. Thenetworks are also subject to numerous local regulations such as budding codes, franchises, and rights of wayi 11cansing,requirements.

	

Many of the 'regulations Issued by these regulatory bodies may be subject to judicial'tavdew, .the reaufis of which Coviam iswmble to predict.

The 1998 Act also eliminates the existing AT&T antitrust consent decree, which barred the provision of
long distance services and manufacturing by the RSOCs. In addition, the 1998 Act requires RSOCs to empty with
certain safeguards and offer interconnection which satisfies a prescribed 14-point competitive checklist before .
RBOCs are permitted to provide Irrreglon Inter-LATA services. These adeguards are designed to ensure thet.the
RBOCO competitors have axese to local exchange and exchange access services. on nondiscriminatory terms and
that the subscribers of regulated noncompetitive RBOC services do not subaidha their provision of competitive
services. Thesafeguards also are Intended to promote competition by prevemtng RBOCa from using their market
power In local exchange services In order to obtain an and-compedWe advantage It the provision of outer services.
RBOCs have the ability to provide,cuFaf-re~on long-distance services and, d they obtain stdmduUonand under
prescribed circumstances, mayprovide additional "Ion long-distance services. m December 1999, the FCC

. granted Bed Atlantfda (now Vedzon) application to offer"Ion long d

	

services in NewYork, madding the '
"that time since the breakup ofAT&T that anRBOC has been able to provide its cmtomemwith both toed and long
distance 4..A,.

The 1998 Act also granted Important regulatory relief to Industry segments which compete with CLECs.'ILEN were ghren,aubstenUd new pricing fi~dbility. RBOCa 81ao were grented new11gMa to provide certain cable
' TV aervicrea, brier Exchange Cancers ('DCCs") were permitted ro cormtruct'their burn local fadOUea andlor resefi
lord setvtcea. State laws may rro longer require. CATVs to obtain a franchise hefore otferhrg telewmmunicaboris
services nor permR CATVe' irerxthtse teas to be based an thetrteleeommunicabana revenue: In addition;tinder the
1998 Camrtnuricationa Act, ail utlmy holding yompanies are pemdded to wetdly Nto telecommwicatdarm services

.`through separate subsidiaries.

	

' '

	

.

FCC Rules lmplemendng the Local CompOWon Provisions of the IM.AcL In August 1998, the FCC
released a First Report and Order, aSecond Report and Order and aMemorandum Opinion andOrder (combined,
-the Intercormeolknn Ordeal whIch.estab0ahed afrememrk of minimum, nationd rules enabling state Pub1Jmulluty . .- ..
Commissions ('PUCal.and Public Service Commissions ('PSCa% and the FCC to begin Implementing many of -
the fatal mmnwifnn oroviatare of the..1998 Act. In 9s Interconnection Orders. the FCC nrAgaa'had certain



make available to cdmpefre upon request and a methodology for states to use In establishing rates for.Interconnection and the purchase of UNE%. The FCC also adopted a methodology for to use when appWgthe 1995 Act avoided cost standard' for setting wholesale prices with respect to retall services .
The U.S. Supreme Court affirmed the authority of the FCC to establish miss governing trrteroonnecyon, Oath .believes that additional disputes regarding interconnection Issues and otter related FCC actions are IBcety. Inper, the Supreme Court remanded to the FCC [muss regarding whet UNEs the FCC wig require ILECO tomake available to competitors. In November 1999, the FCC released a decision modifying the go of UNEs whichall ILECa must offer to other caniem . The Eighth Clrauft dMIGICne and their reversal by the Supreme court
continue to cause uncertainty about the rules governing the pricing, terms and conditions of interconnectionagreements. The Supreme Court's ruling and further proceedings on remand (either at the Eighth Circuit or theFCC) may affect-the scope ofthe PUCs'.and PSW authority to conduct arbitration proceedings or to implement orenforce Interconnection agreemeMs. The ruling could also result In nowor additional rules being promulgate! bythe FCC. Given the ongoing uncertainty surrounding the effect of the Eighth Circuit decisions and the decision ofthe Supreme Court reversing them, Covista maynot be able to obtain- or enforce interconnection terms acceptable
Wit or that are consistent with Its business plans .

(Other Federal Regulations

	

'

In'general, the FCC has apolicy of encouraging the_ entry of newcompetitors in the telecommunicationsIndustry" and' preventing anScompefe practices. Therefore, the FCC has established different levels ofregulation for dorNnant carriers and non-dominard cancers. For purposes of domestic common carriertelecommunications regulation, large ILECs are currently considered dominant'cafdem, while CLECs areconsidered non-dominant canters

"

	

rarfs: As a non-dominant canter, Covsf may Install and operate facilities for the transmission of
domestic Interstate communications without prior FCC authorization.

	

Services of norrdominant .
carriers have been subject to relatively limited regulation by the FCC, ptknaroy consisting of the tiling
of tariffs and periodic reports However, non-dominant canters like Cowda must otter Interstate
services an a nondiscriminatory basis, at just and reasonable rates, and remain subject to FCC
complaint procedures. With the exception of Informational tarif for operator-misted services and

'

	

tariffs for tnterexchangs casual calling services, the FCC has ruled that.=a must cancel their tariffs
for domestic Interstate Intarexchange services Tariffs continue to be required for International
services Pursuant to these FCC requirements, Covista has filed and maintains tuft for Its
Interstate services with the FCC. Ali of the Interstate access and retail 'basal Services (as defined by
the FCC) provided by Covkta are described therein. "Entranced' services (as defined by the FCC)
need not be tariffed . Coviata believes that its proposed entranced voice and Internet services as

~. "enhanced" services which need not be tarifted. However, The FCC IS reexamining the "enhanced'
definition as I relates to IP transport and Covlsla cannot predict whether the FCC will change the
classification of such serAcem

"

	

lnfemadonal SetWeea Non-dominant tartlets such as Covista are required to obtain FCC
authorization pursuant to Section 214 of the Communications Act end toe tarots before providing

'

	

international communtcdon Services. Covista has obtained authority from the FCC to engage in
business as a resale and facltties-based International - cgMer to provide voice and data
communications services between United States and ad foreign points

"

	

JLEC price Cap -Regbfadon Reform. In 1991, the FCC replaced -traditional rate of return regulation
for large ILECa with price cap regulation . Under price caps, ILECa can raise prices for certain
services by only a small percentage each year. In addition, there are constraints on the pricing of

' ILEC seMces which are campetiove with awes of CIF-Ca.' In September 1996, the FCC proposed a
three-stage plan which would substantially reduce ILEC price cap regulation as local markets.become
increasingly competitive and, ultimately, would result In Waihdng ILECS nondominant slabs, Adoption
of the FCC's proposal to reduce significantly its regulation of ILECP&9would significantly enhance
the ability of ILECs to compete against Covsta and could have a material adverse effect on Covista.
The FCC released an order I n December 1996 that adopted certain of these proposals, including the
elimination of the lower service band Index knits on price reductions wtthin the access service
category.

	

The FCC3 December 19913 order also eased the requirements necessary for the
Introduction of new'seMtes by ILECs. In May 1997, the FCC took hooter action updating and ,
reforming Its price cap pier for the ILECs. Among other things, the changes require puce cap ILECa
to reduce their price cap indices by 6.5 percent annually, less an adjustment for inflation. The FCC
also elMmhrated rules that regulre RECa earning more then certain specified rates of return to 'share°
portions of_ the excess with their access customers during the next year in.the form of lower access .
rates. In Augur;, 1898, t)ie FCC again took action as gneih tb grant greser ffaxibliithi tcj_ pdae cap

	

.
t.ECs as competition develops-These reforms should tacitftate the. removal of services from _pelts



deaveragIng of ndea for services In the bunWng basket; and removal, upon Implementation of to, . .dating parity, of certain Interstate Interexchhange services from price cap regulation . These acflonacould have a significant Impact on tine Interstate access prices charged by the ILECa with whichCovista expecta to compete.

"

	

Aceeae Charges. Over the past several years, the FCC has granted ILECa significant lkudbpity in
their pricing of Interstate special and switched access services. Under the pricing scheme, 1LECsmayestablish pricing zones based on access traffic density and charge different prices for each zone.Covista anticipates that this pricing fledblilly should result In ILECa lowering their prices In high traffic' density areas, the probable area of competition with CoviatL Covista also andclpstas that the FCCwill grant ILECa Increasing pricing fieomipty as the number of Interconnections and cornpemm
Increases. In May, 1997, the FCC took action to reform the current Interstate access charge system,
The FCC adopted an order which makes various reforms to Meting rate structures for interstate
access designed to .move access charges, over lime, to more economically efficient rate levels and
structures. The FCC recently granted LECe additional pricing flexibility. As. such, the carriers may
offer volume discounts which may benefit larger long distance cancers.

. . The FCC has also Impiemented'clmnges In interstate access rules thud result In restructuring of the
' access charge system and changes In access charge rate levels. As of January 1998, access

	

,
charges incurred by CavWta are being passed an to end useraf to May 1999, the U.S. Court of
Appeals (D.C . Cirailt) sent the access rate formula back to the FCC for further explanation regarding
how certain factors were' calculated . These and related actions maychange access rates. It the
formula is upheld, and access rates ere reduced. . the result will be a lower cost of provldhg tong
distance service, especially to business customers. - The impact of these new changes will not be
(mown until they are fully Implemented over the next several years. In a related proceeding, the FCC

'

	

has adopted changes to the methodology by which access has been used In part to subsidize
'

	

universal telephone service and other public policy goals. Telecomrfiunfcalona providers fgre Covista
pay fees calculated as a percentage of revenue to support these goals. The N9 Implications ofthese
changesromalns uncertain and subject to change.

"

	

PICC. As pat of Access Reform mandated In the Telecommunications Act of 1998, beginning in
1998, local phone companies were permitted to assess the Pre-subswbed Interexchange Cancer
Charge, also known as 'PICC.' The 'PICC' Is a monthly per line cost charged by the local telephone
company to every long distance gamier for each customer phone line that is pre-subscribed to that
carrier. PICC charges are billed to the end users.

Universal SoMee Reform. In May, 1997, the FCC released an order which reforms the current .

1998 AcL The FCCNestablished a set of policiesmanl d rules designed to
service
ensensure~ low-Income

consumers andconsumers whoWe in rural, Insular and Ngh-coat areas receive a defined setof local
telecommunications services at affordable rates. This was to be accomplished In part . through
expansion of direct consume subsidy programs and In part by ensuring that rural, small and high- .
coat LEC9 continue to receive universal service subsidy support

	

The FCC also created new
programs to subefdhe connection of telecommunications networks to eligible schools, Iibrarles and
rural.heafh care providers. These programs were to be funded by assessment of eligible revenue of .
nearly-all providers of Interstate telecommunications carriers, Including Covsta.

Covista, pie other telecommunications casters providing Interstate telecommunications services, to
required to contribute apardon of Its end-user telecommunications revenue to fund universal service
programs . These cordrloutioro became due beginning in 1998 for

all
providers of interstate

tolecartumutcations services . Such contributions were to be assessed based onIntrastate, Intestate
and international end user telecommudcatlone revenue: Contribution factors vary quarterly and
carriers; Including Covista.. ate billed each. month. , In addition, many state regulatory agencies have
Instituted proceedings, to revise state universal fund contdbudon requirements which will vay,fmm-
state to state. Recently, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit rejected tics FCC8 effort to
base contributions In part an Intrastate revenues. The FCC's universal service program may be
altered as a result of appeals, agency reconsideration of its actions, or future Congressional
legislation. .

	

.

Pursuant to the Universal Service Order, all tenders are required to submit a Universal Service Fund
worksheet Covsta has flied Its Universal Service Fund worksheet The amounts remitted to the
Universal Service Fund are billed to Covita's customers. Covista Is eligible to qualify as a recIPIent
of uUVersat-oervica support t u~eleutsto provide-fadildea-based servtce to wsos dzAnatec for-universal service support and g g complies with federal and state regulatory lequirements to be an '.



In October, 1999 the FCC adopted a new hlgh"coat unlvemai service support madtanlatn for non..nual canters. The new mediardam to based an the forward-looldrtg costs of providing supportedservices as determined by the COMMIBWOW9 cost model. The forwatddooking support mechanism . .provides support to norwural carries In arose elates. that have a statewide trystege forvrard4coklngcoat perilne greater than the national benchmark, which Is Mat 136 percent of the national

	

mr~a
,forward4coklng cost per One. The FCC3 dedsione regarding universal service could halgni0cant Impacton future operaflons of. Covlets.

	

.

Coloeadoa in March, 1999, the FCC released Us Coiaraadon Order which requires g.ECa to permitCLECam colo=te any equipment used for interconnection or access to unbundled network elements .even it that equipment Includes switching or enhanced service hmdlons. Among othier things, theColocallon Orderalso prohibits ILEC3 from placing any limits on the use of switching or enhanced
features for collocated equipment, and requires ILECS to make 081981093 0010=0011 available andpermit CLECs to constructtheir oven cans.-corvrect fardlIti&a .

State Reautetion

In March, 2000, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of ColombiaCkad vacated gmtted pardons
of the Collocation Order, holding certain definitions contained In FCC rules ware Impemilasthly broad,
The Court remanded the Collocation Order, In pert, forfurther FCC consideration of these Issues. .

Lpre.Shaihrg: In November, 1999, the FCC adopted a neworder requiring ILEC& to provide One . .
sharing, which will allow CLECem offerdata servkara over the same Una the consumer knee farvoice
services, without the CLECa being required to offer the vat= services, State commissions have been
authorized to establish the prices to the CLECe for such services. The decision has been appealed.

S

Some states In which Covista operates are considering Iegisia8an which could impede efforts by
new entrants In the local services market to compete effectively with ILEC8. However, Covisa does not have any
Intention to pursue the local services markeL

Compliance with Environmental Provisions
Company believes that R complies In

all
material respects with current pertinent federal, state, and local

provisions relating to the protection of the environment and does not believe that continued compliance would .
require any material capital expenditure.

	

.

Subsequent Events

	

.

A]alatproxy statsment/pmspectua dated January9, 2002 and mailed to stockholders an or about January
11, 2002 detailed a merger agreement between Covista and Capsule Communications, Inc. which had been

. approved by the Covista end Capsule boards of directors. Capsule is atelecommunications carrier providing local
and long-distance telephone communications services primarily to small- and nasdlunrshe business customers as
well as residential customers utilizing Its own equipment Capsule provides Inbound long-distance aervices,and
local resale services as wen as other telecommunications services hi :htdlng caging cards, cellular, palling, Internet
service, dedlcated.accem, data services, end carder termination services . Capsule uses He owit switch located In
PhUbdelphia to origlnea, transport and terminate calls for customers generally located In the wild-Atlantic region
and In- Cafmia. Far calls odghuating or tannknadng outside Is own network, Capsule manAs seMcea provided by
other long-distance companies. Capsule Is'the successor corporetlon .to - US Wata, Inc. During the scheduled
annual meeting of .stockholders an February a, 2002, the merger was approved by the regWafte vote .of
stockholders of Covista and Capsule. The mergerwas consummated mFebtuary, 8X02.

On February 12, 2002, Cavieta announced a reduction In force of 2096 of its. New York/Now Jersey
woridoroe related to a reduction In revenue dueto the decline Irk the wholesale Market and the Watt Trade Center

. attack of September 11, 2001' and the move of operations to Tennessee. '

	

'

PERSONNEL :

As of the April 15, 2002, Covista and rib subaidarles employed 243 ful"me and part-time employees In , .
He long distance telecommunication business, of whom 20 were engaged in sales aedvilles, 82 in customer service
end support, 52 In technical and field services, 22 in data processing, and 67 In general and administrative
activities. Cevista also utes the services of approodmately, 980 Independent sales agents . Covista considers Its
laded"-.sv:ithrils erneiloyees-tn be satislactory: . . . _. . . . . ., . . . .
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On November 15, 1993, and December 28, 1993, Ccvisla entered btto lease for an aggregate 01
approximately 3,500 square feet of space at 744 Broad Street, Newark, New Jersey, for Me Switching "meatThe lease ran from January 1, 1994 through December 31, 1998, with an option tq renew the lease through August .31, 2002, which has b

~

been exercleed. The annual rental of $83,200 also requires the tenant to pay a proportionate
'

	

planetto renew the Wonandtheswitching

_

compnerds arree to bererelocated toaanother36.

	

ta doe not
have

On February 22, 1994, Covista entered Into a lease, subsequently mooed n April 15, 1994, for", 4a apprmdmatety 17,700 square feetof specs at 150 Cknre Road, L1ttie Feb, Now Jersey to be used as 'Sales,
' executive and administrative offices. The lease provided for a rent holiday unto July, 1996, ater.which the amexalrental would be approximately $360,000. The tease Is for live years and tan months and hasbeen amended try a .
second lease madi8cation agreement dated February 9, 1996 whereby Covista Warred approximatey, 8,700
additional square feet of apace at the same location at an additional annual rental of $121,707 for the first four
years-and $138,154 for the next year and two months. The mor8ffed agreement also extended the tern of the
existing lease for an additional two years to August 14, 2002 at a then annual rental of $663,000. The lease
requires the payment of the terarCa proportionate share of operating expenses and teat estate tax )ncreases over

' the base year. There era two live year renewal options. There are'nwplens to exercise renewal opaona

.

	

.

	

On January 30, 1997, Covista entered Into a,third modification of No fame for approximately 18,640
:. square feet of additional office apace at its existing , fa511ty at 150 Clove Road,. Lone Fags, New Jersey.

	

The
annual rental on the additional apace was $367.760 per annum from July 1, 1997 through February 14, 1998, Is '
$366,800 per annum from February 15, 1998 through August 14, 2000, and Wilts $384,820 per annum from
August 15, 2000 through August 14,2002. In addition, Covista Is obligated for its proportionate share of Increases
In real estate taxes and operating expenses. over the base year. There are two five year renewal apdons, requiring
nine months' prior notice. There are no plans to exercise the renewal options. Covfeta piano to move the existing
office staff to a smaller location In the general area of LIW9'Falls, NJ and certain operational units of Covista to
Chattanooga, Termessee.

On November 1, 1998, Covlata entered Into alease for approximately 8,300 square feet of apace at 40
Rector Street. New York City, New York, for use as asecond switching Wily. The term of the lease Is for fifteen
years'and ten months from the date of commencement, which was March 1, 1997, Rental payments are $183,918
per annum for the first live years after commencement, $166,480 per annum for the nextilve years, and$183,128
per annum for the remaining live years and ten months . The lease requires the payment' of the tenants
Proportional share of increased operating expenses and real estate taxes over the base year.

On November 8, 1996, a subsidiary ofCovista Ordered Into a lease for approxxmatelyy 2,300 square feet of
cfgca space in New York City, New York at an annual rental of approximately $77,781. The lease commenced
Febmmry 1, 1997 and Is for ably three (63) months. The lease requires the payment of the tenwd's proportionate
share of increased operating expenses and real estate taxes over the base year.

On February 6, 1998, Covista entered into alease for approximately 5,000 square feet of space at 28W.
Flagler Street, Miami, Florida. The term of the lame is 16 years, commencing February 1, 1998 . The annual rental
in approximately $118,160 . with an annual ad(ustment based n to Revised Urban Wage Earners and Clerical
Workers Index, capped at a maximum of 3% Increase over the prior years rental payment in addition, Covista Is
gable for Its proportionate, share ofIncreases M real estate taxes and_operating expenses over the base year.
Covlata sublet this apace n January 1, 2000 for the balance of Its term, to another tenant at an annual rate of
approximately $118,160, sublect to a4uatmonts. The tenant has defaulted on the sublease and Covista Is
currently considering uUgzing the,apace.

On September 1, 1996, Covista entered Into a fire year lease, commencing September 1, 199a for 3,008
square feet of space at 500 Cypress Creek Road, Fort Laudehfale, Florida. Rental payments were $48.128 per
annum from September 1 . 1998 to August 31,1999, $50,554 from September 1, 1099 to August 31,2000, $63,081
from September 1, 2000 to August 31, 2001, $56,708 from September 1, 2001 to August 31, 2002 and $58,506
from September 1 . 2002 io August 91, 2003. Thelame requires the payaxant of the tananYs proPortiortirtte edere of
Inaisased operating exper>9ea and reel estate lazes aver the base year. ht January, 2~4 Covista entered trio a
madifimgon of the fees whereby the space was reducedto 1,200 square feel Retrial payments havebeen rnadllledto
be $30,300 fiom February 16, 2000 tb February 14, 2001, $39,039 from February 15, 2001 to February 14, 2002;
$34,587 from February 15, 2002 to February 14, 2003 end $32,538 from February 15, 2003 to February 14, 2004 .
Covista has sublet this space to another tenant

	

'



October 1, 1999 to August 31, 2000, and are $64,818 from September 1, 2000 to August 31, 2001 and $87,422from September 1, 2001 to August 31, 2002 The lease requires the payment of the tenenes proportionate attars of

	

'.

	

Increased operating expenses and real estate taxes over the base year, Covista has sublet this apace to.another

On November 17, 1999, Covista entered Into a three year tam, commencing November 17, 1999 for2,188 square,feet of apace at brie Landmmk Square, Stamford, Connecticut. Rental payments were $50,278 par annum from' November 17,1999 to November 18,2000, are $61,371 from November 17,2000 to November 18; 2001, and .
$61,668 from November 1T, 2000 to November 18, 20OZ There Is an option to renew for three years, upon rdnemonths''pdor Written notice. The hem requires the payment of 1119 tartan's propOAiormte share of increased .
operating expenses and real estate taxesover the baseyear. Covsta has sublet this space to anothertenant.

On October 11, 1999, Covista,entered Into a three tier lease, commencing October 11,1989 leasing 1,926 square

	

,
. feet of space at 1810 Chapel. Avenue Went, Cherry Hill, New Jersey. Rental payments are $38,520 per annum

	

,
from October 11 ;1989 to October 31,2002. 7here is an-opfion to renew for three years, upon nine months, prior ,written nodes: The lease requires the payment of the tenanfa proportionate share, of increased operating expenses

., and reel estate taxes overthe base yew. . Covista has sublet this space to another tenant.

Covista has entered .kto c hase agreement for approximately 28,000 -square feet of office apace in

	

`
Chattanooga, Tennessee, with Henry Q. Luimn 18 Chairman of the Board and a principal shareholder of COVIOta . The
ternm the lease is for five years beginning September 1, 2001. The Isae provides for annual rent of $88,400 from
September 1, 2001 to August 30, 2002: $115,200 from September 1, 2002 to August 30, 2003; $144,000 from
September 1, 2003 to August 30, 2004, with the fast two years to be $144,000 annuamy a4uated for the Consumer
Price index Cotdsta believes that such premises am leased on tams not less favorable than an anns length
trarwactlom

ITEM 3.

	

Perxhlna Lariat Proceedlnoa

Covista.
There are no pending legal proceedings that could be expected to have a material adverse effect on

ITEM 4.

	

ubmisslc~ of Matters to a Vote of SeatdN Holders

Ajoint proxy statement1prOWectua dated January 9, 2002 and maged to stockholders on or about January
11, 2042 defamed a merger agreement betvmen Covista'and Capsule Communtptions, Inc, which had been
approved by the Covista and Capsule boards of directors, During the scheduled annual meeting of stockholder
on February 8, 2002, the merger was approved by the requisite vote of stockholders of Covista and Capsule . The
merger was consummated on February 8,2402. Other matters presented to sinckholdere'Irutuded election of
eight directors of Covista , adoption of the 2001 Equity Incentive Plan, and to ratify the selection of Delofte & .
Touche LLP as Independent auditor of CaAWa forthe fiscal year ending January 31, 2002.



Common Stock

. . -t'rleetF~rlge ofUta Common.Slodr

ITEM 5.

	

Market for Cammmes Common Stock and Related Searily I-Igkder Matters

Cavtca's authorized capital stock amp solely of 60,000.000 shares of Common Stock. Holders gf .
Covlata's Common Stock are entitled to receive such dividends, ti any. as may be-declared from 9me to time by five
Board of Directors in 8s discretion fruit funds legally available-therefor. Each holder of Common Stock b entltied to
-onewata foreacWettam held. There b no right to cumulative vofg. Upon Ikludadon, dissolution, or winding up of
Covif the holders of Common Stock are entitled to receive a pro rata share of a0 assets available for distribution to
atockhaderL The Common Stock has no pre-emptive or other subscription rights, end there are no conversion or
redemption rights with respect to such shares.

Effective on July 15, 1998, Cavista dlstrbuted 4AV1.887 shares of Common Stock In connection with a 2.

	

.
for-1 stock split of ail outstandlrg shares as of June 30,1998. As of the date of this report, there were 12,636,949"

.

	

shares of Common Stack issuedand di

	

ng,held by 840 persons, as reportedby Covista's mnster agent

Covlata's Common Stock. Is traded In the 'Jerdhe counter market on the NASDAQ National Market
' : System under the Symbol CVST. The fo1owhrg table sets forth, for the quarterly fiscal periods Indicated, the high
and tow dosing safes prices for Covlata's Common Stack In such market. as reported by the National Association
of Securities Dealera, Ino.

FISCAL 2002

	

HIGH

	

LOW -

February 1; 2001 thru April 30

	

' $

	

8.188- .	' $

	

1 .547 '

	

'

May 1 thru July 31

	

725

	

325

August 1 thrtiOctober 31

	

1025

	

4S0

November 1 thru January 31, 2002

	

1025

	

6.62

FISCAL 2001

	

HIGH

February 1, 2000 thru April 30

	

15.00

	

.9.1875

May 1 thru July 31

	

12375

	

6.00

August 1 tfuu October3l

	

,

	

9.50

	

. 3.825

	

-

November 1 thru January 31,2001 ' . . 4.9375

	

0.825

	

_ .

Covieta has not paid or declared any cash dividends during the past two fiscal years and does nbt-
anticipate paying any In the foreseeable future.



'

'

(a)

	

A9 pershare amoarf have been radated m vededf 2for 1 croak splitdlsafbutgd Ady 1, .1,98.
(b) $4,400,000 covetda rate fmm Cavbrns' Ctalmanofthe Boardvdt Inplanned to be wnyerted to an equity

poafn (ses frEM 14 '

ITEM 8. Selected Rrrandal Data

(In thousands except per share

' Year ended January 31. 1

amount)

.
F1EBULTS OF OPERATIONS: " , 2M1 . 2M -1M , IBM

Net sales " - $ 95,313 $ - 133,230 $ 139,7 $ . 137,283 $ 123,288

Net (Loss) eemings (11',970) $ (8,829) $ (9,414) $ (3.418) $ 1,094

Wdghted average .
common shares . . . .
outstanding (a)

Basic 10,204 7,324 . 7,069 ' .8,818 8,213

Diluted - . 10,204 7,324 7,069 . . .9,818 6,842

(Loss) eamings per common and -
common equWalent shares

Bask (Lose) eamings per share $ .(1 .17) $ (1.18) $ (1.33) $ (0.50) $ 0.18

Diluted (Loss) eaminga per sham $ (1 .17) $ (1 .18) 4 - 0-33) $ (0.50)'_ $ 0.16

Cash dMdends per
common share , Nane None None None .. - None

Add8lonato property
8 equIpment .$ 8,'165 3,227 $ 3,019 $ 4,727 $ 3,268

Depredation and
amortlzaon $ 4,569 $ 3,578 $ 2,985 $ 2,786 $ 2,028

FINANCIAL POSf110N. '

Working Capital $ (11,927) $ (7,734) $ 1,222 $ 1,251 $ 7,936

Property and equfpment- net $ 12,490 $ .13,021 $ .13.317$ 14,473 $ 12,406

Total asset ' $ 31,257 - $ 39.097 $ 46.184$ 45,692 $ 4045,

Long-term debt . $ 4.400(b) 982. $ $ 997$ . 1,566 $ 2,092.

Shareholders' Equfty . 1.5ea $ 5,777 $ 14,907$ , 16,442 $ 15,598

Common shares
outatndtrrg (a) -. 10,849 7,989 . 7.944 7,805 8.879



The following d
for the
lsamst_on is presented to assist In as_sessIn_g the changes in 1lrmndal eo,~n and

20MI) anddJJanuary 13 2002 (Fiscal
years ended

. The toil wwhV IMounation s1=31d be
and
read

januAry
In cMnl3lurxl,teethlnandal statements and related notes and other detailed Information regarding QovISM Included elsewhere In thisreport and should not be conebued to lrply management's belief that the rseutts, causes or trends presented will

Including Information
continue

with respectesp
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Certain
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ustinm,
elsewherendothis annual report.

.

	

.

	

.

	

sting afataments.
' ReceetAecounf Pronouncements

fTEM 7.

	

Mannaemenps Mansion and Anahais of Finertdal C"nsrirt f7wV 11th ~r rt/.ewJl/MR

Statement of FManclW Accounting Standanis (SPAS) No. 133,. Accounting for Derivative In,humenm andHadging'AaMles, is effective for al fiscal yeem beginning after June 15, 2000 . WAS 133, as amended,establishes accounting and reporting' standards for derivative Instruments. Including certain derivative Instruments
embedded In other contracts and for hedging activities . Under WAS 133, certain conbacla that were not formerly
considered derivatives maynow meet the definition of a derivative. Covlsta adopted WAS 133 effective February1, 2001. Theadoption of SPAS 133 did not have a significant impact on the financial position, results of operation,
or cash lows ofCovista.

	

'

In June 2001 . to Financial Accounting Standards toed (,FASBI Iaeued Statement of Flnendal Accounting Standards
No . 141 ('SFAS 141'), 'Business Combinations.' WAS 141 requires the purchase method of accounting for business .combinations bNated after June_

amortization

	

30,2001 end OWrnirmte, to p0OIngoMnWMta meNwd Covifdoes not believe that
the adoption

onfuture 1business eombinalo

	

ofJanuary 9M1,

	

Covief

	

nomh

	

Goodwin recorded an Its bockL
In June 2001', the FASB Issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 CSFAS 142'). 'Goodwll and
Other Intangible Assate, which is ebdlve Febnmry 1, 2002. WAS 142 mqubea, among other things, the
dlacontimrance of goodwill amortization . In addNion, the standard includes provisions for to

	

n of certain
existing mcogntmd Intangibles as goodwill, reassessment of the useful lives of exfabg racognhed Intangibles,
mcissaifleatlon of certain Intengues out of previously reported goodwill and him IderdiflcaNon of reporting units for
purposes of assessing potential future bnpahments of goodwill. WAS 142 also requires Covista to complete a
transitional goodwill Impairment teat sbcmonths tram the date of adoption . Covfsta is cum~ assessing but has noLyet
determined the Impact of WAS 142 on la tfnendai position and results of operations.

	

'

In August2001,the FASB Issued Staternattt of Financial Accounting Standads No . 14a~SFAS 143'),'Axoundng for
Asset Retirement Oblgattane, which is efeglve for al fiscal years beginning Febniary 1,'2009. WAS 143 requires
retarding the fair value of a labilty for an asset retirement obligation In to period It which It Is blared. and a
correspondbtg.increass in the carrying value of the related long-0ved asset. Over time, the labiBy to accreted to As
present value each period, end the caphalced cost Is depredated over the .useful life of to related allot Upan
settlement of the Hebfy, it Is althersetled for la recorded amount a' a gain or loss upon settlematt Is recorded.
Covista is crrmanNy assesaing but has not yet determined tits Impact of SFAS 143 on Its financial position and results of
operations. .

	

.

Revenues

. In Odober'2001, the FASO Issued Stalanent of Fmndet Accowfg Standards No. 144 CSFAS1441,' AcernmNng
for the Impairment or Disposal cf .Long Uved .Aaseb', which Is eledwe February 1, 2002 SFAS 144 replaces the
Statement of Financial Accounting S

	

No. 121,

	

forthe Impainnera of Long Lived Aesets and for
' Lang-Lhmd Assets m be Disposed Or. WAS 144 nxpttres

	

assets be treasured at the lower of the
cartylng amount or fair value, less cost to sell, whether Included Ncontinuing operations or It dhcomfmd operations.
PoviSta la curtanNy assessing but has not yet determinedthe Impact of WAS 144 on No *=low position and results of
operations.

	

'

RESULT QF OPI"RATIONS

' FISCAL20MAMC MPAPEOTOFLSCAL2001

Net sales of telecommunleations services for the flseal year ended January 31, 2= were approximately
$95,313,000, a decrease of apprmdmatel $37,917,000 or 28.5% from the approtdnmd* $133,230,000 of net

. sales In Ham' 2001 . Theco roverLas v.ara compctosd of ram salt: of approxmately $47,424.000 and wholesale ,
sales of apprctdmately $47,889,000. Covsta bIlled approximately 1,075,758,000 minutes in Fiscal . 2002 as



.Other Income and Expenm

Sailing, General and Administrative :

Net retch Wee for Ffecal 202 were approxinmtely $47,424,000,,a decrease of approximately$8,0_83,000, or 11.3% from the-approximately $63,487,000 billed in _Fiscal 2001. Retell billed minutes were
approximately 600A81,000Wed

	

_

Fiscal2001 . Thheeaerage
18,

price per minute deceased approximately 17.3% asthe Industry continued to experience decreased price per minute of usage. Ccvlata does not foresas that We trendIn pricing Will abatefn the near future.

Net wholesale (carrier) sales for Fiscal 20M were approximately, $47,888,000, a decrease orapproximately $31,834,000 or 98.9% from the approximately $79,743;000 biped N Fiscal 2001. Billed wholesaleminutes amounted to approximately 4670 1,000, a decrease of approximately 197,844,000 minutes of 30.2% fromthe billed wholesale minutes of approximately 8W,058,0W billed In Fixw 2001. The ewes mix corMinusd to move. . °ibwanthigher priced International trafllc from the lower priced domestic trafBa. lntematlonel carrierfraft decreased
182,049,000 minutes or approximately 29.156 m approximately 396,819,O0o ' minutes. Domestic minutse .
decreased approximately 36,U8% due

approximately
30.8% tonin~approximately

	

Minutes . The average
wholesale p

	

p

	

Industry, a trend, which Covista bellevf
wAl continue.

Camof tales

	

. . .

	

.

Selling, general and administrative ($, G &A) expenses are comprised of aeipng and marketing costs, and
general and administrative costs. S, 0 & A expenses for Fiscal 2002 Increased to approximately $30,987,000, an
Increase of approximately $4,083,000 or 152% from the appnudmate $28,903,000 In Fiscal 2001 . This increase
was pdmardy due to increases in salary, wages and benefits due to the new residential service and cap center
being established In Tennessee of approximately $412,000 ; a $570,000 severance accrual established for New
YorklNew Jersey staff reductions taking place In fiscal 2003; an Increase in marketing cost related to new
residential service of approximately $177,000; and Increase in general office e*amts of approximately $272,000;
an Increase In' bad debt expense of $2,758,000 due to the write off of a portion of certain carrier receivables; an
Increase In depreciation and smartbatlon due to amorttxa8on of customer. lists (from customer.osts acquired from
Blink Darts Corporation) of approximately $731,000; and an Increase in travel end entertainment of approximately
$98,000. These Increases were offset by reductions In camn lesions due to decreased sales volume of
approximately $497,000; decreases In selling expense of approximately $90,000; and a decrease In professional
tees and consulting of $252,000. ' .

Stock Compeneatfon Expense

	

'

	

.

Stock compensation expenses for Fiscal 2002 deceased to, apprmdmatefy $12,000, a decease of
approximately $258,000, or 08.556, from the approxlmetely.$287,000 charged in Fiscal 2001. The decrease Is due
to a majority of stock grants being fully vested

Coat of sales conalsts Of access fees, Me Installatlon expenses, switch menses, Network Oparsting
Ceater'("NOC') expenses, network depredation, transport expenses, and local and long-distance expenses. Ceat
of salsa for Fiscal 2002 was approximately $78,478,000, a decease of approximately $39,583,000 or 34.1% from
the approximately $116,059,000 of coat of sales In Fiscal 2001 . Included In coat of sales are direct one costs,
usage charges and the direct casts of Covlata's switches and NOC. The decrease In coat of sales was primarily
due to the decrease In lower margin wholesale volume of approximately $24,401,000 ; a decease in technician
salary, wages. and fringe benefits of approximately $48,000; decreased consulting expense of approximately
$174,000 an improvement in rates obtained from vendors of approximately $1S,298,000 ; other net savings In the
NOC and switches of approximately $123,000 ; an Increase In .depredation expense resulting from upgrades to the
switches of approximately $130,000; an Increase In equipment rental resulting from a switch sWeAeaseback
agreement in the amount of apprmdmately $329,000 ; and the effect of to access charge settlement recorded in
Fiscal 2001 .

Total other Income, net for Fiscal 2002 Increased approximately $88,000. The components of other
Income and expense are Interest expense, Interest Income and other Items. Interest income decreased
aPPrcodmatety $8,000; interest dense Increased approximately $137,000;, and gains on sates of securities_ . .

_

	

.Ms.. sed apptorHmaraiy $'i3'2,000 . :' . . .

	

-

	

. .



Raventtes

Cost of Swan

' RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The net loss for Fiscal 2002 of spprmdmatety $11,970,000 repreaelds an Increase in net lose ofaM ely $3,340,000 over the net lose of apply $8,829,OW reported to Racal 2001, based on theexplanations of changes above.

Q CAL 2001 AS COMPARED TO FISCAL 2000

Net sales of telecommrmicatloris services and systems for the decal year ended January 31, 2001 were
appt*natey $133,230.000, a . decrease of approximately $8,530,000 or 4.7% from the apPrmdrnatey
$139,760,000 of net sales In Fiscal 2000. These, revenues were comprised of retail sales of approxbnetey
'$63,487,000 and wholesale aales of approximately $79,743,000. Covista billed approximately 1,255,437,000
. minutes in Fiscal 2001 as compared to approximately 1,242,942,000 minutes. In Fiscal 2000, an Increase of
12,495,1700, minutes --4~

Net retail sales for Fiscal 2001 were appromdmately $63,487,000, a decrease of approximately
$15,538,000, or 22.5% from the approximately $89,023,000 bled In Fiscal 2000. Retell billed minutes Were
approximately 800,381,000, a decrease of approoxmatey 80,333,000 minutes or 11.896, from the retail minutes of
appraxmatelyy 680,714,000 billed It Fiscal 2000. The average price per minute has decreased approximately
13.8% as the Industry continues to experience decreased price per minute, of usage. Covista does not foresee that
this trend in pricing will abate In the nearMure.

Not wholesale (canter) sales for Racal 2001 were approAmatey $79,743,000, . in Increase of
approxmately $9,008,000 or 12.7% over the approxlmately $70,737,000 billed In Fiscal 2000. Baled wholesale
minutes amounted to approximately 856,065,000, -an Increase of approximately 82,828,000 minutes or 16.5% over
the billed wholesale minutes of approximately 662,227,000 billed In Fiscal 2000. The sales mix continued'to move
toward higher priced Internationaltraffic from the lower priced domestic traffic. International carrier traffic increased
177,978,000 minutes or approximately 46.9% to approximately 567,689,000 minutes. Domestic minutes decreased
approximately 86,149,000 or approximately 46.6% to approximately 97,387,000 minutes. The average wholesale
price per minute fell 4.1% due to continuing competition In the industry, a trend, which Covl3W believes, will
continue.

Cost of sales consists of access fees, One Itstafidon expenses, switch expenses, NOC -epenses; .
network depredation, transport expenses, and local and long-distance expenses Coat of Was for Racal 2001 was
aPPMximeley $116,059,000, an increase of approximately $3,266,000 or 2.9% over the appmAmatey
$112,794,000 of coat of sales in Fiscal 2000. Included In coat of sales are direct line costs, usage charges end the .

' direct costs of Covista'aswitches and NOC. The increase to cost of sales was prhnertly due tothe Increase In tower'.Margin
wholesale vohune of approximately $10,319,000 ; Increases In salary, wages and fringe benefits of

appmftetely $881,000; increased consulting expense of approximately $178,000, and . an Increase In depreciation
expense resulting from upgrades to the switches of approxmately $289,000. This was offset by the reduced
volume of retail traffic amounting to appmmdmatel f $5 297,000; an improvement In cost rates obtained from vendors
of approdmatey $2.924,000 and other net savings In the NOD andsins of approximdely $131,000.

Access Chatgs Sawemart:

	

.

	

.

	

.

M the second quarter of the fiscal year ended January 31, 2001 . 'Covt modved .a cash Payment of'
$1,264.483 from certain Bell Companies In eciiternent of a doss action auk to which Covista'was a party, filed In 1992
relaCng to alleged overchamgea by those comparil~ . The aeatement canduded the doss action with the Bell
Compardea. Cavfst~spotion of.the aetManeMwas cwtdetamhfiedwtA the ~cond quarter ofthe tlawtyear.Thacash
Paymentam recorded as a separate line ram as a reduction of coats and expenses in the quarter ended July 31,
2000.

	

'

. . .

Selling, General and Administrathre.

	

_

.

	

.Seh'Ibg, general and administrative (S, G & A) expenses are comprised of selling and maftMg costs, and'

	

.



processing serviced resulting from bringing the biding system Ai house of approximately $196,000; adieinsalaries, fringe benefits and taxes of approximately $311,000; a reduction of meals anti entertainment expense of .approximately $93,000; a reducton of legal fees of approximately $186,000; a reduction of selling expense of,
approximately $191,000, end other net savings of'approximately, $268,000. These decreases were offast byadditions to the baddebt provialon, due to the failure of certain wholesslb accounts, of approximately $1,272,000 ;Increased spending for general office of approximately $M00a; an Increase :in reauRlng and batnhtg for newsales employees of approximately $180,000; and an Increase in depredation axpeeae am new lop egNipmant ofapproximately, $332.000.

	

'

Rastrueduing E>quros .

	

` '

	

_.

In Fiscal 2000, approxmatehl $319,00(11 of a prior amnuahfor msbuarahtg expenses was reversed, This
amount Included an approximately $97,000 reduction In the saveranae accrual; a redudlan of apprwdmetraty $20,000
for fringe benefits and an approximately $202,000 reduction In the acausl on the Fort Leudeedele lees, due to
.revisions in the Iowa. There were no charges to mtrududng expenam fn Fiscal 2001 ; however, Covleta seined, for
appmxdmately $12,0m, the balance an ft lease in Fart Lauderdale, Ftarlda, which wee charged against aged
resLududng costs.

	

: .

StockCompenaaHonExpense

Stack compensation expenses tar Fiscal 2001 Increased to approximately 6287,000, an .4raaaae of
approximately $83,000, or 30.996, from the approximately $204,000 charged In Fiscal 2000. The increase is due to
having fewer cancellations of certain restricted stock grants to employees In the current year overthe prioryear.

Other Compensadon

On September 21, 1999, Covicla entered into an agreement with Warren Feldman, the the Chairman of the
Board of Directors andashareholder of Covista. As pert of this agreement, aharp am payment in to then amount of
$900,000 was made to Mr. Feldman in settlement of his employment agreement Covists paid $650,000 and Mr. Wait
Anderson, a major shamolder, paid $250,000. Mr. Fetdman's Employment Agreementwas to have been In etkmt uffffi
December 31, 2001. Covista expensed $900,000 In FLgcW 2000 with $250,000 being aecotarted for as a capital
cantdbudon.

	

.

Simultaneously, Revision LLC end htr. Waft Anderson MevislordAnderson") and Covista entered Into Put
Option agreements with Warren Feld an, Sri Feldman hhe Feldmanal and Leon Genet, ('Clenen a diredcr of
Covista, These Pitt Option agreements afiawed the Feldmens and Genet the right to sell their ahem at Covista to
RevisiordAnderson at a price of $16.00 per sham and obligated RevfsionlAnderson to purchase the shares during an
exercise period beginning on December 11, 1999 and adding on February 10;2000. Revision/Anderson ilumhasedthe
dries under the put opton agreements priorWthe expiraton, with the exception of 100,778 sham still hold by f
Feidmans, Covista had no obligation to purchase any shares tram the Feldnnhns or GenetThe dosing market prim of
Covistas shares on September 21, 1999, the date of the agreements. was $12.25, and the total mwnbei of sham
covered by the agreements was 1,208,137. Using abinomial valuation model with an interest rate of6% andavolatility
rate of 60%, the fair value of the Put Option agreements wasdetermined to be $4.03 persham or $4,$70,564. Covista
accounted forthis nortcash traneaeton as acharge to expense and a credit to paid-In capitei rising Racal 2000.

Other Income and Expense

Total other Income and expense for Racal 2001 Increased approximately $135,000 . The components of
other Income and expense are Interest expense, Interest income and other hems. Interest Income increased
approximately 552,000;, Interest expense decreased approximately 642,000; and approx<mOsy $41.000 In
brourance daima were received. .

Net Lass

	

.

The net toes for Racal 2001 of appm*mately $8.629,000 represents a decrease In net low of
approximately $786,000 from the net leas of approxdrtsiN $9.414,000 reported In Fiscal 2000, based an the
explanation of changes above.

ubtnDfryAND CAPITAL RESOURCES



a reduction in Investments of appmxImalely $97,OOa a reduction, in accounts receivable of appt=dndy $9,381,000;an Increase In prepaid 'expenses of approximately $149,000; an Increase In allowance for doubl8d accounts ofePPmxdmately $912,000; and an Increase in accrued liabilities of approximately $1,a00p0. Also aflecung

	

.
capital were an Increase It notes receivable of approximately $500,000 Atao Capsule Ca namicadons
In accounts payables of approximately $0,495A00; a decrease In accrued salaries and wages of apprkadrrmtey
$313,000; and a decrease in current portion of long term debtof $234,000.The current ratio of 0.5 to 1, decreased from .the 0.8 to 1 ratio at the end of Fiscal 2M.

On Fabnrary21,2002, Covlataammcwxed the on Febmwy 20,2002; its BoedofDlrectora lad approved the
Pry sale of additional Common Stock of up to $12,600-000. The Investment will Include a cash h%mian of. '$4=M%tibutdon~of $3,300,000 of flnmd assets for debt or Common Stock and due convaalat of all axbttr,g
lonn debt for debt orCommon Stock to Common Block at the rate of$5.00 persham, which was the dosing price
for the Common stock on the date aut ortzed by the Board. The commilmen for funcng for the Investment and the
conversion of the Indebtedness b arnidpated 10 come primarily from the current Chairmen of COVISIa'9 Board or his
designee's and Is subject to shareholders approval at the next Annual Meeting, or a special meeting ofShareholders to
be convened for such purpcae. As of May 14, 2002, $2,600,000 of cash was received hum to Chairman of CoAsta's
Board In exchange fordebt. 'Finally, thecompany Isplanning to obtain a line dawn from a bank. g ouch Me of credit
Is hot obtained, the Chairman of the Board has committed to ksntng $2

million
to the Company through at tesat the

second quarter offiscal 2M4.

. Cash Flaw Statement

Accounts Receivable

The cash flow statement of Cmdata for Racal 2002 Indicated a decrease in cash and cash equivalents of
approximately $1,313,000 . Non-cash adjustments (deprecation, amortization, reserve for bad debt, morn-cash
compensation expense, and gain on Iwesbnenb,) of approximately $9,697,000 and net changes In assets and
Ilabiitties of approximately $1,690,000 added back to the net loss of approximately $11,970,000 resulted In net
cash used by operations of approximately $3,983.000 . Cash used In Investing activities amounted to approximately
$7,477,000, of'which approximately $5,465,000 were used for the purchase of capital additions and approximately
$56,000 was used for the purchase of additional circuits to build out the network, the proceeds from sale
Investments of approximately $116,000, a note from .Capsule Communications, a related party, of $500,000 and
payment for prepaid network capacity of $4,000,000. These additions were partially offset by proceeds from and
the sale of fixed assets of approximately $2,336.000. The cash used In financing activities of approximately
$10,126,000 consisted primarily of the repayment of bank borrowings of approximately $618,000, offset by cash
received from the exercise of stock options of approximately $43,000, proceeds from the Issuance of Common
Stock of $8,300,000, a note payable to a related party of $4,400,000.

The Comperry has entered into offset arrangements with certain customers,. who are also vendors,
allowing forthe ability to offset payable balances against the Company's receivable balances .

The retail segment of Covista experience an approximate accounts receivable turnover of 53 days;.while
the wholesale segment has an accounts receivable turnover of 64 days.

.

	

"

	

CRITICALACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue Recognit1cm

The Company's revenues, net of sales discounts, are recogntwd In to period In which the service la
provided, based on the number of minutes of telecommunications tratftc canted, and a rate per md,pts. Access and
ocher service tees charged to customers, typically monthly, eke recognized In the period In which serve Is provided.

Deferred Line Installation Costs .

.

	

Deferred tine installation costs are costs Incurred by the Covsta for new facilities and costs Incurred for
connections from within the Coviats's network to the network of other telecorrimurdcsdon suppliers (such as
Verizon, MFS, GTE and other carriers).

	

Amortization of these One Installation roits is provided using the straight-
!In* method over the contract life of the-dnes ranging from three to fiw yea's: . . -'

	

.
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The Company acawalb for to Impairment oflangdlved assetsand for leng4bied'asaeb do be deposed of bycwWuat6tg the canying value of fb Icng.ltrwd mob
In misden to the Operating Performance and ffcundISCOUntedash flows of the underlying businesses annually and when Ndicedans of Impairment are resent Lonbe dspased ct, ff any, ere evaluated in mlatton to to rat medzabb value, If ImPabmet Is Indicated, the amount of theimpairment b typkrsify catadated u~ng dbrxunted GNPocted tubas cash flows. The.,dbcount rate ~p6ed b these cashSome Is based an the Company's weighted average coat of capital . If the canying.value of the asset exceeds the bie .value of the assn, the difference will be charged to the results of operations In the period that itbe 4rpefnnem ocmmed.
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long-0vedasasaeb~thedoes
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

	

'

	

'

Capital expenditures for Fiscal 2002 totaled apprmdmately $8,4&5,000,,and were financed tram funds
Povided from CoWsta's working capital, sale and lease back of two switches, and a private sale of egwly, and a
loam The capW

CoWatas switches and switch aata~PmAnabiy $4.499,000 ;
network

anhardwareuupgrade* t
upgrades

computer network . .of approximately, $304,000 ; and fumlture, tbdures and "Wpmem for new sales offices of
aPProdmately $611,000, and other fumiWre and fbdures of $43,000 .

'

	

Capital expenditures for Fiscal 2009 am estimated at approximately $8,000,000 and are expected to befinanced from funds provided from Operations, and a cash Infusion of$4.800,000 from a related party of covWs_ -

hrflatlon -

	

, '

Since Inflation has slowed in meant years, Ccvsta does not believe that its business has been materially
affected by the relatively modest rate of price Increases In the economy. However, pressures in the Industry to
reduce prices, which have Impacted Covista In the past, am expected to continue. Also the telecomnnmtcstlons
kukmstry has recently experienced the'fallure of several businesses, some of which Ors Coviste'a wholesale
customer and suppliers . These failures not only have affected Covbta's FY 2002 maulb, but may impact future
msutb. Covista continues to seek Improvements in operations and efficiency through capital expenditures.
Expenditures to Improve the signaling system, Information systems end the local area network are expected to
result In operating costs savings, which could partially Offset any future coat Increases.

'

	

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Covista b' riot a party to any legal proceedings or the, subject of any claim tagardfng' er vironmental
matters generally Incldenbt to Its business. In the opinion of Management, compliance with. the present
environmental protection laws should not have a material adverse effect upon the financial condition of Covista

n'EM 7A.

	

duandtadve and cualtlallve Discioarrrea Ahout Market Fask .

	

'

	

.

Market rlsk"represents the risk of changes,in value qt a Anancial Inatrumeid, derivative or no* n-dadvadve,
caused by fluctuations In Interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. Covbta's cash and Investments
exceed long-tern debty'therefors, the exposure to Interest rate risk relates primarily to the marketable securdles
held by Covsta. Covista only Invests in Instruments with high credit quality whom a secondary madwt exists. .
Covists does-not held any derivatives related to is Interest rate exposure. Covista also maintains long4 ann debt at
.fixed rates. Due to the nature and amounts of Covbta's note payable, an immediate 1096 change In Interest rates
would not have a material effect In Covista'a results of operations over the next fiscal year. Covista'a exposure to
adverse changes in foreign exchange rates Is also Immaterial to the consolidated statements as a whale.
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' ITEM 1d

	

. 10Irectom and Executive Officers of Coviam

The directors and officers of Covista are as follows:

ITEM 9.

	

Chances in and DIseareements With Accountants an Aacommttna and Financial nom«....

Not applicable.

	

"

Covistas directors all serve for one year terms and urdil theirsuccessors are elected and quality. Ofcers serve at
the pleasure of the Board of Directors.

	

'

.

	

Henry G. Luken, 111 was elected a Director of Covista in February, 1989, and Chairman of the Hoard In
February, 2001 . Currently, he Is President of Mant Lake Properties, ins, a real estate development rims director
of Equity Broadcasting Carp., a TV network; a director of ACNTV, a home shopping company selling through TV; '
Managing Agent of Henry IV LLC, an aircraft aeles company. A co-founder of Telco Canununkations Group Inc.,
he served as Chief Executive Officer and Treasurer from Jlrly, 1993-to April, 1998, andChairman from July, 1993
to October, 1997. Mr. taken has also served as Chairman of T&tabs. Inc., a telecommunications biting firm . .
('Tel-Labs) since 1991, and as Chairman of Telco Development Group, hmo., a computer systems firm owned by
Mr. Luken, aloe, both of which entities he tararded. . .

"

WanAnderson was elected aDirector of Covista In February, 1999, andas Chairman of the Hoard in

	

'
November ,1999..He depped'down as Chairman in February, 2001. He has been Manager ofRevision U.C from
June 1998 to the pmsenk President and Chairman of Entree international Ltd (Financial Consulting Services) from
Juy, 1997 to the present; Chairman of Capsule Communkxtians, Inc, as ofApril 2001, Chairmen of Teleport UK
Ltd (Satellite Communications) from May, 1998 to the present; Chairmarrof EsplrkTelecom Group plc (Telecom
Services) from October, 1992 to November, lose andPmsmenq and Chairmen, Mid AtlanticTelecom (Telecom
Services), from May,1984 to December, 1 991 Mr. Andemon'It also a director of American Technology. Labs

	

'
(Network Equipment) andAquarius Holdings Ltd (Water Transport Systems) .

Leon Genethas served as aDirectorsince October, 1990, For more than the pastfive years; he has been a
partner hi Garret Realy, acommercial and Industrial real estate brokerage firm. He serves as amember ofthe Nafnal
Commerce and Industry Hoard forthe State of Iamel-Sonds OMmdzatlcn and is a shareholder, drector and caftan at
LPJ Communications, Iris, wtdch has earned conanisetone from Covista on the same basis as other Independent sales
representatives. See 'Certain Relationships and Related Transactions:

.- A John Leadt, Jr. was appointed PmMSnt and CX= Exaatirw Ofilcer and s-Dkactor-of b.vssta-on May--_
18,2000. He had been Senior Vice President of Sales at HTI Telecomm, hr., from December, 19991o May, 2000,

. Name' Ace Position -

HenryG. Luken III . . .40 Chairman ofthe Board'

A John Leach, Jr. 38 Director, President, Chief Executive Ofrtoer

Kevin Alward
V

36

.

gtddOperating Officer and Dirodor

JayJ. MOier 88 Director

. Nicholas Merrick 38 Director

Walt Anderson 46 Director

Icon Genet 70 Director

Donald Jones 88 Director , .

Thomas P. Gunning . 84 Treasurer, Secretary and Chief Financial Officer



-that,W. Leach was Vies President ofAgent Services at BTI Telecomm, from-December, 1989 toJune,1998: RegionalSales Manager of Mobilerromm (a Bet South Comparry) where he started th sales and rose to a .Ragionat SamManager
Pin May, 1986 to December, 1989 . . .

Board of Obuctors

JayJ. r4Iter, Esq. he nerved as a Dhecior etrrce 1S3. He he been a practicing amomey tbr mere than 36Yom In New,York He Is Chairman of the Board of AmTrusc Pacific Ltd, a New Zealand real estnte company. He to .

	

.
8190 a director of Technology Insurance Company, trrc, a PHIvlrler of various insurance products to the tachnotogyIndustry, and cartaf . of Is aflitstee. Mr. Miller has performed legal services on behalf of Cov191a .- See 'CertainRelationships and Related Transactions.-

Thomas R. Gunning was appointed Vice President, Secretary I Treasurer of Covlata in May 1999. Hawas '-appointed Chief Financial Officer in September, 1994 and served In that capacity unit may of 1999. He was againappointed Chief Financial Officer in May ot2000. He was appointed Sbastary of Covista In January of 1996. He
has served as Controller of Covlata since September, 1992 He Is a Certified Public Accounterd licensed by theStates of Now Yorkand New Jersey. From 1989 unIA)otr9ng Covif, W, Gurming was the SeniorAudit Manager.at Rosenberg Seleman & Company, a certMed public accounting flrmr From 1978 to 1989, he was Chid FinancialOfficer of FWaire, Incorporated, a travel wholesale operator. Prior to such time, Mr. Gunning held various positions
It both public andprlvate accounting firms.

Donald Jones recently retired from
his

position as Senior Vice President for Chapter Services of the '
American Red Cross, for which he worked since 1991. Poorto Joining the Red Cross, fytr. Jones was Deputy .
Assistant Secretary of Defense for Witery Manpower and Personnel Policy: Mr. Jones seared In the United States
Army for over 36 years and retired In 1991 with the permanent rank of Lieutenant General .

Nicholas Merrick currently some as President of bI Vernon Investments, LLC, an Investment company,
which he has served as President since January 2002. Mr. Mertick served as SeniorVice President andChief
Financial Officer of Telergy, Inc., a high-speed fiber optic communications network company, from May, 2000 to
July, 2001 . Telergy tied for,reorganization underthe bankruptcy laws in October 2001 and is currently In the
process of ilquidatlom Poor to joining Telergy, Mr. Merrick was Chief Executive Officer of Up2 Technologies, Inc. .
and Exerm6ve.Vice President of Excel Communications, each of which 19 a subsidiary of Teleglobe, Inc. (global
communications, e-business services), from 1998 until 2000. From 1996 to 1997, haves Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of Telco Comnnmicationa Group, Imo.. and from 1986 to 1996,he was Vice President of Corporate
Finance at the Robinson-Humphrey Company. Inc. and Managing Directorof R-H Capital Partners.

KevinA Alward was appointed Chief Operating Officer of Covista on March 29, 2001 and was elected a
director of Covista on July 17,2001. He had previously served Totarrel USA as President and Chief Operating
Officerfrom 1994 to 1998, when he left the company to become President of North America for Desda
Communications, Inc. (forrnery (mown as Econcphone, Inc.) and fib successor,bymerger, Mater, Inc. In April 2000,
he codounded Blink Data Corp., a telecommunlcatons and data services provider headquartered in northem New
Jamey, where he was President and Chief Executive Officer unit his return to Covsta.

CoNata'a Board of Directors currently consists of eight persons, two of whom are members of
management and sba of whom are non-managerrsrd directors . During the fiscal year ended January 31 . 2002, th'e
Board held two meetings, each of which was attended by 8096 ofthe directors then serving .

CovWs Board of Directors has Audit and Compensation Committees, but does not have a Nomlvning
Committee or a committee performing a similar function. The Audit Cdmmltee cunenty consists of three non-
manegemetd directors, Messrs. Nicholas Meelak, Donald Jones and Leon Genet. The Committee reviews, enayzas
and may make_recommendations to the Board of Directors with reaped to Caviata'a financial statements and controls .
The Committee has met and intends to meetfrom time to time with CoyWs Independent pubic accountants to monitor
their activities. The Compensation Committee consists of Messrs Henry Luken and Jay J. Miller and is charged with
reviewing and recommending the compensation end benefits payable to Cov19ta's senior ecactifs. Mr. Leach Is an
exrolHcio member of both the Compensation and AuraCommittees.



a



ITEM 11.

	

Executive Carnoenaeion

	

.

The mllumAng tale sob fort, the cornpensedott which t

	

paid dft the fscel years wed January 31, 2DM:2001.,md 20M to its Chief Executive Officer and m each w®mAlm olAcer of Covist or pan=.perfcrttdn9

	

rmmunemdcnexceeded $100,000, dining Covisa's OMW year endedJamey31,2001 Me

Summaty Compenaetlon Table

(2) '

See Option GrantTable below

$4,800 for term life imarance premiums.

Mr. Leach joined Covista on May 18, 2000. See part (e) for a discussion of 34. Leach's employment
agreement

Min emouat shown includes $250,000 in bonus due to Mr. Leach Jim 05101/()0 to 04130101 but not paid
omit Fy 2002 .

	

.

The amount shown represents Covisa's contribution under its 401(5)) Defined Cmpensation and
RethamentSavh~sPlanof55,250. n

no amount shown represents Covista's confn'budm under its 4010 Defmed Compensation and .
RetirementSavings flanof3346 and $13,tmo inre®borsmaotforcertain relocation expense.

	

. .

The amount shown repomuts Covista's rxn idbuton under its 401(Q Deferred Compensation and
Rethemeot Savings flan of $4,505 ; Covsta comQaay auto expenses of$1.7x; and Covista'a gmp major
medical benefit of54.800. ,

The amount shown represents Covista's man umkr. its 401(lia De&aed C

	

and
Retirement Savings flan of$4,460, 5?,167 for the me of a Company'svehicle fornaAud= purposes and
$4,800 forsumr& insuranceprcmhu&

The ammmt shown reprmmb .Covista's contribution under its 401M Dettsred CompematIm mud
Redremrmt Savingsflanof$4=$U79 farthemedfaComp~y's vehiclefor mn-business purposes and

The amnrmt shown represents Covista's conmbudon meter its 401M Dd=ed Compensation and
Retirement Savings Planof$3,56T.

. Namaand

:
.. Position

71amlYnr .
" mass

J Bab"m MORRIS (M S

A~f
cimpmudmswards enoteae .

1 .
Idmlaoh $300,000 i4000a(3) s 0 s 3M (4)Prmidmtmd 2001 1110,000 $ 0 $, 0 $13,346(3)CWdImemaim
otn«rcsi

" 756muP. 200X.-' '. $LW,000 ' "SLS,000 $, 0 ' S 11AS 16)
Claiming 2001 $14360 s 0 3 0 . S11,447 M

2000 s14oa00 $ 0_ $ 0 311,179 (s)

mesacreury

2002 $235e77 $104.167 S . 0 s 3,367 (g)tstdnPQ;ems
otnM



compensation Pursuant la Planar

In October, 1996, adopted Its 1996 Stock Option Plan and In February, 2000,adopted its 1999 Equity
Incentive Plan, and In February, 2002 adopted Its 2001 Equity Incentive Plan (the 'Option Plane'). The Option
Plane provide that certain options granted thereunder are Intended to quafy as 1ncentivv stock optiore within the .
meaning of Section 422A of the United States Intermit Revenue Code, while rion "qualiffed options may also be
granted under the Option Plans. Incentive stock options may be granted only to anploysee of Covleta, while non, .
qualified! options may be t

	

to non"exaecutlve directors, consultants and others as well as employem

The Option Plans may be adminlatered by the Compensation Committee of Covbta's Board of Directors,
CovMa has reserved 600,000 shares of Common Stock under the 1996 Option Plan and 760,000 shares of
Common Stock under Its 1999. Equity Incentive Plan, and 900,000 under Its 2001 Equtty'Incenllve .Plan for .
issuance to employees, officers, directors and eonsulfems ofCOWL

	

,

No option may be baaterred by an opttanee other than bywill or the laws of descent anddistribution, and
during the Netime of an optionee, an option may be exercised only by him . In the avert of termination of
employment otherthan by death or disability, the optiones wig have.one month (aubj)d to extension not io exceed
an addiditonai two moms) after such termination during which he may exercise his option. Upon termination of
employment of an opeonee by reason of death or permanent total disability, his option remains exeicsable for one
year thereafterto the extent ft was exercisable on the date of suchtern hhagon. No sImIlar gmtindon appites to nor,

"~uaWed.optiams. :

Options under the Option Planwmud be grantedwithin 10 yam croon the eftecdve .date of therespecive
Option Plan. incentive stock options granted under the Option Plane cannot be exercbed later than 10 yeas from
the date d grant. Options granted under the Option Plane permit payment of the wwdse price In cash or by
deliveryto Covista of shares of Common Stock already owned by the optlonee having-a tam market value equal to
the exercise price of the options being exercised, or by a combination of such methods of payment. Therefore, an .
optlonee may be able to tender shares of Common Stock to purchase additional shares of Common' Stockand may . .
theoretically exercise all of his stocc options with no additional Investment other than his original shares.

	

.

Any option which expires unexarcised or that terminates upon an employee's ceasing to be employed by
Covlata become available again for Issuance underthe Option Plans.

Forfurther Information related to stockcoon plans, referto Item 91n the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

	

-



.

	

+

	

(1)

	

Stock option granted under the 1996 Stock Option Plan. Vesting in six equal semi-amoal insrailmeots,
.

	

ngsixmonths fivmthodato of grant.

	

.

.

	

PsfmMail:pg~bEe
VahmAtAammed

OET10N GRANTS IN LAST FISCAL YEAR

The following table sets forth information concerning each exercise of a stack option during Covists's
'fiscal -yew ended January 31, 2002 y each of the Named Executives, and the number and value of unerercised
options granted by Covista held by each ofthe Named Executives on January 31, 2002

Aggregated Option $resdsa is Last FiscalYear
AndFundYear-EndOption Values

Camnerpatlonof Directors

For the fiscal year ended January 91, 2002, each director who was not an employee of Cevista was
anted 10 receive a d1rectots fee of $15:000 per year, and to be, reimbursed for out-of-locket expenses incurred in
connection with attendance at meetings. However, Measm. Anderson and Luken waived the right to receive such
compenaatbn, .

	

.

	

, .

	

.

Emolovment Contracts. Termination of Employment andCWoe of Control Ananaemerda

As'Covhita'aChlef Exec"Oflcaf, Mr. Leach hm,a three-year empiaymwdagreemwdwghCoviata
efectWe as of May18, 2000, pursuant towhich Mr. Leach was,patd basasalary atlhe rate of $300,000 per annum
during Oscal 2001. Pursuantto lids agreement, Mr. Leach was also entitled to mcahma signing bonus In the
amount of $25;000 to cover relocation andother expenses, butto date Mr. Lea hhas been paid only $16,000 of
this amount:Mr. Leach is also erdltied to receive an annual bones In an amount not to exceed 100 percent of his
these effective base salary.flawedupon Mr. Leach's attainment of enmrsl revenue and eam4ngs targetsmwag as
management goals set by ft. Board of Directors. Mr. Leach wasguaranteed am1nimumbonus payment of .
$150,000 during the first year of this agreement.

In connection with We appointment as Chief ExscuWe Officer of Covists, Mr. Leach wasgranted an option
underCovista's 1996 Stock Option Planto purchase 288,000 shares at Covista Common Stock. The option
grariad tat d. LeachwonscheduledWvest amapedal of dune years.Msbr,equal aemFannual
first ofwhich commencedon November 18, 2000 . The exerotae price for the option was $1425andwasbased on

. Ratesor Stae$
N®beratBamiHa 96otTatalOPIImISABe ' Apprecksou ]rah

.1T 0~ - GrameedtoEmplonesho
1MealXear

Bmefm
$

aphuaft
J~

A.Iehmlmeh 248.000(1) ' ' 18196 -- 3200 Peb 1 . 2006 $174.132 3261,322r,Kovin-Alvard . 710,000 14196 . . 5200 Mm30.M $107.70 $232410TbommP. G 21,000 _ 1396 .$240 Feb 1.2M6 S10.773 '523,201ThmmeP. Gomiog. 12.000 3.296 $9.69 Feb-1.2006 $14,611 $31,466

' . Number u(Seemide ValoedUnaadsed
Unda1]ftUdaadend IaAGMome7OpoooseARS

' 3hereAeipileed opaomefAReatfludYearEnd strsealTeargad'
Name OREaerdae VaatneRifted M adeo WbWr]maerdaabla hldUmexaehahle

Thaw P1. Gmmdmg .16100 5311.29 1&100/18,100 SlIQl19PS110.119



calculated based on the average dosing price ofthe Covista Common Stockfor the 40 trading days priorm May18, 2001 . In Hsu of adjusting the exercise price of Mr. Leach's options in the mannerprovided in his employment .agmonent, on February 1 ; 2001 Covista granted to Mr. Leach an option to purchase 288,000 shares of Covfata
Common Stock, vesting over a period of three years, In six equal semi-annual Installments, the first of which
commenced on August 1, 2001 . The exercise pits for the option is $2.00 per share andibased on the fair marketvalue of the Covista Common Stock an the date of grant. The option expires after a term of ten years

In the event of a'change of control' of Covlata, as defined In his empioymerd agreement, Mr. Leadm'e
' slack option, and similar benef If any,"bedeemed tovest In full on the effadii e date ofSuch change of
control. Pursuantto the agreement, a 'change of control' shall be deemed to accuis (Q any person' or 'group"
(as such terms are used In Sedans 3, 3(a) ; 9 and 13(d) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the" 'Acr)) other thanWalt Anderson, Aeviston LLC or any of their respective affilates becomesabeneficial owner (as
Such term Is used in the rules promulgated under the Act), dtrecly or Indirectly, of securities of Covlata representing
50 percent or more of the combined voting power of Covista'a then outstanding securities, (ii) a change in 'conbal-
of Ccvista (as such term Is defined In Rule 12b.2) shall have Cached; (ill) the ma)oriy of the Board of Directors, as
such emir Board of Directors wascomposed ae of May 18, 2000, no longer serve am directors of Covista, except
that there shag not be counted toward such majority who no longer serve as director'Mr. Leach orarty director
who ceased to serve either prior to the date of the change In control, for any reason, or at any, othertime due to,
voluntary meignation .(other than in connection with an event described In (iv) or (v) below), death, disability or .
temmInaOan for cause; (Iv) the stockholders of Covista approve a plan of complete liquidation of Covleta or an-

t egreemenbfor the sale or dfsposidon by Cavlata of all or substantially all of CcvisWs assets; or (v) the stockholders
-

	

ofCovista approve a merger orconsolidation of Covista wQh any othercompany, other than amerger or
consolidation which would result in the combined vdng pdwer of Covlata's voting securities outstanding
immediately prior thereto continuingto represent (either by remaining outstanding or by being convertedInto voting
securities of the surviving entity) mom than 50 percent of the combined voting power ofthe voting securities of
Covista or such surviving entity outstanding Immediately after such merger or consolidation; provided, however,
that nochange to control shallbe deemed to have occurred in any plan of liquidation. We of musts, merger or
consolidation provided in Qv) and (v) above to notconsummated In addition, artytransaction Involving a leveraged
buyout or other acquisition of Covista which would otherwise constitute a change in control, in which Mr. Leech
participates In the. surviving or successor entlly (other than solely as anemployee or consufarst) will not constitute

'

	

achange In control.

	

.

	

'

	

'

As Covista'a Chief Operating Officer, Mr. Award has a two-year employment agreement elfecltve as of
March 29, 2001, pursuant. to which Nit. Award is paid an annual base salary of $250,000. Pursuant to this
agreement, Mr. Award received a signing bonus In the amount of $24,000. Mr. Award Is also erdilled to receive
an annual bonus In an amount not to exceed 100 percent of his then effective base salary, based upon Coviata's
attainment of annual revenue and earnings targets as wag as managementgoals set by the Beard of Directors. Mr.
Awwards agreement provides that he shag receive the same percentage bonus as Mr. Leach. Mr. Award Is
guaranteed a minimumbonus'payment of $125,000 for each year of this agreement.

In connection with his appointment as Chief Operating Officer of Covista, Mr. Award was granted an
bption under Covista'a 2001 Equity Incentive Plan to purchase 250,000 shares of Covista Common Stack. The
option granted to Mr. Award vests over a period of five years. In ten equal semi-annual instagmeM the first of
which commencedon September 29, 2001 . The exerdse price for the option is $2.00.

In the event of a 'change of cordror of Covista, as defined in his employment agreement, Mr. Awards
stock option, and similar benefits, garty, shag be deemed to vest In full on the effective date of such change of
control. Mr. Award's employment agreement defines 'change of contror In the same manner as Mr. Leach's .
employment agreement, as described above.

Compensation Committee interlocks andbalder Participation

Jay J. Miller, a director of Covista, provided various legO services for Covssta during 1tsCa12002. 41 fiscal
2002, Covista paid $144,574 to Mr. Miller for services rendered qnd seemed duringflxal 2002. As of February 22,
2002, Covista had Invoices payableto Mr. Wartotaling $179,31,8. Covista believes that Mr. Mlles feeswere
reasonable for the services performed and were no less favorable to Covssta than could have been obtained from
an unrelated .third party.



of Covista for
followin
performance ddurindg~~fiscal~endJanuary31, 200,2.e

	

on was paid to e3oecuUVe otT

	

m. '

Compensation Phtloscphyar dApproach Gsnsmfly, Covista seeks to attract, retain and mothrais its evea1ff09M through a combination of base salary, Incentive awards based upon Individual pedonnance and stockoption awards under The Covista Communlaafions, Inc. 2001 Equity Incentive Plan and otherwise, The Board of
Directors believes that a substantial portion of the aggregate annual compensadco of each WIMadveofficershouldbe influenced by the performance of Covista and the IndNiduW contribution of the executive otflcer.

Base Sahmfes, The Board at-Dimetoni believes that the base salaries cr Coviaws executive officers for
1150012001 were generally below those for other comparable positions within the telecommunications service .
Industry and similar Industries. However, Covista places aWficad emphasis on incentive awards and stock option
grants as a means of motNattrig and rewarding ifs management. The Board of Directors believes thatthis *stogy
provides optimal Incentivesfor managemedto create long-term atornrholder value.

	

.

hwenfive CompensWon Payments. In addition to base pay, same of Covista'a scoter wmwrdvea

	

.
(Including 9s Chief 0mcuflve Officer) are edgible to receive bonuses andstockapdon awards. Bonuses end stock
apdana may be awarded, .based upon the individuel performance of each execupve Oft= at the 3010 discretion of
the Board of Directors. During the Fiscal Year 2002 John Leach received a cash bomrs of $400,000 of which
$250,000 was payable to Mr. Leach forthe period May 1, 2000 to April 30,2001 but not paid until FY 2002; Kevin
Alward received a bonus of $104,187; and Thomas Gunning received a bonue of $15,000. Stock option grants
made to the Named Executive Officers during fiscal 2002 are described In 'Optlen/SAR.Grants in Lest'Fiacal Year..

.

	

Compensafn of the Chief Mrsoullve Ofllcer.The compensation pollclea applicable to Coviata'3 Chief
amcudve Officer are similar to those applicable to Covtata's other executive officers. Mr. Leach hag a three-year
employment agreement with Covista effective as of May 18, 2000, pursuantto which Mr. Leach was paid base
salary at the rate of $300,000 per annum during fiscal 2001. Pursuant to this agreement, Mr. Leach was also . .
entitled to receive a signing bonus in the amount of$25;000 to cover relocation and other wPonses, but to date Mr.
Leach has been paid only $15,000 of this amounL Mr. Leach Is also entitled to receive an annual bonus in an
amount not to exceed 100 percent of his then effective base whey, based upon Mr. Leach's attainment of annual
revenue and eaming targets, aswell as management goals set by the Board of Directors. Mr. Leachwas
guaranteed a minimum bonus payment of $150,000 during the first year of this agreement

(THE RESTOF T1~S PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFTBum
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,.Hams and Address
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ITEM 12

	

Security Ownership of Dartahn Benencal Owners andManagemapt

	

'

SecWWOwnershlp.ol Certain Benefdal Owrrem The following table sets forth the beneficial
ownership of Covbta's Common Siocit as of April 30, 2bO2 by each person or group (mownby Coviste
to be the beneficial owner of five percent or more of the outstanding shares of Covista Common Stock.
Unless otherwise indicated, each such person (alone or with familTmembers) has sole voting and
dlspositive power with respect to the shares listed opposite such person's name.

	

.

	

.

	

.

Amount and Nameof
Bareeew ownershw1) , Chasm

KevinAAlward

	

1,255,779(3)

	

9.996
1.82. Powell Road
Allendale, w-07401

waRAhdaraon

	

2,ft3,f25(4)'

	

. . . 19.1%
' 2000 LStreet,N.W,4202
. Washbigton, DC 20038

' Wanan Feldnran

	

. .

	

.1,119,5780

	

8.9%
"45ASemworth Road
Clfn, w07012

	

.

Foundattonforthe International

	

.
Non-Governmental Development of Space

	

923,844(8)

	

7.3%
1023 310 Street NW

	

'
Suite 300
Washington, DC 20007

HenryG. Luken, Ill

	

4,531,133(7)

	

35.9%
400 Fairway Lane
Soddy Daisy, TN 37379

Except as oMeWse set forth In the footnotes to this table, all shares are benatially owned and sole . .
Investment and voting power to held bythe persons named above, to the best of Covista's knowledge.
Shares of Covista Common Stock subject to options that are currently .exercsable or exercisable within 80
days of December 11, 2001 are deemed to be outstanding end to be bensficallyy owned by the person
holding such options for the purpose of computing the .
percentage ownership of such person, but are not treated as.outstanding for the purpose of computing the
percentage ownership of any other person.

(2)

	

Based on 10,819.445 shares outstanding. . '

	

.

	

'

	

'
.(3)

	

Includes 25,000 shares of Covista CommonBtock Isarmble to Mr.Ahward under presently exercisable
options. Also hhcludes 1.88,518 shares of Covista Common Stock owned by trusts ofwhich Mr. AlwWa
minor children are beneiicades, as to which Mr. Alward disclaims beneficial ownership.Based an the
Schedule 13D jointly Mod by Mr. Alward and certain related entitles on November 18, 2001.

(4)

	

Includes 1,297,798 shares ofCovista Common Stock owned of record by Revision LLC, awholly owned
subsidiary ofGold & Appel Transfer, SA, as to all of which shares Mr. Anderson exercises sale voting
and deposithie power. Of the 1,297,798 shares owned of record by Revision LLC,1,179.732 are pledged
to Donald A Bums to secure aloan. Also Includes 725,329, shares owned bythe Foundation for the
International Non-Govemmerdal Development of.Space, ofwhich Mr. AnrlOrson Is the President enda
director. and as to which Mr. Anderson *claims bene8pal ownership. Based on the Schedule 13D/A
jointly flied brWakAnderson, Gold &Appel end.Revlalon an November 19,2001 . Notice has been
received from Mr. Bums legal representative that Mr. Anderson to In ddfauR of the loan agreement and
that Mr. Bums Isto exercise his rights ate secured party with reapedto the pledged shares.
Includes 300,000 shares of Covleta Cannon Stodt owned by TheWarren H.,Faldman Family LLC, as
to which shares Mr. Feldman disciatms beneficial ownership. Based on the Schedule 13DIAModby Mr.
Feldman on August 22 200f.
Of the 923,844 shares of Ccvista CommonStock ownedby the Foundation forthe International Non..
Governmental Development of Space, 703,529shares era pledgedto Donald ABums to secure a loan.

. Notice has been received from Mr. Bums legal representative that Mr. Anderson is In default of the loan
agreement and that W. Bums i to-exercise his rights as asc. =-ed prly x?th-respc1--1to .tthe pledged.	- . . .
shares .

	

'



Sawrity Ownership ofManagernee0he following table sofa forth as ofAprfl30, 2002, Informadbn concerning
the beneficial ownership of Covista Common Stock by each director, each nominee for election as a director, and

	

-each Named Executive, and foran direcom, director nominees and exectilve officers as agroup;.

Name and Adder

	

Amourd and Natum
P
of
ere

	

ge
of

of Batefldat Owner

	

Benefldat Owsfershipm

	

gass(2)

WakAnde -

	

.2,948,989((4)
Leon Genet

	

41,120
Thomas P. Gunning

	

r

	

82,300(5)
Donald Jones

	

,

	

5,000

W n Leach, Jr. . .

	

438,000(6)
G. Luken. l8

	

4;531,133(7)
Nicholas Merrick

	

' 100
JayJ. MMer-

	

35,400(8)
An directors, drectornonilnees end executive officers as a group
(9 persons) .	9,328,601(3}(7)

'Lose than one percent.

3)

10.0%
23.3%

74.0%

Except as otherwise set forth In the footnotes to this table, all shares are beneflclaily owned and sole
Investment and voting power la held by the persons named above, to the best of Covista'a knowledge.
Shares of Covteta Common Stock subject to options that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60
days of December 11, 2001 are deemed to be outstanding and to be beneficially owned bythe person
holding such options for the purpose of computing the
percentage ownership of such person, but are not treated as outstanding for the Purpose of computing the
percentage ownership of any other person.
Based on 10,819,405 shares outstanding
Includes 25,000 shares of Covista Common Stock Issrmbieto Mr. Alward underpresently wordsable.
options . Also includes 186,518 shares of Covista Common Stock owned by trusts of which Mr. Aiward's
minor children are beneficiaries, sato which Mr. Alward dadalms beneficial ownership . Based on the
Schedule 13D jointly filed by Mr. Alward and certain related entities on November 16, 2001.

Includes 1,297,796 shares of Covista Common Stack owned of record by Revision LLG, awholly owned
subsidiary of Gold 8 AppalTrerofer, SJ1., mo ell of which shares Mr. Andersen exerts sole voting
and diapasttlve power.a the 1,297,798 shares owned of recomt bll Reviaton LLC,1,179,732 shares are
Pledged o~orelk! A. Bumsoassns a loan. Covlata hm received notice tram Mr. Bums that the toes Is
in default end ft la Mr. Buma'.Intandon o take ownership of the Pledged shares Atao Inductee 725,329
shares owned bY the Foundeydan or the haematlonal Non-Govergmertfal Development of Space, ofwhich
tvtr. Anderson to ttte President anda direcor, and sso which Mr. Andereon dL4deMs beneNdal
ownerehip; Based an the Schedule 13D/A jdnuy filed bYWaftAnderson, Gold & Appal Revisian on

. November 79, 2001.

	

'
Inductee 37,000 shares of Covista Common Sock issuabie to Mr:Gunning Wider cunently exerolsabie
opdona. Does not Include 25,400shares owned by Mr. GunnInW 00euse.
Includes 192,000 shares of Covtata Common Stock issuabieo Mf. Leach under currently exercsable
.options.

	

. . .
Based on the Schedule 13DIA triad by Mr. Luken on April 13,2001 .

	

' .
includes 35,000 shares of Covida Common Stock Issus6le o Mr. Miner under cunandy exencisable
options.



ITEM 13.

	

Certain Relatiorwhlos and Related Transactions

A change In control of CoAste may be downed to have oceuned as a result of the foregoing transactions, as Waft
Andaman now cordrois 23.3% of the outstanding Common Stock and Henry G. Luken III now controls 38.9% ofthe
outstanding Common .Stodc .

	

.

	

.

Inc. were computed on the same beds asodarindependent agents retained try Cavists .

'

	

In August, 2000, Waft Anderson and two entitles controlled by ft Gold & Appel Transfer, SA and RevisionLLC, along with FINDS, entered Into a Stack Pledge Agreement with Donald 2t . Bums, which was subsequentlyamended In October 2000 (as amended, the "Sedge Agmemenl. Pursuant to the Pledge Agreement, Revhbn LLC .has pledged 1,178,732 ahem of Common Stock, and FINDS has pledged 703,529 ahem d Common Stock, to
secure a $13,000,000 keen made by Mr. Bums to Mr. Andamar, Gold & Appel Trander, SA and Revlelon LLC. Such
loan Is amently in .default end corsequeney Mr. Bums has voting power with reaped to the pledged shsiea. Were
Mr. Bums to foreclose upon the 1,883,201 shame of Common Stock pledged pursuant to the Pledge Agreement, whlah .
represent appradmately 16% d the cubstandng Common Stack- It could result In a change of control ofC~ Gold
:Appal has paw be* approwdmatey $4X0,000 of Principal on this Loan tram Mr. Bane.The omerd value offt ban
with accrued barest is apprmdmafely $9,250,000. CoMeta has received a nadllcalbn from M. Burns con8ming that n
b Mr. Bums' htentlon to take ownership ofthepledged sham.

	

,

On Febnmry 1, 2001, the , Board of Directors of Covhta authorized a Transec8on (the 'Stock leeuenes
Trensealorn Inva" the Issuance and sale of a total d3,500,000 snares of Common Stock to ft fckn" three
Persons Me 'Purchaseral In ft $monads Indicated: Kevin Alwamd,1=000 shares ; A. John Leach, 500,000 shares,,
and HenryQ Lukam III, 2,000,000 shares. Pursuant to ft rubs of the NASD, conmanmatlon d ft Stock issuance

' Transaction was subject to ft approval of CovieWs shareholders because Messrs. Leach and Luken kairrently were
' directors and offlcara .of Covif and, In addition, ft was expected that Mr. Alward would become an after of
Covista.

	

The transaction was approved at a special "holders meeting on March 29, 2001. The stock was
. .

	

laakred In
41,

, 2001 . .

	

.

	

.

	

.

JayJ. Miller, a Director d Covista, has Provided various legal services for Cavif during Flacal 2002. In Fiscal
2m2, Covbta paw $144,574 to Mr., haer for seMcas randerad and accrued for In Fiscal 2002. As of January 31,
2002, Covista owed Mr. Miller $178,318. Covisla belleves that M'. Miners fees were reasonable for ft services
performed and were no fees favorable to Covhta than could have been . obtained from an unrelated thbd party. In
February, 2002, Covista grantedto Mr. Miter 35,000 non"atatutary shares optlonable at $200 per ahem.

Leon Genet, a Director of Ccvlsle, has Provided agent servkxrs for Covista through Me wholly"ownsd .
Company, LPJ, kkc. . .Durimg Fiscal 2002. LPJ, Inc, was peld commisdom of $93,088. The commissions paid to LPJ,

Welt Anderson. a Dtrectoe of Covista, serves on the Board of . Dlrectota' of Capsule Communiealloma, as .
described In ITEM 10: ;Henry fL Luken III, the Chairman of the Board of- Covista Is a major stockholder of Capsule
Communications. Covista both purchases and sons services from Capsule Conmuniceticns, hr. Sales to Capsule In
Fiscal 2002 were approndmatey $816,000. Purchases tram Capsule were approximately $860.000. All transactions
were based on competitive term obtained on an area length bash. Covistahas subsequently merged with Capsule
Communications (see Item 1.

	

Everds).

Covista has entered into a lease agreement for 28,000 square feet of office ice In Chattm=9a.
Tennessee, with Henry G. Luken III who Is Covieba's Chairman of the Board and Its principal shareholder. The term of
the lease h faritveyears beginning September 1,2001. The lease provwee far annual rent d$88,400 from September
1 . 2001 to August 30,.2002; $115,200 from September 1, 2000to August 30, 2003; $144,000 tram September 1 . 2A08
to August 30 2004, with the last two years to be $144,000 annually adjusted for the Consumer Price Index Covista
believes that such premises are leased on ternssimilarto an ann's length trrsnsacttom



On July 2, M01 , Covista received a loan from Henry G. Luken III, Bs. Chairman of the Board and prtrtcipal
shareholder, In the amount of $4,000,000. The loan matures on February 1, 2W3 together with axwmdaoed Intermit ata rate of 7% per annum. The proceeds of the loan were used to purchase a 10"ar commliment for approodmately 28boon DS-0 channel miles of telecommunications network capacity from an unaffiliated party. The uralllliated petty hasrecently Red for Chapter 11 reorganization; however at the time of Nits filing is continuing to perform under the
ag Mr. Luken also advanced the company $400,000, the proceeds of which were tow for cormtrucgcn of
now facillives

On February 1, 2001, the Board at Directors of the Company, subject to perfunctory shareholder's approval which
was obtained on March 29, 2001, sufriiedthe sale of a total of 3,500,000 shams of Common stock-to the
following three persons (the 'Purchaseml In the amounts indicated : Kevin Alward,1,000,000 shares ; A. John
teach, 500,000 shares; and Henry G. Luken, III, 2,000,000 shares. The purchase price for the Common Stock to
be Issued to Messrs. Alward, Leach and Luken Is $2.00 per shake, based on the fair market value of shares at
February 2, 2001 . The stock sale was consummated In April 2001 with the Issuance of 3,150,0)0 shares of
Common Stock. The Board of Drectom autharlzed a decrease of 360,000 shares to be purchased by Mr. Leach.

On Febtuery 1, 2001, the Board at Dheciors d the Company autmrizedthe acgkdsiton of Blink Data Cafporaticn ;
a telecommunicationscompany, of which Kevin Alward was a principal shareholder, officer end director, for
300,000 shares of the Company's Common Stock valued atthe fair marketvalue at March 28, 2001, for total
consideration of $900,000 . The transaction was completed on March 29.2001.

On July 24, 2001, the.Compary issued a note receivable to Capsule Communhrstiona, him of which a director and
the chairman of the Company are principal shareholders. The note was for a total prkhdpal of $200,000 whiz
Interest payable of 8 39% to be paid no later than July 24,2002 On August 9, 2001, the Company Issued a note
receivable to Capsule Communications, Inc. The note was for a totaLprindpal of$300,000 with Interest payable of
8'14% to be paid no later than August 9,2002

On August 31, 2001, Covista ordered Into .a transaction with Applied Financial Corp. an unai8llated firm
Involving the sale and leaseback of a telecommunications switch . Covista realized proceeds of appro:dmatety
$1,250,000 from the sale potion of the transaction, and agreed to lease back the switch for a three-year period at a
cost of approximately $420,000 per annum. Henry G. Luken, )is. provided an unconditional guaranty of Covtsta's
payment obligations to Applied Financial under the lease . Covista did not compensate Mr. Luken for provkiing
such guaranty.

. .

	

(THEREST OF THIS PAGE INTENf10NALLY LEFT BIANK)



SIGNATURES ,

	

,

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchan6 Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly Caused this Reportb be signed an Is behalf by the undersigned, thereurdo duly sufrtzed, on the tikeenth
'day of May, 2002

	

'

By. l3l Henry G. Luken 111
Henry G. Luken 111

Chairman of the Board

COVISTACOMMUNICATIONS, INC. '

Pursuant to the "regolrements of the Securities Exhange Act of 1934, this Report hasbeen signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrantand Inthe c5pacides and on the dates Indicated.
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HenryG. ukarr III

	

Chairman ofthe Board

	

, May15,. 2002
H
en
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n

III
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.

	

,

I51WakAnderson

	

Director

	

May 15, 2002
WattAnderson

1S/ Kevin Alward

	

Director,

	

May15;2002
Kevin Alward

	

Chief Operating Officer

ISI Leon

	

net..

	

Director

	

May15, 2002
Leon Genet_

ISI Donald Jones

	

Director

	

May15, 2002
Donald Jones

	

. .

	

.

/S/A. John Leach

	

'

	

.

	

Director. President'and -

	

' May15, 2002
A. John Leach

	

'

	

Chief Executive Officer

	

.

- /SI Mcholas.Menidc

	

Director
' ,

	

Nkholas Mertldi '

	

-

	

' .
-

	

May15, 2002'

L51Jav J. Miller

	

Director

	

.

	

May15,2002
Jay J. Miler

	

.

	

. .

/S1Thomas P. Gunning

	

Vice President, Treasurerand *

	

May 15, 2002
Thomas P. Gunning

	

Secretary. Chief Financial Officer
and Principal Accounting Officer

	

,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT'

Board of Dloacom endShareholders

	

'

	

.
CmistaComa, Ins
180 Clove Road

	

'

	

'

	

.

	

.
We Falls, NewJersey 07424

We have mudifed the ao mnparrying caroo8dded balance attests of CoNf CarrnuNcaftM Ins and-sobakllades
" phe'CampsrA as of January 31, 20¢ and 2001 . and the relatedconsolidated statements, of toss and ramprelienaim

' 'Aces, shareholders' eqL V, end cash Am for each ofthe.Hues years In the period ended January 31,20M out suf
also Inchdbd the consolidated financial statement ache" Rated In the Irdmc at Item 14(a)o 7hem opnealldated
ilnandal statements and Mandw statement sdmWb are the reahmrwtht of the Companyra manapmend_ our,
iseponsibARy Is to express an opinion an these consolidated financial- statements and financial statement schedule .

. based on our audits

We conducted our audits m accordance with auditing standards generally .accepted In the United Slain of America.
. 7hcae standards require to we plan and perform the audit 10 obtain reasonable . assurance abort whether the'
consolidated ftrtenclal . statements ere tree of material mlestateri" An audit inchud~ wmmhhrg, an a teat bests,

. . evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures In the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes
assesdrig the accounting ptnciplesmsod end a~nHEoant safetas made, by management, as well as evaluaf t o
overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion .

	

.

In our-opinion, such consolidated 9namiai aMINements present fairly, In a8 material respectsy'the tinendai position of
Covista Com nuntedens, Inc. and subabciades as of January 31, 2002 and 2001, and the resub of their operations
and their cash'Aows for each d the three years In the period ended January 31, 2002 In comomdy with a=Wi lling
principles generally accepted o the United Shoo of America. Also. In our opinion, much financial statement schedule.

' when considered in relation o the basic conmlldated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly; in d
matedei respects the IntornteBon set arch therein .

/a/ DELOITm & TOUCHE LLP
NewYork, Now York
April26, 2002
0vlay 14.20M ano Hate 21b)



CURREN[ASSEFS. .

	

.
Cash and osh egtiivaleids

t A81 to 3AND $AREHO

	

ERE'EQUITY

comSTAcommumcATiow iNc. ANDsuBsomEs
' CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

3ANlIARY 31, 2002 AND 2001

Unearned ESOP shares

	

.
Trea5M stodtiat aut-1,536,419 dom in 2002 and 2001, respettlv*
Ammulated ottrer comprehensive Income ,

	

.

.

	

Total shareholders' equity

1,379,038

	

$ 2,691,689

CURRENT LIAfiILIrIES

	

.
Accounts payable

	

$ 19,465,274

	

$ 27,960,046
Outer current and accued Ifab0ries

	

" 4,431,012

	

1~

	

.
C
Salarles
urrent portion ofI~debt

	

391.405 .	615,053

Total current OabBides

	

25.272.456

	

32.714.474

Other long-term IlabOldes

	

15.966

	

. .	223 .798

debt

	

, .

	

.

	

4.400.000 ,	382 .047 .

Comm6merttsand coffingencles (Note 14)

	

.

SHAREHOLDt3t5' EQUBY:
Common Stork, parvalue $.05 per share; audiarhed 50,000,M0

	

'
shares,-Issued 12,385,757 shares in 2002 and 9,505,624 shares In 2x01

	

61§,M

	

475,291 .
Additional pakHn capital

	

, -

	

25,650,

	

8 .

	

30,016,454
Accumulated deftR

	

. nor

	

iOA : .	- .(l1~55191

" ."3,014,279 . '

	

19,206,226
- (12X5,000) . :

( 1,445,440)

	

(1,41307

1.ss9.s39

	

_ 5.777:093

~ ai 75s791 12=9

Invesbmanis available forsale " .
Trade,aaout ts receivable (net ofa0owince Ibr doubts
accounts of ($4,987,130 and$4,075,223 In 2002 and 2001,
respectively)

Napes ble .
Prepaid experues and other current ; ssets

439,773

10,252,837
1-7$03,70

537,007

20,526,178

"L~:~63

Total ementaaets 19,945,428 24,980,537

. .Property,and equiparett net . . 12,489,626

.

19,020,579

Deferred One Installadon costs (net ofaccumulated amrdrsdmt
of $843,049and $745,353 In 2002 and 2001, respedJvely) ', 174,785 216,672

Otheras s'(net ofaaumulabed:ammWdon of $ 646,452 and $ 33,761
.In 2002 and 2001, respectively. . " 4.646.952 M-614

s ,at . x 3q.097.4n2



OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NETOF TAX
Unrealized hoWing gain

	

'

compmENSNE LOSS

BASIC LOSS PERCOMMON SHARE '

.

	

Dll1rrEl) LOSS PER COMMON SHARE
i
r

See notes to consolldeted financial statements .

.

	

COVWACOMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF LOSSAND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

YEARS ENDED 3.ANUAR7 31,2002,2001AND.2000

2994

NETSALES

	

195.312.696

	

" S L33130 .43'_7

	

S 139.760.497

CObfSAND
CAA'of sales

	

76,475,802

	

116,054,Q02 '

	

112,794,378
A

	

dwgesettlemeat (Note 18)

	

-

	

(1,264,483)

	

-
SeWng, general and a&nlnistradve (exduding
stock.-compensation)

	

g0,g86,877 26,902,962 27,990,145
Restructuring

dogs

	

-Odw
Sbxk

w(Nomm ).

	

"5,770,534
co on

	

)

.

12A11

	

266565 .	204

Totalcosts'and expenses

	

.

	

.

	

107,474,690

	

141,964,046.	146,440,213

OPERATING LOSS

	

(12.161.9941

	

f8.733.fi091

	

(6579.7161'

OTHERINCOME (EXPENSE),Interest
kwornm

	

159,996

	

167,583

	

115,119
Other income

	

274,466

	

41,994

	

1,105
Inberest expense

	

_

	

.

	

(242.0561

	

"(105.272)

	

(147.0921

Total when income (tense), nwt ' "

	

192.406

	

104,305

	

(30.s6a)

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES

	

. '

	

(11.969.588)

	

(8.629304) (6.710_5841

INCOME TAX PROVISION

	

2.203.618

NETLOSS

	

(11.969.5881

	

(8.629.3041

	

(9 .414.20)

79531 61.055

x_(11064.5881 . S 18549.7731

	

! l4~4e71

Il_171 ~ (1.181 ! (1.331

f~171

	

3

	

6.181 "

	

,5,~

	

(1.3y . .



3ANUARY 31, 2000

	

474,465 .

hold ng gate

	

"

	

-
employee Stock options / giants
P shares for

	

assother es
f stockgrants

	

'

	

.

1 corisoldated tbuurdal atalemsMa

COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES .
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTSOPSHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

YEARS ENDED3ANUARY 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

. .

	

.

	

13,380
- (270)

Retained

	

Accumulated

Additional Earnings

	

Unearned Other
Paid-In

	

(Accumulated

	

Tremry

	

- ESOP . Compt+abensive
.

	

Capital . Defidtl

	

Shams Inca,"
IANWIRY31,1009

	

$

	

455,739 $ . 22,809,518 $

	

6,757,987 $ (1,456,781) $ (12;225,000) $

	

100,721

	

$
rolling gain

	

. .

	

-

	

-

	

-

	

61,055
mployee stockoptions

	

18,727

	

1,780,422

	

-

	

-

ibuNon (NOTE 12) .

	

,

	

,

	

-

	

250,000
eit (NOTE 12)
stodtgrants

	

-

	

-

	

(1,769),. : -

	

-

(9.414.102) ' -
(2,656,215) _ (1,458,550) (12,225,000)

	

161,776
79,531

29,710,494

135,187
170,773

"

	

(8.629 "3041

	

s

	

' (8.629.3041

3ANUARY31,2001

	

" ' . . . 475,291

	

. ,30,016,454

	

(11,285,519)

	

(1,445,440)

	

(12,225,000)

	

'

	

241,307 .

	

5,777,093

una?Stndc

	

157,500 6,142,5

	

6,300,000

eMPIoyee stockoptions/ grant .

	

1,497

	

41,944

	

43,441

'shares forother 8450M

	

15,000

	

885,000

	

-

	

-

	

-

	

-

	

900,000

19W
16,442,184

61,055
1,799,149
250,000

4,870,554
(1,769)

(9.414 "2021
14,006,971

79,531
136,012
184,153

(270)

i ofrmp

	

(30;009) .

	

(12,195,000)

	

-

	

_

	

.

	

.

	

'

	

1t,22S,000 .

	

.

IStock Giants

	

. .

	

759,200

	

.

	

_

	

_

	

.

	

:

	

759,200

hi on sale of Investments

	

(241,307)

	

(241,307) .
' '

	

(11.969 "5881

	

-

	

(Il.969.5881

3ANUARY 31, 2002

	

s

	

619.288 t

	

2

	

4

	

12 .255.1071 S0.4401 s

	

- s

	

s



COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED3ANUARY 31,2002,2001 AND2000

CASH RMFROM OPERATINGACi1VITIES:
Net lass
Ad)usbnents to reco4e net loss to net
cash (used In) provided by operating activities: .. : . -

m02

$ (11,969,SM

.ZQ4i
$.(a,629,304)

. 3!144

$ (9,414,202)

.
Depredadan and amortization 4,568,631 3,577,995 2,985,359
Provislonfar'doabW accounts . 5,382,384 2,346,761 ' 1,074,916
Non-cash stock compensation mcpense 12,011 266,565 5,324,$69
Deferred Income taxes a _ - 2;703,618

9 (credit) charge, net of cash Paid - - (318,879)
Loss an disposal of property-and egrdpma t -_ 88,690 16,136
(Gait) loss an sale of Investments (265,733) - 5,317
Change In assets and IpbMdes-,
(Increase) decrease in assets
Trade a=unts recemabie . .4,890,957 789,518 (6,004,893)
Prepaid erpenws and otherc9rrent.assds 251,683 1,339,568 (305,546)
Other assets - . (164,300) . ' (293,584). 52,536

Increase (decrease) In liabilities:
Accounts payable (8,494,772) 3,157,678 4,102,224
Other current and accrued liabilities . . 2,039,621 (558,312) (110,787)
Other long-term llabilities . 208.3221 (26.744) (43 .9681

Net cash (cued in) provided by operating aetWes ($.963.428) . 2.064.148 61.183

CASH ROWS FROM INVESTINGACTIVITIES:

RdA~etr acquired In purchase of Mink Data Corporation . . 90,402
Proceeds from sales and maturities of
investsavailable tdr sale (net) 115,529 86,788

Purdhmes-of property and equipment (5,465;329) (3,227,593) (3,018,710)
Proceeds atom sale of property and equipment and leaseback transactions 2,338,038 1,975 17,216
Notes receivable from related party . . (500.000)

Payments for deferred line InstailaCon costs (55,809) (47,621) . . (55,232)

Payments fot prepaid network capaay (4,004,000) .
CaIleUlanon napes recallable from employees , .. . 45.402

Netcash used In imresting+activities ' . (7.477.1691 ('3.186.451) (3,011.24)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: " ..
Promeds from the issuance of Common Stock .6,300;600

Proceeds (tom Stocit Options exerdsed -. 43,41 8,437 1,799,149.
Note payable to related party ' - 4,400,000 .

Repayment on bank borrowings .. (615.6951 (5§6,71.1) (526.4211

Net cash provided by (used I njltnandnq acCvfties 10.127.746 (560.2871 1.272.728
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COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF -CASH FLOWS
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NETDEOMM IN-CASH MID
CASH EQUNALEMS 5(1 12.851) ' $(1,682;590) $(1,677,413)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, . . .

BEMNNING OF YEAR 2.691.889 4.374,479 6.051-892

CASH AND CASH WUlVALENTS,
END OF YEAR 147q,p~g !_ 2_60t_8B9 ~4~a~7a



1. NATURE OFOPERATIONS

COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THEYEARS ENDED JANUARY 31, 2007, 2001 AND 2000

CovWa Communications, . Inc (Yovisia7, and its wholly-owned . subsldlarles #pilecthrely, 'the
"Company°) operates as a switch based resale common-taller providing twenty-flour hour, seven day a .
week, domesticand international long distance belemmmunlcatlcns service to customers throughout the -
United States . The Company's principal customers are primarily businesses and other common carriers .
On September 15, 2000, the Company changed its name from Total-Tel USA CanmunkaUons, Inc. to
Covista Communications, Inc.

2.

	

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES,

Prlndples of Consolidation - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts . of CovLsta . .
Communicatlens;'Inc and Its subsidiaries, all of which are wholly~wned. All Interoompany, transactions

	

,
and balances have been eliminated In the consolidated ftnandal statements .

Revenue RecngnAGlon- The Companys revenues, net of sales dtsmunts, are recognized in die period In
which the service Is provided, based on the number of minutes of telecommunications traffic canted, and a
rate per minute. Access and other service fees charged to customers, typically monthly, are recognized In
the period In which service Is provided .

Properfyand Equipment- Property and equipment are stated at cost Depredation and amortlzadon '
Is being provided by use of the straight-line method over the estimated useful INes of the related
assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the tern of the lease or the useful

'

Deferred Llne'2hshrHation Casfs-The Company defers drarges from other common carriers which
cover the cost of installing telephone arananis ion fadOtles (lines) . AmordatIon of these costs Is
provided using . the straight-One method over the corbad life of the lines ranging from three to .five
year's .

Caslomer LIS& - Customer lists, included In other asseb, represents the fair value of the customer
base acquired and is being amortized using an accelerated method over a period of 3 years. The
mnying value of the customer list is-reviewed on a quart* baste for the existence of fads or

. circumstances, both Internally and externally, that may suggest Impairment During fiscal year 2001, the
Company acquired a customer list through the Issuance of 14,234 shares of treasury stock valued at the
fair market value of the Company's Common Stock an the date of the transaction. During fiscal year
2002, the Company acquired a antomer t through an acquIsItton by Issuing 300,000 shares of Its
Common Stock at the fair market.value of the Company's Common Stock on the date of the transaction.
The excess of the purchase price over the net assets of company acquired were allocated 100% to the
customer OsL

Uves of the asset . _

The estimated useful lives of the principal classes of assets

Classificadon

are as follows:

Years

ery equipment 5-10
Office furniture, oct and equipment 7-10
Vehicles . 3-5
Leasehold Improvements 2-10
Computer equipment and software 5-7



. COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FORTHEYEARS ENDED 3ANUARY 31, 2002,2001, AND 2000

Use ofEsGImates- The preparation of consolidated financial stabwnettts in codormity with gen~al
accepted accounting principles .requires management to make esthates and assumptions .that affed
the reported amounts of assets and dabfiities, the disclosure of contingent assets and QatiilRies at the
date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

	

.

Coneenbatron9 or Coed! Risk- The Company sells Its telecommunications services and products .
primarily to small to medium size businesses and wholesale customers . The Company performs ongoing .,
credit evaluations of both its retail and wholesale customers. The Company generally does not require
collateral, . however when circumstances warrant, deposits are required . Recent conditions in the'
telecommunkatfons industry have given rise to an Increase In potential doubtful accounts . Allowances ,
are maintained for such potential credit losses. The Company has entered Into offset arrangements
with certain of Its customers, who are also vendors, allowing for the ability to offset receivables against
the Company's payables balance.

	

,n

Lassper Share - Basic loss per share Is represented by net loss available to .common shareholders
divided by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted, loss
per share reflects the potential dilution that.could occur If securities or stock options were amrdsed or
converted Into Common Stock during the period, If dilutive (see Note 15).

ALIhorhed Common Stadt- On February 23, 2000, the Companys shareholders approved an
Increase in the number of authorized shares of Common Stock from 20,000,000 to 50,000,000 shares.

Cash and Cash EgrdWerr&-The Company considers all highly liquid Investments purchased with an
original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash on hand, demand deposits and money market accounts.

Fair Value Of Fhmndal Inshvmeots - For cosh and cash equivalents, the carrying value is a
reasonable estimate of Its fair value. The estimated fair value of publicly traded financial instruments is
determined by the Company using quoted market prices, dealer quotes and prices obtained from .
Independent third parties . For financial Instruments not publicly traded, fair values are. estimated based
on values obtained from Independent third parties or quoted market prices of comparable hrstrpments.
The fair value of the debt was determined based on interest rates that are currently available to . the
Company for Issuance of debt with similar teens and remainiag maturities for debt Issues that are not
traded on quoted market prices. However, judgment is required to Interpret market data to develop the
estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates are not necessarily. Indicative of the amounts that
could be realized in a current market exchange.

The carrying values and fair values of financial Instruments are as follows:

2002
Carrying
Value

; . Fair
Value

2001

Value Value
Assets :
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,379,038 $ 1,379,038 $ 2,691,889 $ 2,691,889
Investments available far sale $ 439,773 $ 439,773 $ 537,007 $ 537,007

tlablMes:
Debt

, _ . . . . .
$ 4,781,405 $ 4,781,405 $ 997,100 $ 997,100



' COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES . .
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont(nued)
FORTHE YEARS ENDED JANUARY 34 2002, 2001 AND 2000

longMvedAwetr- The Company accounts for the Impairment of long-lived,ts and for long-livedassets bo be disposed of by evaluating the carrying value of Its long-lived assets In relation to theoperating performance and Aftre undkcounted cash flows of the underlying businesses annually andwhen Indications of Impairment are present. long-lived assets to be disposed of, if cry, are evaluatedIn relation to the net realizable value. if Impairment Is Indicated, the amount of the Impairment istypically calculated using discounted expected future ash flows. The discount rate applied to these cashflows is based on the company's weighted average . cost of capital. If the camylng value of the asset
exceeds the fair value of the asset, the difference will be charged to the results of operations In the
period that the Impairment occurred .

Recent Aaromrtlng Pronomraementr - Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SEAS) No.
133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, Is effective for all fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2000. SFAS 133, as amended, establishes accounting and reporting standards
for derivative instruments, including certain derivative Instruments embedded in other contracts and for
hedging activities. Under SFAS 133, certain contracts that were not formerly considered . derivatives may
now meet the definition of a derivative. The Company adopted FAS 133 effective February 1, 2001 . The
adoption of WAS 133 did not have a significant Impact on the financial position, results of operation, or
cash flows of the Company.

	

.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB-) Issued Statement of Rnandal
Accounting Standards No. 141 ("SFAS 141"), "Business Combinations.' SFAS 141 requires the purchase
method of amounting for business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 and eliminates the
pooling-of-interests method. Covista does not believe that the adoption of SFAS 141 will have a
significant Impact on Its financial statements, beyond the cessation of goodwill amortization on future
business combinations . As of January 31, 2002 Covista has no Goodwill recorded on Its books .

In June 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 ('SFAS 142-),
"Goodwill and Other Intangible Asses-, which Is effective February 1, 2002. SFAS 142 requires, among
other things, the discontinuance of goodwill amortization . In addition, the standard includes provisions for
the reclassification of certain extsling recognized Intangibles as goodwill, reassessment ofthe useful Ives of
edsting recognized Intangibles, reclassification of certainIntangibles out of previously reported goodwill and
the Identification of reporting units for purposes of assessing potential future Impairments of goodwill. SEAS
142 also requires Covista to complete a transitional goo" Impairment best std mor ths from the date of
adoption. Covista is currently assessing but has not yet determined the Impact of SFAS 142 on its financial
'postion and red of operations.

In August 2001, the FASB Issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143 ("SEAS 143'x,
"Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligatlane, which Is eve for

all
fiscal years beginning February 1,

'2003: WAS 143 requires mcording the.fahr valueea labilRy far an asset retirement obligation in the period .
In which tt is Incurred, and a corresponding Increases In the carrying value of the related long"Nred asset
Over time, the IlabllRy 15 accreted to its present value each period, and the ..capitabed cost Is depredated
over the useful life ofthe related case. Upon settlement of the Uablilly, R Is elther sled for its recorded
amount or a gain or lass upon sit Is recorded. CwLsta is currently assessing but has not yet
determined the Impact of SEAS 143 on Itsfinancial position and results of operations.



In October 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, 144 ("SFAS 144'), "
Amounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long Lived Assets', which is effective February 1, 2002.' SFAS 144 replaces the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 121, Amounting for the
Impairment of Long Lived Assets and for Long4Jved Assets to be Disposed OF. SFAS 144 requires that
Jong-lived assets be measured at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value, less cost to sdi,
whether included in continuing operations or In discontinued operations. CovLsta is currently assessing
but has not yet determined the Impact of WAS 144 on Its financial position and results of operations.

3. SEGMENT REPORTING

. .The Company sells telecommunicatlcn services to two distinct segments : a retail segment, - gonslsting
primarily of small to medium size businesses within the Northeastern United States, and a wholesale

. segment, with sales to other telecommunications carriers.

	

'

In addition to direct costs, each segment Is allocated a proportion of the Company's operating
expenses, including utilization of its switch and fadlides . The'aliocation of expenses is based upon the
minutes of use flowing through the Company's switching network. There are no-intersegment sales. , .
Assets are held at the consolidated level and are not allocable to the operating segments. Management'
evaluates performance on operating results of the two business segments.

Summarized financial information concerning the Company's reportable segments is shown in the
following table .

COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued
FORTHEYEARS ENDED 3ANUARY 31, 2002, 2003 AND 2000

Retail Wholesale Total
2002
Net sales $ 47,423,502 $ 47,889,194 $ .95,312,696
Gross margin $ 18,021,471 $ 815,423 $ .18,836,894
Operating loss $ (7,013,376) $ (5,148,618) $(12,161,994)

2001
Net sales $ 53,487,012 $ 79,743,425 $133,230,437
Gross margin $ 13,082,019 $ 5,353,899 $ 18,435,918
Operating loss $ (6,541,566) $(2,192,043) $ (8,733,609)

2000 ' . '. . .
Net sales $ 69,623,194 $ 70,737,303 $139,760,497
Gross margin . $ 20,712,262 $ 6,253,857 $ 26,966,119
Operating ) ' $ (3,905,664) $ 2,996,502. $ ( 909,162)
Operating (toss) Income after other compensation , $ (6,760,900) ' $ 81,184 $ (6,679,716)



COVwA CCMANiumcATIONS, INC. AND SUESIDIARIES
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cacwtinued)
FORTHENEARS ENDEDJANUARY 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

4. INVESTMENTSECURITIES

Investments avallable flor sale consist of:
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The deferred tax on the net unreabed gains at January 31, 2002 and 2001 were $0 and $0, respectively;
" renulting In net amounts of $0 and $241,307 In Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income.

The bond will maturein 2005.
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Depredation and amortt2atlon expense related to property and . egipment far. . the years ended .
January 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, was $3,658,244, $3,433,004, and $2,862,151, respecively.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of:

2002 . 223
Machinery and equipment $ 17,064,974 $ 16,429,970
Office,furniture, fixtures and equipment 2,672,237 2,755,736
Leasehold Improvements 1,497,811 1,375,200
Vehicles 181,256 181,256
Computer equIpment.and software 7,325,243 . 6,881,624
Machinery and equipment in progress 2.102.895 93.339

30,844,416 , 27;717,125
Less accumulated depredation and ainorth2tlon 18.354.790 14.696.546

12.489.626 I 1_3420_S79
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INCOME TAXES .

The prov tien (benefit) for incometamIncludes the fbiliw+ing : ,

. Federal
Current

	

$
' Deferred

	

-

	

1,893,850 ,:
'State Income taoaes

	

'

	

'
Current
Deferred

	

eo9.768

Deferred Income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for finandal reporting purposes and the amounts used for Income tax
purposes. Valuation allowances are provided against assets that are not Igmly to be malted.

The Income tax effects of significant Items camprtdng the Company's net deferred tax asset (I1abliity)

COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FORTHE YEARS ENDED 3ANUARY 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

2002

are as follows:

. S.urrent
2002

Lonc-term .
2001

.Current Lone-term
Deferred tax assets: .
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 1,991,860 $ - $ 1,516,570 $
Accrued compensation expense . - 268,130 -, 597,480
Unamorthed lease Incentive 89,380 -
Accrued expenses 332,560 77,180 -
Netoperating loss carryforward 10,877,719 - 6,566,190
.Alternative minbnurn tax aedit ' 593,940 ' 593,940
Other 74550 _

' Total grassd tax asses 2;398,970 . 11,739,789 1,593,750_7,8&#6,990
Less: Valuation allowance .398.9701 (90,179) x],593.7501 15.812.7901

Total 'net deferred taxasset 2.209.610 ' 2.034.200

Deterred tax Iiabpittes :
Property and equipment (2,209,610) . .- (1,937,820)
Other . 196.3801

Total deferred tax (iabilfdes (3.209.6101 - ,12.034.2001

Netdeterred tax asset (liability) $ -
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LEASE COMMITMENTS

COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) .
FOR THEYEARS ENDED JANUARY 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

A reconciliation from the U.S. statutory tax rate of 34% to the effective tax rate for Income taxes on the
consolidated statements of (toss) earnings Is as follows :

. . x002 2001 or
:Computed expense at statutory rates

	

$ (4,069,660) .

	

$ (2,933,963)

	

$ (2,281,599)
(Reductions) Incease to taxes resulting fro(n :

Tax exempt Interest Income

	

(550) ' '

	

(3,140)

	

.

	

(3,320)
State taxes (benefft), net of federal Income . .

	

.
tax benefit

	

(708,853)

	

(513,164)

	

_. (191,230)
Put agreement

	

1,219,549
Valuation allowance

	

4,522,609

	

3,703,659

	

3,702,881
Other

	

6.4541 (253.392) 257.337

S

	

- t

	

~ z_~naa~a

At January 31, 2002, fbr-Federal Income tax purposes, the company had net operating loss
caryforwards of approximately $24.4 million which will begin to expire in stages In the year 2020, and
alternative minimum tax credit cartyforwards of approximately $594,000. The alternate minimum tax
credit does not expire .

The Company rents various factlittes under lease agreements classified as operating leases : Several of
the underlying agreements contain certain Incentives eliminating payments at the Inception of the lease.
Lease Incentives are amortized on a straight-line basis over the entire lease tam. Under terms of these
leases, the Company Is required to. pay its proportionate share of Increases In real estate taxes,

	

.
operating expenses and other related costs .

The Company leases warehouse space In Belleville, New Jersey from a partnership In which two of the
partners were directors and major shareholders of the Company. Both partners are no longer dlmctDm
During the fiscal years ended January 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, the Company paid;rent of $21,530,

11$49,479 and $62,848, respectively to the partnership. The lease expired on November 30; 1998,-and -
has been renewed subject to termination upon 120-days prior written notice by either party. The lease
was amended on August 31, 19 9 to provide an annual rate of_$47,980. The tease terminated during

. -thefhol.year ending January 31, 2002. .

CovL9t has entered Into a lease agreement for 28,000 square feet of office space In Chattanooga,
Tennessee, with Henry G. Luken M who Is Covista's Chatimarr of the Board and its principal
*shareholder. The term of the lease Is for five years beginning September 1, 2001. The lease provides

*.for annual rent of $86,400 from September 1, 2001 to August 30, 2002; $115,200 from September 1,
2002 to August 30, 2003; $144,000 from September 1, 2003 to August 30 2004, with the last two years
to be $144,000 annually adjusted for the Consuuner Price Index. Covista believes that such premises
are leased on terns similar to an arm's length-transaction.



COVISTACOMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS (continued)
FORTHE YEARS ENDEDJANUARY31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

In July 2001, Covista entered ft an approximately $1,245,000 sale and leaseback transaction whereby.
Covtsta sold and leased back new and exldng telecommunications switching equipment purchased
earlier in the current fiscal year. 'The equipment was sold flor the original purchase price. The term is
three years and CovisM has an option to repurchase the equipment at fair market value at lease
termination . The related lease is being accounted for as an operating lease.

In November 2001, Cov6ta negotiated _another sale and leaseback transaction for a second
tetecommunicatlons switch for approximately $1,092,700. The lease contrad Is similar to the first ,
transaction, with a teen of three years with an option to repurchase the equipment at fair market value
at lease termination . The second lease is also accounted for as an operating lease.

Future minimum annual rentals on these leases as ofjanuary 31, 2002 are as follows:

Rental expense for the years ended January 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was approximately $2,355,000,
$1,500,000, and $1,377,000, respectively.

8.

	

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS '

9. STOCKOPTION PLANS

The Company has established a savings incentive plan for substantially all employees of the Company
which is gmalffled under section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The savings plan provides for
.contributions to an Independent trustee by both . the Company and

its
participating employees. Under

the plan, employers may contribute up to 15% of their pretax base pay. The Company matches.50%
of the first 6% of paitidpant oontrbutfons. Participants vest immediately In their own contributions and
,overa pentad of six years far the Company's contributions . Company contributionswere approximately
$162,000, $95,000, and $125,000, for the years ended January 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, rarely.

56.520.742

The Company has four stock option plans authortzing'the granting of either incentive Stock Options or
Nonquafed Stock Options. The-1987 Stock Option Plan . (the "1987 Plan) provided for the Issuance of
an aggregate of not more than 1,329,800 shares of the Company's Common Stock. The 1996 Sbodk
.Option Plan (the °1996 Plan') provides for the-issuance of an aggregate of not mom -than 600,000
shares of the Company's Common Stock. The 1999 Equity Incentive Plan (the `1999 Plan') provides for
the Issuance of an aggregate of not more than 750,000 shares of the Company's Common Stodt The
2001 Equity Incentive Plan (the"2001 Plan") provides for the Issuance of an aggregate of not more than
900,000 shares of the Company's Crmrrwn Stock.

	

-

	

-

	

°

Year ending January 31,
2003 $ 1,919,281
2004 1,213,050
2005 1,090,740
2006 426,640
2007 366,640
2008 and thereafter 1,504.391



COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUSSIDIAfl1ES
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED I DIANCLIL STATEMENTS (continued)
FORTHE YEARS ENDED 3ANUARY 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

Stock Options granted pursuant to the Plans must have an exercise price equal to at host 50% of thefair market value of the Companys Common Stack at the time the option is granted . Incentive Stock ,

	

.Options may be granted only to employees. NonquaMed Stock Options may be granted to employeesAs well as directors, Independent contracmrs and agents, ai de4ennlned by the Board of Directors, All
options available to be granted under the 1987 Plan were granted prior to September 1, 1997, Alloptions available to be granted under the 1996 Plan, totaling 49,350 at January 31, 2002, must be

	

,granted by October 10, 2006. All options available to be granted under the 1999 Plan, totaling 242,667

	

..at January 31, 7002, must be granted by February 23,.7009. All options available to be.granted under
the 2001 Plan, totaling 47,400 at JantM 31,2002, must be granted by February 8, 2011

At January 31, 2002, shares under the 2001 Plan had not been registered by the Company. The options
Currently outstanding have'terms that expire between five and ten years from the date of grant and
"vest over a period of one to four years from the date of the grant.

On February 23, 2000, the Board of Directors passed a resolution'aliowing the Company to reprice all
outstanding options granted under the- 1996 Plan and the '1999 Plan . Ali outstanding options,
approximately 243,000 net of cancellations, which were originally granted at prices ranging from $L4.63
to $2150 per share were repriced to $14.25 per share. Accordingly, the option prices per share and
weighted average exercise price In the following 1996 Plan and 1999 Plan tables have been restated to
,reflect the $14.25 exercise price. All other terns and conditions, including vesting perkxds remalh
unchanged . The repriced options are subject to variable plan accounting and as a result there was no
Income statement effect of these options In the year ended January 31, 2002 and January 31, 2001 due
to the decvease In the CompaWs stock price below the new exercise . price.

On February 1, 2001, 35 employees were given the opportunity to cancel 248,200 options to purchase
Common Shares. All 35 agreed to cancel the options. On August 2, 2001 248,200 options to purchase
Common Shares were Issued at the then dosing market price of $5.65 per share. -.

Infomadtlon regarding options under the 1987 Plan Is as follows:

'

	

1Nelairted
'

	

' Option Price

	

race
"

	

PerShare

	

, Outstandina

	

E,gcerdsable

	

Eimrds2Bice
"

	

January 31, 1999 dance

	

'

	

,$051-$4.81

	

.

	

310,000 .

	

310,000

	

$

	

1.77
' - Mcerdsed

	

30.51- $4.81

	

11.0001

	

-	(211.000)

	

1

	

2.25

. January 31, 2000 balance

	

$051- .$1.00

	

' 99,000.

	

. ti 99,000

	

-,

	

$

	

0.75
Bmrdsed

	

$

	

0.51

	

, (1650Q)

	

' ,(1,,6 .5001

	

$

	

0.51

" January 31, 2001 balance

	

$051- $LAO

	

82,500

	

82,500

	

. $

	

0.80
.Exercised

	

$ -

	

1.00 '

	

(16,500)

	

(16,5001

	

$

	

1.00
'Cancelled

	

50.51- 31.00

	

(66.000)

	

(66.000)

	

0.80
January 31, 2002 balance
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COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. . AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THEYEARS ENDED JANUARY 31, 2002,2001 AND 2000 '

IMbnnWon regarding options under the 1996 Plan b as IbBows:

'

Information regarding options under the 1999 Plan is as follows :

January 31, .1999 balance

	

$

	

-

	

' .
' .Granted

	

$' 14.25 -

	

684,500 .
Became Ebmidsable

	

-

	

$ 14.25

	

-
Cancelled

	

-, S 14.25 (163S00)

.	Weighted
Option Price

	

Average
Per Share

	

. Outstanding

	

Exerdsable -	ExerdsePrice

48,000 ' '
$ 14.25-
$ 14.25'
$ 14.25

January 31; 2000 balance

	

$ 14.25

	

521,000

	

48,000

	

$.

	

14.25
Granted

	

$ 14.25

	

', 365;100

	

$

	

14.25
. -BecameExerisable

	

$

	

14.25

	

-

	

92,375

	

.

	

$

	

14.25

	

.
Cancelled

	

" '

	

$ 14.25

	

(372.6001

	

(48.000)

	

$ 14.25

.January 31, 2001 balance

	

$-

	

14.25

	

513,500

	

92,375

	

$

	

14.25
Granted

	

$ 2-00-$7.00

	

. 558,400

	

-

	

$

	

3.76 ,
Became Exercisable

	

$ 2.00-$3.50

	

-

	

8,433

	

$

	

.

	

2.02
Cancelled .

	

$ 3.00 - $14.25

	

(573,000)

	

(89,175) .

	

.

	

$_ . _IZ93
Exerdsed

	

. . . . . . . . .. .

	

.

	

_

	

$

	

2.00 - 53.50

	

(

	

8.433)

	

(

	

8.4331

	

2.02

	

.

. Option Price
Weir .
AVM.rdq!

PerShare Odstandinc Exerdubie
.

January 31,1999 balance , $7.25-$14.25 - 342,100 175,000 . $ . 10.99
Granted . $14.25 261,500 - $ 14.25
Became Ezerdsable . . $14.25 - 87,683 - $ 14.25

. Exerdsed . $725-$1424 , (165,500) (165,500) $ 7.90
Cancelled 57.25 - 314.25 (94.100) - . S 1425

--January 31, 2000 balance , .$10.00-$1425 344,000 97,183 $ 14.06
Became Exercisable . $1.15 18,184 $ 14.75
Cancelled' 514.25 (259.600) (64:000)

January 31, 2001 balance $10.00-$1425 84,400 . 51,367 $ . 13.50
Granted $200 523,000 - $ 2.00
Became Exerdsable $2.00 - 101,000 $ 2.00
Cancelled . $ 200- $14.25 (259,400) (51,367) $ .5.74
Exerdsed $2.00 (5.000) 00 $ 2.00

January 31, 2002 balance ;~ 2.00 343 .000 2= 2.00



COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC.* AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STAMENTS (continued)

FOR THEYEARSENDED JANUARY 31, 2002, 2001AND 2000

Inkmratton regarding options under the 2001 Plan is as follows :

January 31, 2001 balance
Granted
Became Exerdsable
Cancelled

January 31, 2002 dance

The following table summarizes information about options outstanding as of January 31, 2002 under the
1987,..1996, 1999 and 2001 Plans:

Range of
exercise prices

$2.01) - $7.00

	

1,672,867

	

5.23

	

$3.52

	

. 309,899

	

$3.56
$ 7.01- $14.25

	

13,200

	

3.07

	

$14.25 .

	

3,200

	

'

	

$142S-

The Company has adopted the disclosure-only provision of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation." Had compensation cost far the Company's plans been determined based on the fair
value at the grant date for awards in the fiscal years ended January .31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
consistent with the. provisions of. SFAS No. 123, the Company's net loss and bask and diluted low per
share would have been $10,837,464, $1.06 and $1.06 for 2002; $8,886,465, $1.23 and $1.23 for 2001 ;
$10,068,538, $L43 and $1.43 far 2000.

The fair value of the option giants Is estimated based an the date of grant using the BIad-Scholes
option-pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions used for-grants In fiscal 2002,
.2001, and 2000 : dividend yield of 0,00% for the three years; expected volatility of 165.18%, 62.23%
and 46.11%, respediveiy; risk-free interest rate of .6.47%, .7.85% and 6.02% , respectively, and
tamed lives of 3 to 5 years for each ofthe three years. .

	

.

STOCK GRANT'S .

The Company, at the, disaetion of the Board of birectors, has awarded from time to time to
management personnel shams of its Common Stock at par value. These shares vest over a period of
three to five years.' The Company awarded 0 shares, 0 shares, and 1,000 shares of Its Common Stock.
and recorded compensation expense of $12,011, $266,565, and $204,015 for the years ended January
31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Shkyes,candled by the Company due to termination or resignation of the recipients for the years -ended . . . . . . .
January 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 totaled 0, 4,000 and 35,383 respectively, which amounts have been

Option Price
Per Share Outstanding Exerdaabie

' . Wdoh d

$ 2.00 -$6.71 855,500 - $ 4.02
$ 2:00 -$5.65 - 213,899 $ 4.26

5.65 2,909) 5.65

. . . S 2.00 - 36.71 852.600 ra g ;L 4.92

Options Outstanding Options Eicercisable
Average Weighted Weighted

Number of . Remaining Average Number of Average
Shares Contractual Exercise Shams Exercise

outstanding M E&A outstanding Ef1M



IL LONG-TERM DEBT

covwAconm+euwcATlota,1NO. AND sus=ARn s
NOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JANUARY 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

On July 2, 2001 ; Covista received a .loan ttom Henry G. Luken III, Its Chairman of the Board and prhrctpi
shareholder, In the amount of $4,000,000. The loan matures on February, 1, 2003 together with accumulated
Interest at a rate Of 8% per annum. The proceeds of the ban were used to purdase a 1G-yar commilment forapproximately 2.8 billion DS-0 channel miles of telecommunications network capeay ttom an unafllated party.
This prepaid nebNork capacity is Inducted In prepaid expenses (current portion of $400,000) and other assets
(long term portion of $3,600,000, net of anent year amorthadon of $233,000) : The cost will be amortized m
operations. based upon the greater . of capacity use or sbatght line over the term of the agreement The
unaffiliated party has recently filed for Chapter 11 reorganization: however at the tine of this itMg is mrdnuMg
to perform under the agreement: Mr. Luken also advanced the Company, $400,000, the proceeds of which
were used ibr construction of new fad rdes. The agreement calls for Interest to be accrued at a rate of 8% per
annum. The total balance of the ttability Is $4,400,000 plus accrued interest at January 31, 2002 . (see Note 21b)

As of January 31, 2002, CovBta owes a remaining balance of $381,405 scan payable to a New Jersey bank, an of
which is dassMed as anent The interest rate on the term loan Is 7.71% and Is payable the scheduled monthly
Installments of $55,923. The term loan requires the Company to meet certain covenants. The tern loan is
collateralized by certain of the Company's machinery and equipment. At January 31, 2002, the Company was
not in compliance with these covenants .

12OTHER OOMPENUTION
On September 21, 19", the Company entered into an agreement with Warren Feldman, Chairman of the
Board of Directors and a 'shareholder of the Company. As part of this agreement, a lump sum in the
amount of $900,000 was paid to Mr. Feldman In settlement of his employment agreement: 'The Company
paid $650,000 and Mr. Walt Anderson, a major shareholder, paid $?50,000. Mr. Fddmans Employment
Agreement would have been In effect until December 31, 2001. The Company expensed the $900,000

'. with the $250,000 being accounted for as a capital contribution .

Simuitaneousty, Revision LLC and Mr. Waft Anderimn CRevision/Andersorej and the Company entered Into
put option agreements with Warren Feldman, Sad Feldman ('the Feidmars') and Leon Genet, ("Genet°) a
director of the company. These Put option agreements allowed the Fekknans and Genet the right to set

. '

	

their shares of the Company to ReAslon/Anderson at a . prim of $16.00 per share and obligate .
Reviston/Anderson to purchase the stares during an exercise period beginning on December 11, 1999 and
ending ,on February 10, 2000. Revislon/Aruierson purdased the stares wukr the put option agreements
prior to the deadline, with the exception of 100,778 shares stud held by the Feldman%. The Company had
no obligation to purchase any shares from the Feldmans ck Genet The dosing market price of the
Company's shares on September 21, 1999, the date et the agreements, Wp$12.25, and the total number
of shares covered by the agreements was 1,208,137, Using a binomial vahutlon model with an Interest
rate of 5% and a volatility rate of 50%, the fair value of the Put Option

agreements was determined to be
approximately $4.03 per share or $4,870,554 " In accordance with the Securities and EAdwncye Commission
Staff' Accounting Bulletin No. 83, the Company accounted for this non-cash transaction as a charge to

'

	

expense and a credit to paid-In capital during the quarter ended October31, 1999.



13. RESTRUCTURING

14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

3.5. LOSS PER SHARE

COVISTA COMMUkATIONS, INQ ANDSUesiDuMES . .
NOTES TOCONSOLIDATED F]iIANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED.3ANUARY 31, 2002,2001 AND 2000

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 1999, the Company recorded a reshvcduing charge of approoctrnately ,
$2,368,000 related to' the adoption by the Company of a formal plan fbr restructuring its focus of

. operdUOM The mstuctwing was adopted In an effort th concentrate the CompaWs dforts on the "
Northeastern United States market Elements of the Company's restructuring plan included eOminafg the
sales offices in Florida, Atlanta, Georglay' Washington D.C and the United IOngdom as well as .the Miami'
swihcr.

For the Ascal year ended 7anuary 31, 2000, amounts aggregating apprrndmately $1,79"1,000 applied
against the accrual consisted of approximately $1,280,000 for the write down of the Miami switch,
approximately $99,000 for the One Installation costs, approimately $51,000 for payments made on the
Fart Lauderdale lease, apprmdmately $327,000 for severance payments and apprmdmahely $40,000 for
payments made to shut down the U.K. operation. Additionally, an aggregate of apprcvdmatey $319,000
whichis reflected as a credit through the restructuring charge Ilne In the fiscal 7.000 consoildated finandd
statements consisted of approximately $97,000 reduction In the severance accrual, apprwdmately $20,000
for the reduction . of the fringe benefit accrual. and ;20,000 reduction In . the accrual on the Fort
Lauderdale lease, due to revisions In the lease. The salvageable components of the switch were relocated
to the Companys New York City switch In the third quarter of rascal 2M. After restructuring charges
incurred, the balance In .the reserve at January 31, 2000, . of approximately 512,000, consisted, of the
settlement of the lease In Fort Lauderdale, Florida.

In;the fiscal year ended January 31, 2001, the Company settled, for appnxdmatoly $12,000, the balance
on the lease in Fort Lauderdale, Florida, which was charged against the restructuring reserve.

The Company is involved in various legal and administrative actions arising In the normal course of
business. While the resolution of any such actions may have an Impact an the ffnandal results far the
period to which it

.
is resolved, management believes that the ultimate disposition of these matters will

not have a material adverse effect upon Its consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial
position : .

Basic loss per share was computed by dividing net loss by the *eighbed average number of shares of
Common Solo& outstanding during each year . Diluted loss'per share was computed an the assumption
that all stock options converted or exercised during each year or outstanding at the end of each year
were converted at the beginning of,each year or at the date of Issuance or grant, if dilutive.



COVISTACOMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued). FOR THE YEARS ENDED3ANUARY il, 2002, 2601

AND
2000_

CbncllkWoW he &M and common shares Included In the computation of basic loss per common. sham and diluted I= percommon share tfor the
ended January 31, 2002, 2001 and 29N) Is as follows:

ending stock options to punfoise shares of Common 060were not included in the computation of diluted loss pershare for the fiscal years.ended
31, 2002, 2001 and 2000lbecause to do so would have been anddillutive .

.2002
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16. QUARTERLYFMNQALINFORMATION (UNAMTED)

17. EMPLOYEE STOCKOWNERSHIP PLAN

On September 1, 1998, the Company established the Gavista Comm6ntcations, Im: Employee Stodc
Ownership Plan (the "ESOP Plan") . Canairrer* with the establishment of the nonleveraged ESOP Plan,
the Company contributed 600,000 shares of its Common Stock to the ESOP Plan . The Common dares

" were recorded at fair value at the date contributed to the ESOP, totaling approximately $12.2 million,
with an offset do Unearned ESOP,Shares in the Statement of Shareholders' Equity. The ESOP Plan was
tobe administered through a trust by a trustge designated by the Board of Directors

	

- -

In Februarys 1999, the company's Board of Directors audroitred the termination of Cle ESOP Plan. TheIRS
gave

its
approval to terminate the ESOP, and the Compam/ afRdally de minated this plan during 2002, apd

thWentire 600,000 shares of Common Smock were retumec{ to authorized but unissued shares of Common

COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS,INC. AND SUBSMUIRIES
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS (continued)
FORTHEYEARS ENDEDJANUARY 31, 2002, 2001AND 2000

Amounts in thousands accept pershave data.

Net sales
Operating Income (loss)
Net earnings pass)

AprO 30, 3399

$33,530

519
296

' July 31,

$36,617
590

339

October 31,1994

-$36,988
(5,954)

(5,539)

January31, 2000 -

$32,625
(1,834)

(4,510)
Basic earnings (logs) per common share .
DUuted e mings0m) per common share

' 0.04

0.03

0.05

0.05
(0.77)

. (0.77)
(0.63)
(0.63)

Neet sales
Operating Income (lass)

April 30, 2000 .

S 31.792
(1,606)

July 31, 2000

,

$34,1

(1,405)

October 31, 2000
' $ 33,903

(1,417)

Jams"31,2001
$33,427
(3.306)

Net eamlng9 (loss) (1514) (1,366) (7.403) (3,340
Basic eamk,g9 (Icss) per common sure (0 .21) (0.19) (03.3) . (0.45) .
Muted earnings (loss) per common share (0.21) (0.19) (093) . (0.45)

April 30,2001 July 31, 2001 October 31, 2001 January31, 2002
Net sales $29,444 $28AZ $20,467 $16510

Operating Income (loss)- (4,863) 42 (1,790) (5,551)
Net earnings (loss) - (4,592) 86 (1,959) (5.605)
Basic
Dtd

earnings (loss) percommon share (0.56) .01 (0:17) -. (052)

earnings (lass) per commas share (036) 01 (0.17) (0.52)
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ACCESS CHARGE SETTLEMENT

19.

	

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FORTHE YEARS ENDED JANUARY 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

In the second quarter of f&CA 2001, the Company r

	

a cash payment of $1,264,483 from certain
Bell Companies in settlement of a class action sulk to which the Company was a party, filed In 1992
relating to alleged overcharges by those compartles. The settlement concluded the class action with the
Ed Compasses . The ComparYs portion of the settlement vras not determined until the second quarter
ended July 31, 2000 . The cash payment was recorded as a s

	

ine Them as a reductionof costs and
expense In thequarter ended July 31, 2000.

A director of the . Company serves on the Board of Directors of Cam Communications, Ink
("Capsule°) (see Note 21) . Also the Chairman ofthe Company is the majority shareholder of Capsule .
The Company. purchase and sells services to Capsule. Sales to Capsule In the years ended January
31, 2002, 2001. and 2000 were appmod6ately $615,000,-$532,000 and $681,000, resp .
Purchases from Capsule in the years ended January 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were approwwmtety
$660,000,. $544,000 and $291,000 respectively. All transactions were based on ggmpetRNe terms .
obtained In arm's length transactions.

	

.

on -February 1, 2001, the Board of Directors of the Company representing a majority ownership of
the Company, subject to perfunctory shareholder's approval which

	

was obtained on March 29,
2001, authorized the sale of a total of 3,500,000 shares of Common Stock to the following three
persons (the "Purchasers°) In the amounts Indkated: Kevin Alward,1,000,000 share; A. John Leach,
500,000 share; and Henry G. Luken, III, 2,000,000 share. The purchase price for theCommon
Stock to be Issued to Messrs . Alward, Leach and Luken Is'$2.00 per share, based on the fair market
value of share at February 1, 2001 . The stock sale was consummated in April 2001 with the
Issuance of 3,150,000 shares of common stark. The Board of Directors authorized a decease of
350,000 share to be purchased by Mr. (Each.

On February 1, 2001, the Board of Directors of the Company authorized the acquisition of Blink Data
Corporation, a telecommunicadons company, of which Kevin Alward was a principal shareholder,
officer and director, for 300,000 shares of the Company's Common Stack valued at the fair market

	

.
value at March 29, 2001 far total consideration of $900,000. The transaction we completed an
March 29, 2001.

On July 24, 2001 and August 9, 2001, the Company Issued notes receivable to Capsule for a total
principal of $200,000 and $300,000, respectively with Interest payable at 8 3A to be pail no later

. than one year fbom each`note issuance. . -

Jay J. Miller, a Director of CwLsta, has provided various legal services ibr Covista during Fiscal 2002. In
F&:812002, Covista paid $144,514 to Mr., Miller for servikirs mnderedand accrued for In Fiscal 2002.
As of January 31, 2002, Covtstaowed Mr. Miller $179,316 . Qcvista b4eve that Mr. MBWs tees were
reasonable for the services performed and were -no less favorable to CovLsta than could have been
obtained ftom an unrelated third party.

Leon Genet, a Director of Cavism, has provided agent services for Covista through his wholly-owned
" Registrant; LPJ, Inc. During Fiscal 2002, LPJ, Inc. was paid commissions of $93,066: The commtsskns
paid to LPJ, Inc. were computed on the same basis as other Independent agents retained by Covista.
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EMPLOYEE RECEIVABLES

COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FORTHE YEARS ENDED 7ANUARY 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

Included in prepaid expenses : and other cement asses 1 a note receivable totaling $262,500
evidencing a loan to a farmer employee of the Company. The note bears Interest at 11.596 per
annum, and Is ::payable in monthly Installments with the last Payment due on January 1, 2004.

	

The
Company Is In the process of negotiating collection of the note.

	

.

	

.

An additional,approximate $179,000 of employee receivables is Included in prepaid eipenses and
other current assets. This rernalning balance represents loans and payroll advances to various `

. employees.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

a. On February 8, 2002, the Company acquired Capsule Communications, Inc. (°Capsule? for .
1,724,311 .shares of Common Stock. Capsule is a telecommunications carrier providing local and

' long-dLslance telephone communications services to small and medium size business customers
and residential customers generally located In the Mtd-Atlantic region and In California. capsule
is a related party of which both Henry G. Luken III, the Chairman and shareholder or the
Company, and Walter Anderson, a director and shareholdei of the Company, each of whom were
the two major shareholders' In Capsule. The terms of the acquisition were that all shareholders
with the exception of Henry Luken received 0.0917 shares of Covista Common Stock for each
share of Capsule Common Stock, and Mr._ Luken received 0.0688 shares of Covista Common'
Stock for each share of Capsule Common Stack. The total value of the acquisition was
apprcodmately $11,000,000.

b. On February 20, 2002 the Board of Directors approved the private sale of additional Common
Stock of up to $12,500,000. The investment would include a cash Infusion of $4,800,000 for
debt or Common Stock, contribution of $3,300,000 of ftced assets for debt or Common Stock and
the conversion of all existing long-term debt to Common Stock at $5.00 per -share. The ,-

	

'
commitment far funding for the Investment is anticipated to come primarily from the current'
Chairman of Covista's Board and Is subject to shareholder's approval at the next annual or
scheduled meeting of stockholders. - As of May 14, 2002, $2,600,000 of cash was received from
the Chairman of Covlsta's'Board in exchange for debt: Finally, the Company Is planning to obtain
a line of credit from a bank Ifsuch line of credit is not obtained, the Chairman of.the Board has
committed to loaning $2 million. to the Company through at least the second quarter of Fiscal .
2004.



COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule 9-Valuation and QuaIHying Accounts (Consolidated) ,

YEAR ENDEDJANUARY 31,20M. . .

	

. .
Reserves andallowances
deducted from asset amounts:
Allowance for uncollect ble
accounts

	

$ 4,075,273

	

$5,382,384

	

$

	

$4,470,477(A) $ 4,987,1

Valuation reserve on
deferred tax asset

	

;$ 7,406,540

	

$ 4,618,990

	

$-

	

-

	

$

	

-

	

$ 12y025;5E

. J

YEARENDED JANUARY 31, 2001 .

	

.

	

,

	

,

	

.

	

.
Reserves and allowances
deducted from asset accounts :
Allowance for uncolledible
accounts

	

$ 1,827,260 ' $ 2,346,761

Valuation reserve an
deferred tax asset

	

'

	

$ 3,702,881 . $

	

3,703,659

Allowahees not deducted:
Restrvcduing reserve

	

$

	

11;995

	

$

(A) Represents write-offofflCCOIXOta receivable against the allowance inFiscal Year 2002:

- $ 11,995 $

$

	

-

	

$

	

98,798

	

$ ' 4,075,2

$ - $

	

- $ 7,406,5

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2000 .
Reserves and allowances

	

'

	

r .
deducted from asset accounts :
Allowance for uncollecdble -

	

.
accounts .

	

$ 1,230,483

	

$ '1,074,916 -

	

478,139

	

$

	

1,827,2
Valuation reserve an

	

.
deferred lax asset

	

'

	

$

	

-

	

$

	

3,702,881

	

$

	

-

	

$

	

=

	

$

	

3.702.E

Allowances not deducted:

	

I
Restrucbrring reserve

	

$ 2,128,000

	

$

	

(318,879)

	

$

	

-

	

$

	

1,797,126

	

$

	

11,5

Column A Column B Column C ` Column D_column E

Addltlons
Charged Charged to

. Balance at (Credited)to. Other Balance
. . . 'Beginning Cost and Accounts- Deductions- at Endof

Description of Period Expenses Describe Describe Period
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ITEM 1 " FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS . INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONSAND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(Unaudited)

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements

Nine Months Ended
October 31 .

2002 2001

Three Months Ended
October 31 .

2002 2001

NET SALES $ 77.002 .274 $ 78.803.039 $ 26.773 .184 $20.466.685

Costs and Expenses -
Cost of sales .. 54,341,941 64,423,267 18,185,528 15,335,763
Selling, general and administrative 30.717.399 20.990.705 9.846.672 6.921 .046

Total costs and expenses 85.059.340 85.413.972 28.032.199 22.256 .811

OPERATING LOSS (8.057.066) (6.610.933) (1 .259.015) (1 .790.126)

Other Income (Expense)
Interest income 44,576 . 94,392 247 18,752
Other Income 26,472 305,267 33,680
Interest expense (388.457) (154.783) (133,144) (121 .256)

Total other Income (expense) (317.409) 244.876 (132.897)' (68.824)

Loss before benefit from income taxes (8,374,475) (6,366,057) (1,391,912) (1,858,950)

Benefit from income taxes 511 .220 - - -

-- NET LOSS (7,863,255) (6,366,057) (1,391,912) (1,858,950)

COMPREHENSIVE LOSS $ 17.863.255) $ 16.366.057) R (1 .991 .9121 $(1 .858.9501

BASIC LOSS PER COMMON SHARE $ (0.62) $ (0.64) $ (0.11) $ (0.17)

DILUTED LOSS PER COMMON SHARE $ (0.62) $ (0.64) $ (0.11) $ (0.17)

DIVIDENDS PER SHARE NONE NONE NONE NONE



Note:

COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

October31,

	

January 31,

The condensed consolidated balance sheet at January 31, 2002 has been
derived from the audited consolidated financial statements at that date.

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

2002
(Unaudited)

2002 -
(Note)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,381,369 $ 1,379,038

Investments available for sale 439,773

Notes receivable 500,000

Accounts receivable, net 16,937,991 10,252,837

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 534.164 1 .373.780

TOTAL CURRENTASSETS 20,853,524 13 .945.428

PROPERTYAND EQUIPMENT, NET 14.557,592 12.489.626

OTHER ASSETS:

Deferred line installation costs, net 579,519 174,785

Intangible assets, net 2,441,532 -

Goodwill, net 8,307,850 -

Other assets 3.962.091 4,646.952

15.290.992 4.821 .737

$ 50.702.109 $ 31 .256.791



COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Note :

	

The condensed consolidated, balance sheet at January 31, 2002 has been
derived from the audited consolidated financial statements at that date .

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

October31,
2002

(Unaudited)

January 31,
2002

(Note)

Current portion of long-term debt $ 1,659,583 $ 381,405

Accounts payable _ 26,023,878 19,465,274

Other current and accrued liabil'riies 6,544,898 4,434,795

Salaries and wages payable 409.441 991.012

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 34 .637:801 25.272.486

Other Long Term Liabilities 2.578 15.466

Long-Term Note Payable - Bank 2,377,029
Long-Term Note Payable - Shareholder - 7.000.000 4.400.000
Total Notes Payable 9.377.029 4,400,000

SHAREHOLDERS'EQUITY

Common stock 711,443 619,288

Additional paid-in-capital 38,521,038 25,650,098

Accumulated deficit (31 .102 .339) (23,255,107)
8,130,142 3,014,279

Treasury stock (1,445,440) (1,445,440)

Total Shareholders' Equity 6.684.702 1 .568.839

' $50.702.109 $ 31 .256.791



COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)
Nine Months Ended

October 31,
2002 _

	

2001
OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Net loss

	

$ (7,863,255)
Adjustment for non-cash charges

	

6,918,842
Gain on sale of marketable securities

	

-
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effect of
Acquisitions
Net cash used in operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
5

$ (6,366,057)
5,691,632
(262,234)

(2 .162.645)
(3,099,304)

Cash acquired in purchase of business 1,179,165 90,402
Proceeds on sale of marketable securities 439,773 1,141,302
Purchases of marketable securities (608,369)
Purchase of prepaid network capacity (4,000,000)
Purchase of property and equipment (3,028,664) (4,182,146)
Proceeds from sale and leaseback transaction - 1,245,339
Additions to deferred line installation costs (404.734) (32.803)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,814,460) (6,346,275)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Sale of common stock 315,963 6,326,666
Proceeds of loan from shareholder 2,600,000 4,000,000
Proceeds from bank borrowings 3,775,000
Repayments of bank borrowings (1,488.296) (456.972)
Net cash provided by financing activities 5 ;202.667 9.869.694 .

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,002,331 424,115

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
BEGINNING OF PERIOD 1,379,038 2.691 .889

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
END OF PERIOD $ 3.381 .369 3.116.004

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH
FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid (received) during the period for. ._

Interest $ 346,679 $ 46,339
Income taxes $ (51 i,220) $ (16,828)

Business Acquired
Fair Value of Assets excluding cash $ 21,849,458 (2,162,145)
Less Liability Assumed (10,056,503)
Less: Stock Consideration for business acquired (92,972,127)
Cash acquired 1,179,172 90,402



NOTE A-BASIS OF PRESENTATION

COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for Interim financial information and with the
Instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X . They do not include all information and
notes required by generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements. However,
except as disclosed herein, there has been no material change in the information disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Covista
Communications, Inc . (formerly Total-Tel USA Communications, Inc .) and Subsidiaries (Covista) for the
fiscal year ended January 31, 2002. In the opinion of Management, all adjustments (consisting of normal
recurring accruals only) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included . Operating
results for the nine-month period ended October 31, 2002 are not necessarily indicative of the results that
may be expected for the year ending January 31, 2003 .

NOTE B -NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 ("SFAS 142"),
"Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets", which is effective January 1, 2002. SFAS 142 requires, among
other things, the discontinuance of goodwill amortization . In addition, the standard includes provisions for
the reclassification of certain existing recognized .intangibles as goodwill, reassessment of the useful lives
of existing recognized intangibles, reclassification of certain intangibles out of previously reported goodwill
and the identification of reporting units for purposes of assessing potential future impairments of goodwill .

In August 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143 ("SFAS 143"),
"Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations", which is effective for Covista's fiscal- years beginning
February 1, 2003 . SFAS 143 requires recording the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement
obligation in the period in which it is incurred, and a corresponding increase in the carrying value of the
related long-lived asset . Over time, the liability is accreted to its present value each period, and the
capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset . Upon settlement of the liability, it Is
either settled for its recorded amount or a gain or loss upon settlement is recorded . Covista is currently
assessing, but has does not expect the impact of SFAS 143 to be material to its financial position and
results of operations .

In October 2001, the FASB Issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 ("SFAS 144"),
"Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long Lived Assets", which is effective for all fiscal years .
beginning after December 15, 2001 . SFAS 144 replaces the Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be
Disposed OP. SFAS 144 requires that long-lived assets to be measured at the lower of the carrying
amount or fair value, . less cost to sell, whether Included in continuing operations or in discontinued
operations . Covista is currently assessing, but does not expect the impact of SFAS 144 to be material to
its financial position and results of operations .

	

.



In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145 "Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections" . This statement eliminates the
automatic classification of gain or loss on extinguishment of debt as an extraordinary item of income and
requires that such gain or loss be evaluated for extraordinary classification under the criteria of
Accounting Principles Board No. 30 "Reporting Results of Operations" . This statement also requires sale-
leaseback accounting for certain lease modifications that have economic effects that are similar to sale-
leaseback transactions and makes various other technical corrections to existing pronouncements . This
statement will be effective for Covista for the year ending January 31, 2003 . The adoption of this
statement is not expected to have a material effect on our results of operations or financial position .

In July 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No.146,Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities." SFAS No.146 will supersede Emerging Issues Task Force
Issue No.94-3,"Liability Recognition . for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit
an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring) ." SFAS No.146 requires that costs
associated with an exit or disposal plan be recognized when incurred rather than at the date of a
commitment to an exit or disposal plan . SFAS No.146 is to be applied prospectively to exit or disposal
activities initiated after December 31, 2002.

NOTE C-EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted loss per common share:
Nine-Months Ended

	

Three-Months Ended

(1)

	

Common Shares subject to options are not included in the calculation of diluted loss per
Common Share for the nine month periods ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, and the three-
month period ended October 31, 2002, as doing so would be antidilutive due to the net loss per
Common Share.

October3l, October3l, October 31, October 31,
2002 2001 2002 2001

Numerator.
Loss available to $ (7,863,255) $ (6,366,057) $ (1,391,912) $(1,858,950)
Common Shareholders used in basic
and diluted loss per Common Share

Denominator.
Weighted-average numberof Common 12,612,053 9,990,562 12,697,673 10,820,365
Shares used in basic loss per
Common Share (1)

Effect of diluted securities :
Common share options

Weighted-average number of Common 12,612,053 9,990,562 12,697,673 10,820,365
Sharesand diluted potential Common
Shares used In diluted loss per
Common Share

Basic and diluted loss per Common Share $ (0 .62) 0.64 $ (0.11) 0.17



NOTE D - SEGMENT REPORTING

Covista sells telecommunications services to three distinct segments : a retail segment consisting primarily
of small to medium sized businesses principally within the United States, a wholesale segment with sales
to other telecommunications carriers throughout the world, and a segment that generates sales through
direct mailing campaigns (KISSLD) which started in the beginning of fiscal year 2003 for residential
customers In network supported areas on the East Coast.

In addition to direct costs, each segment is allocated a portion of the Covista's switch and operating
expenses . The allocation of expense is based upon the minutes of use flowing through the Covista's
switch network . There are no intersegment sales . Assets are held at the consolidated level and are not
allocable to the operating segments . Covista evaluates performance on operating earnings of the three
business segments .

Summarized financial information concerning Covista's reportable segments is shown in the following
table :

Retail Wholesale KISS LD Total

Nine Months Ended
October 31, 2002

Net Sales $ 60,327,000 $11,389,000 $5,286,000 $ 77,002,000
Gross margin 19,512,000 1,139,000 2,009,000 22,660,000
Operating loss (6,365,000) (1,128,000) (564,000) (8,057,000)

Nine-Months Ended
October 31, 2001

Net Sales $ 36,717,000 $ 42,086,000 N/A $ 78,803,000
Gross margin 13,062,000 1,31 8,0W NIA 14,380,000
Operating loss (4,457,000) (2,153,000) N/A (6,611,000)

Retail Wholesale KISSLD Total

Three Months Ended
October 31, 2002

Net Sales $ 20,788,000 $ 3,099,000 $2,886,000 $ 26,773,000
Gross margin 7,181,000 . 310,000 1,097,000 8,588,000
Operating loss (1,053,000) " (45,000) (161,000) (1,259,000)

Three Months Ended
October 31, 2001

Net Sales $ 11,996,000 $8,471,000 N/A $ 20,467,000
Gross margin 4,284,000 847,000 N/A 5,131,000
Operating loss (1,495,000) (295,000) N/A (1,790,000)



NOTE E - INCOME TAXES

For the fiscal year ended January 31, 2002, Covista established a valuation allowance against its net
deferred tax asset due to the uncertainty of realizing certain tax credits and loss carryforwards . In the
quarter ended October 31, 2002, Covista continued this accounting treatment and recorded a full
valuation allowance against the net tax benefit arising from the quarter's net operating loss . The result is
that the net deferred tax asset of approximately $14,278,000 is fully offset by the valuation allowance and,
as such, does not appear on the balance sheet. It will be reflected at net recoverable value when the net
deferred tax asset can be utilized in future periods .

During the second quarter of the fiscal year 2003, Covista received a tax refund of $511,220; which
reflected a change in IRS regulations regarding net operating loss carrybacks.

NOTE F-ACQUISITION OF CAPSULE COMMUNICATIONS

On February 8, 2002, Covista completed the merger (the "Merger") of its wholly owned subsidiary CCI
Acquisitions, Inc. ("CCI") with and into Capsule Communications, Inc . ("Capsule"), pursuant to the
Agreement and Plan of Reorganization dated as of July 17 ; 2001 among Covista, CCI and Capsule (the
"Merger Agreement") . As a result of the Merger, Capsule became a wholly owned subsidiary of Covista .
Covista has accounted for the combination with Capsule as a purchase business combination under
SFAS 141("Business Combination") . Capsule is a switch-based interexchange carrier providing long
distance telephone communications services primarily to small and medium-size business customers as
well as residential accounts.

The results of Capsule's operations have been included in Covista's statement of operations since the
Merger Date. The total purchase price was approximately $12.7 million and consisted of approximately
1 .7 million shares of Covista's Common Stock, valued at approximately $11 .6 million determined based
on the average closing market price of Covista's Common Stock at the time of acquisition, options
assumed from Capsule for the purchase of 286,975 shares of Common Stock valued at approximately
$1 .1 million using the Black-Scholes Valuation Model, using an exercise price of .$3 .49 to $20 .10,
expected lives of 0.5 to 2 years, 156% volatility, 2.69% discount rate, and Covistas' stock price of $6 .71 .
In addition, Covista incurred approximately $0.3 million in acquisition expenses.

The following table summarizes the estimate of fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
the Merger Date .

The intangible assets acquired from Capsule were identified as its business customer relationships
valued at $1,288,000, its residential customer relationships valued at $376,000, and its agent
relationships valued at $2,526,000. These intangibles are being amortized over periods of 10 months to
four years. The customer and agent relationships are amortized' using double-declining method .

Cash $ 1,179,172
Current assets 5,717,428
Property and equipment 3,544,981
Other assets 89,199
Intangible assets 4,190,000
Goodwill 8,307,850

Total assets acquired 23.028.630
Current liabilities (10.056.503)

Total purchase price $02,972,127)



The unaudited pro forma Information below represents the consolidated results of operations as If the
merger with Capsule had occurred as of February 1, 2001 and 2002. The unaudited pro forma
information has been included for comparative purposes and is not indicative of the results of operations
of the consolidated Company had the merger occurred as of February 1, 2001, nor is it necessarily
indicative of future results .

NOTE G - SHAREHOLDER LOAN

NOTE H - NOTES PAYABLE

As of October 31, 2002, Covista received loans from Henry G. Luken III, its Chairman of the Board and
principal shareholder, in the amount of $7,000,000 . These loans will be converted to equity upon
shareholder approval which approval is expected to be sought at Covista's Annual Shareholder meeting
planned to be held December 19, 2002. Covista currently has the necessary votes to approve the
conversion.

Covista has a revolving $2,000,000 credit facility with Wells Fargo Business Credit Corporation,
renegotiated and amended on May 11, 2002, which expires on May 11, 2004. Interest on the revolving
credit facility is currently calculated at the prime lending rate plus 2 314%, on a minimum loan balance of
$750,000 . The loan is collateralized by accounts receivable and fixed and Intangible assets of Covista .
As of October 31, 2002, Covista's outstanding balance on its credit facility was $548,076 leaving .
approximately $1,451,924 available based on collateral for future borrowing under the credit facility. .

The loan agreement contains covenants and restrictions, which, among other things, require maintenance
of certain subjective financial . performance criteria and restrict encumbrance of assets, creation of
indebtedness and places limitaions on annual capital expenditures . Covista was not in compliance with
several of Its covenants in the Loan Agreement; however, Covista received verbal waivers related to such
non-compliance relevant to the fiscal period ended October 31, 2002.

On June 17, 2002, Covista entered into a term loan agreement with a major Tennessee bank. Covista
has received $3,775,000 payable monthly in 36 Installments at a foxed interest rate of 4.595% for the first
year and converting to 2% over LIBOR on June 17, 2003 and each year thereafter. This term loan is
secured by certain of the Company's switching equipment, and Certificates of Deposit . provided by
Covista's Chairman of the Board .

	

.

Nine Months
Ended

October 31 .2002 October 31 .2001

Three
Ended

October 31 . 2002

Months

October 31 . 2001

Total Revenue $ 77,615,223 $107,019,236 $ 26,773,184 $ 29,413,441
Loss attributable to (7,770,611) (7,388,496) (1,391,912) (2,476,381)
Common stockholders
Basic net loss per (0.62) (0.74) (0.11) (0.23)
common share



Certain matters discussed in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are "forward-looking statements"
Intended to qualify for the safe harbor from liability provided by the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995 . These forward-looking statements can generally be identified as such because the context of
the statement will include words such as Covista "believes", 'anticipates", "expects", or words of similar
import . Similarly, statements which describe Covista's future plans, objectives or goals are also forward-
looking statements . Such forward-looking statements are subject to certain
risks and uncertainties which are described in close proximity to such statements and which could cause
actual results to differ materially from those anticipated as of the date of this Report. Shareholders,
potential investors and other readers are urged to consider these factors in evaluating the forward-looking
statements and are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements . The
forward-looking statements included herein are only made as of the date of this Report and Covista
undertakes no obligation to publicly update such forward-looking statements to reflect subsequent events
or circumstances, except as required under applicable laws .

Results of Operations

COYISTA COMMUNICATIONS . INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
ITEM 2

MANAGEMENI"S DISCUSSION ANDANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULT OF OPERATIONS

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS :

Net sales were approximately $77,002,000 for the first nine months of the current fiscal year, a decrease
of approximately $1,801,000 or 2.2% as compared to the approximately $78,803,000 recorded in the first
nine months of the prior fiscal year . Net sales for the third quarter of the current fiscal year were
approximately $26,773,000, an Increase of approximately $6,306,000 or 30.8% as compared to the
approximately $20,467,000 recorded In the third quarter of the prior fiscal year.

Wholesale revenue for the nine-month period was approximately $11,389,000, a decrease of
approximately $30,696,620 or 73% from the nine month period ended October 31, 2001 . For the quarter
ended October 31, 2002, wholesale revenue was approximately $3,099,000, a decrease of
approximately $5,372,000 or 63.4% over the comparative quarter in the last fiscal year. Wholesale
minutes sold In the nine-month period ended October 31, 2002 were approximately 148,615,000 minutes,
a decrease of approximately 234,143,000 minutes or 61 .1% from the nine-month period ended October
31, 2001 . Wholesale minutes sold in the quarter ended October 31, 2002 were approximately 32,578,000
minutes, a decrease of approximately 49,309,000 minutes or 60.2% from the third quarter of the prior
fscal.year. For the nine-month period, the decline in revenue also reflected the competitive wholesale
market place and the business failure of several wholesale customers, both trends that Covista believes
will continue . Competitive pressures on sales price have resulted in a 34.7% decline in the average
selling rate . Covista also has attempted to limit its exposure to the business failures experienced within
the industry by.tightening up credit limits on all wholesale accounts . Covista has strategically reduced the
Wholesale segment of its business .



Retail revenues for the nine-month period were approximately $61,205,000, an Increase of approximately
$24,488,000 or 66.7% from the nine-month period ended October 31, 2001 . For the quarter ended
October 31, 2002, retail revenues were approximately $20,788,000, an approximately $8,792,000 or
73.2% increase over the comparative quarter in the last fiscal year. Retail minutes sold in the nine-month
period ended October 31, 2002 were approximately 824,279,000 minutes, an Increase of approximately
353,487,000 minutes or 75% over the nine-month period ended October 31, 2001 . Retail minutes sold in
the quarter ended October 31, 2002 were approximately 276,585,000 minutes, an increase of
approximately 109,487,000 minutes, or 65.5% over the third quarter of the prior fiscal year. The Increase
in volume results primarily from the acquisition of Capsule Communications. However, the decrease in
revenue per minute results from the extreme pricing pressures existing within the industry. Covista has
experienced a rate decrease of 7.3% for the nine-month period ended October 31, 2002 and 3.1 % for the
three-month period ended October 31, 2002 . The extreme pricing pressures experienced in the industry is
a trend that the Company believes may continue .

KssLD revenues (a product sold to retail consumers) for the nine month period were approximately
$5,286,000. KissLD is a new product offering for the current fiscal year and, therefore, does not have
prior year comparatives . The total minutes sold for KissLD for the nine month period was approximately
103,472,000 . For the three month period ended October 31, 2002, sales were approximately $2,886,000
for KissLD . KissLD minutes sold for the three month period ended July 31, 2002 were approximately
57,511,000.

Cost of sales for the current nine-month period was approximately $54,342,000, a decrease of
approximately $10,081,000 or 15.6% from the nine- month period ended October 31, 2001 . These
changes were favorable In relation to the 2.2% decrease in sales for the nine-month period . The
decrease in cost of sales was due primarily to a decrease of approximately 234,143,000 wholesale
minutes equating to approximately $27,627,000 . This savings was offset with the cost of the increase in
retail volume of approximately $17,595,000 .

Cost of sales for the three-month period ended October 31, 2002 was approximately $18,186,000, an
Increase of approximately $2,850,000 or 18.6% from the third quarter of the prior fiscal year. These
changes were favorable in relation to the 30.8% increase in revenues in the third quarter. The'increase in
cost of sales was due primarily to the Capsule acquisition .

In the normal course of business, Covista files disputes with its service providers . Covista's accounting
policy Is to record the Invoiced amount to cost of sales, which may include disputed amounts. When the
dispute is resolved and the credit is received, the amount is credited to cost of sales . Open disputes
Included in cost of sales for the nine-month period and the three-month period ended October 31 ; 2002
are approximately $3,116,000 and $3,007,000, respectively .

Selling, 'general and administrative expense for the nine-month period Increased to approximately
$30,717,000, an Increase of approximately $9,727,000, or 46.3% over the nine-month period ended
October 31, 2001 . For the quarter ended October 31, 2002, selling, general and administrative expense
was approximately $9,847,000 ; an approximate $2,926,000 or 42.2% increase over the comparative
quarter In the last fiscal year.



The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses of approximately $9,727,000 for the nine-
month period was primarily due to an increase in commission expense of approximately $4,045,000
related to the added agent commissions of the Capsule agent program, an increase In salaries of
approximately $2,906,000 related to the addition of Capsule salaries and expansion of the Tennessee call
center staff, an increase in marketing expense of approximately $2,731,000 related to the tGssLD
marketing program, an increase In office expense of approximately $1,265,000 due to the addition of the
Tennessee call center, the addition of Capsule general and administrative costs, and the one-time
relocation costs of the corporate headquarters; and other miscellaneous selling, general and
administrative expenses of $130,000. This was partially offset by a reduction in bad debt expense of
approximately $1,349,000 for the same period .

For the three-month period ended October 31, 2002, the net increase in selling, general and
administrative expenses of approximately $2,926,000 was comprised primarily of increase In commission
expense of approximately $1,459,000 from the acquisition of the Capsule agent program, an increase in
office expense of approximately $626,000 due to the one time relocation costs of the corporate
headquarters to downtown Chattanooga, TN, and the addition of Capsule G & A, an increase in salaries
of approximately $436,000 from the addition of Capsule salaries, an increase in benefits of approximately
$231,000, an increase in equipment rental of approximately $195,000, an increase In franchise taxes of
approximately $127,000, an Increase in postage' of approximately $88,000, increase in marketing
expense of approximately $84,000, and other miscellaneous expenses of $8,000. This was partially
offset by a reduction In bad debt expense of approximately $172,000 and a reduction in legal expense of
$156,000 .

For the reasons described above, the operating loss for the nine-month period ended October 31, 2002
was approximately $8,057,000, an increase of approximately $1,448,000 from the nine-month period
ended October 31, 2001 The operating loss for the three-month period ended October 31, 2002 was
approximately $1,259,000, an improvement of approximately $531,000 over the prior year's three-month
period ended October 31, 2001 .

Total other expense, net, for the . current nine-month period was approximately $317,000 as compared to
approximately $245,000 of total other income, net, recorded in the prior year nine-month period . The
approximately $562,000 change for the nine-month period is primarily due to the reduction In sale of
marketable securities of approximately $262,000, offset by an increase in Interest expense of
approximately $234,000 and a reduction in interest income of approximately $50,000 . Total other
expense, net, for the. current fiscal quarter was approximately $133,000 as compared to approximately
$69,000 of total other expense, net, recorded in the comparable period during the prior fiscal year . This
change was due to an increase in interest expense.

Basic and diluted loss per Common Share was $0.62 per share for the current nine-month period ended
October 31, 2002 as compared to $0.64 loss per share for the nine-months ended October 31, 2001 .
Basic and diluted loss per Common Share was $0.11 per share for the current three-month period ended
October 31, 2002 as compared to $0.17 loss per Common Share for the three-months ended October 31,
2001 .



Liauldity and Canital_Resources

At October 31, 2002, Covista had a working capital deficit of approximately $13,784,000, an increase of
deficit of approximately $2,457,000 as compared to January 31, 2002. The ratio of current assets to
current liabilities at October 31, 2002 was 0.60:1, as compared to the ratio of 0.55:1 at January 31, 2002 .
The increase in the working capital deficit at October 31, 2002 was primarily attributable to an increase in
accounts payable of approximately $6,559,000; a decrease In prepaid expenses and other current assets
of approximately $840,000 and an increase in the current portion of long term debt of approximately
$1,278,000 . This was offset by an increase in accounts receivable of approximately $6,685,000; an
Increase in cash and cash equivalents of approximately $2,002,000 ; a decrease In investments available
for sale of approximately $440,000 ; and a increase in accrued liabilities of approximately $2,110,000.

The increase in cash of approximately $2,002,000 was the result primarily of proceeds from the sale of
Common Stock of $315,963 ; proceeds from a long-term loan received from a major shareholder of
$2,600,000; the proceeds from the sale of marketable securities of approximately $439,773;,the proceeds
of a note payable of approximately $3,775,0001 and cash acquired in the purchase of businesses of
approximately $1,179,165 . These increases were offset by cash used in operations of approximately
$1,386,000; and payment of tine installation costs of approximately $405,000, purchases of Property,
Plant, and Equipment of approximately $3,029,000 and repayment of bank borrowings of approximately,
$1,488,000 .

On February 20, 2002, Covista's Board of Directors approved the private sale of additional Common
Stock of up to $12,500,000 . The investment includes a conversion into common stock, of $6,800,000 of
debt, contribution of $3,500,000 of fixed assets and $2,200,000 of cash to be received at the rate of
$2.867 per share, which was the closing price, for the Common Stock for 30 trading days prior to
November 1, 2002, as authorized by the Board . The commitment for funding for the investment and the
conversion of the Indebtedness is from the current Chairman of Covista's Board or his designee's and is
subject to shareholder's approval at the next Annual Meeting, to be held on December 19, 2002 .
Additionally, Covista has received a commitment from W. Thorpe McKenzie, a nominee for election as a
director, to purchase an additional 500,000 shares at $2.867 per share for a total of approximately
$1,434,000, Finally, the company Is seeking a line of credit from a bank . If such line of credit were not
obtained, me Chairman of the Board has committed to loaning $2 million to the Company through at least
the second quarter of fiscal 2004 .

Catiltal Exnenditures

Capital expenditures for the nine-month period ended October 31, 2002 were approximately $3,196,207.
These expenditures were financed principally from the proceeds of a long term loan received from a
major shareholder. Planned spending for the balance of the fiscal year ending January 31, 2003, Includes
approximately $100,000 for additional switches and equipment to be installed as part of CovisWs network
expansion . These expenditures are planned to be financed primarily through vendor financing, sale and
leaseback transactions, and additional lines of credit, which Covists intends to negotiate with Its current
lender or other sources . In addition, Covista may seek to sell privately, additional equity or debt securities .
However, there can be no assurance that Covista shall be able to obtain such financing or, 9 available,
the terms thereof shaft be favorable.

	

,



Prepaid_Network Capacity

On July 2, 2001, Covista received a loan from Henry G. Luken III, its Chairman of the Board and principal
shareholder, in the amount of $4,000,000 . This loan will be converted to equity upon shareholder
approval which approval is expected to be sought at Covista's Annual Shareholder meeting to be held
December 19, 2002. Covista currently has the necessary votes to approve the conversion . The proceeds
of the loan were used to purchase a 10-year commitment for approximately 2.8 billion DS-0 channel miles
of telecommunications network capacity from an unaffiliated party. The unaffiliated party has filed for
Chapter 11 reorganization ; however, as of the date of this report, is continuing to perform under the
agreement, and, therefore, management does not believe that this asset is impaired . However,
management has been unable to determine if this carrier's bankruptcy will adversely affect the carrier's
ability to fulfill Its' obligation to Covista under the prepaid network capacity agreement .

As of October 31, 2002, Covista has used 63 million DS-0 channel miles of telecommunications network
capacity against the 2.8 billion DS-0 total prepaid network capacity, of which $400,000 has been
classified as a current asset and based on anticipated usage in the next 12 months . The remainder of the
prepaid capacity amount of approximately $ 3,200,000 is included in other assets .

Accounts Receivable and Credit Risk

Accounts receivable subject Covista to the potential for credit risk with customers In the retail and
wholesale segments . To reduce credit risk, Covista performs ongoing evaluations . of Its customer's
financial condition and except in situations where the risk warrants it, Covista does not require collateral .
Accounts receivable of approximately $16,938,000, net of the reserve for uncollectible accounts totaling
approximately $6,833,000, represents approximately 33% of the total assets of Covista . No one customer
accounts for greater than eight percent of the total revenues and receivables . In the wholesale segment,
which contains Covista's largest customers, Covista has been able to ameliorate credit risk by using
reciprocal arrangements with the customers, which are also Covista's suppliers, to offset outstanding
receivables . Covista has historically maintained a better than three percent ratio of bad debts to revenues .
For the nine-month period ended October 31, 2002, this ratio was 4% . Covista also measures net
accounts receivable turnover (as measured in days sales outstanding) . For the periods ended October
31, 2002 and 2001 days sales outstanding were 59.3 days and 58.5 days respectively .



Related Party Transactions

Jay J. Miller, a Director of Covista, has provided various legal services for Covista in Fiscal 2003. In the third
quarter, Fiscal 2003, Covista accrued $13,960 to Mr. Miller for services rendered and accrued for in Fiscal
2003 . As of October 31, 2002, Covista owed Mr . Miller $26,100.

Leon Genet, a Director of Covista, has provided agent services for Covista through his wholly-owned
Registrant, LPJ, Inc . During the third quarter, Fiscal 2003, LPJ, Inc . was paid commissions of $24,155 . The
commissions paid to LPJ, Inc. were computed on the same. basis as other independent agents retained by
Covista .

Covista has entered into three lease agreements for office and switch space in Chattanooga, Tennessee,
with Henry G. Luken III, Chairman of the Board and a principal shareholder of Covista . Each lease .
carries a term of five years. The leases provide for annual rent of $154,986 for fiscal year 2003 ;
$258,290 for fiscal year 2004; $293,336 for fiscal year 2005 and for both fiscal years of 2006 and 2007
the annual rent will be $300,000 and annually adjusted for the Consumer Price Index . For the third
quarter FY 2003 Covista has paid Henry G. Luken III $21,600 for rent of office space.

As of October 31, 2002, Covista received loans from Henry G. Luken III, Its Chairman of the Board and
principal shareholder, in the amount of $7,000,000. These loans will be converted to equity . upon
shareholder approval which approval is expected to be provided at Covista's Annual Shareholder meeting
scheduled to be held December 19, 2002.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue Recocgnition

Covista's revenues, net of sales discounts, are recognized in the period in which the service is provided,
based on the number of minutes of telecommunications traffic carried, and a rate per minute . Access and
other service fees charged to customers, typically monthly, are recognized in the period in which service
is provided .

Deferred Line Installation Costs

Deferred line installation costs are costs incurred by Covista for new facilities and costs Incurred for
connections from within the Covista's network to the network of other telecommunication suppliers (such
as Verizon, MFS and other carriers) . Amortization of such line installation costs is provided using the
straight-line method over the contract Itfe of the lines ranging from three to five years.

Lona-Lived Assets

Covista accounts for the impairment of long-lived assets and for long-lived assets to be disposed of by
evaluating the carrying value of its long-lived assets_ In relation to the operating performance and future
undiscounted cash flows of the underlying businesses annually and when indications of impairment are
present . Long-lived assets to be disposed of, If any, are evaluated in relation to the net realizable value .
If Impairment is indicated, the amount of the impairment Is typically calculated using discounted expected
future cash flows . The discount rate applied to these cash flows Is based on Covista's weighted average
cost of capital . If the carrying value of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset, the difference will be
charged to the results of operations in the period in which the impairment occurred. Based on Covista's
analysis of future undiscounted cash flow, which are in excess of the carrying value of its long-lived
assets, there does not appear to be an impairment as of October 31, 2002 .



On July 2, 2001, Covista received a loan from Henry G. Luken III, Its Chairman of the Board and principal
shareholder, in the amount of $4,000,000 . This loan will be converted to equity upon shareholder
approval which approval is expected to be provided at Covista's Annual Shareholder meeting planned to
be held December 19, 2002.

The proceeds of the loan were used to purchase a 10-year commitment for approximately 2.8 billion DS-0
channel miles of telecommunications network capacity from an unaffiliated party. The unaffiliated party
has filed for Chapter 11 reorganization; however, as of the date of this report, Is continuing to perform
under the agreement, and therefore, management does not believe that this asset is impaired . However,
management has been unable to determine if this carrier's bankruptcy will impact the carrier's ability to
fulfill its' obligation to Covista under the prepaid network capacity agreement .

As of October 31, 2002, Covista has used 63 million DS-0 channel miles of telecommunications network
capacity against the 2.8 billion total prepaid network capacity, of which $400,000 has been classified as a
current asset and based on anticipated usage in the next 12 months . The remainder of the prepaid
capacity amount of approximately $ 3,200,000 in included in other assets .

Goodwill

Goodwill consists of the excess purchase price over the fair value of Identifiable net assets of acquired
businesses. Goodwill added subsequent to January 1, 2002 is not being amortized in accordance with
SFAS142. The carrying value of goodwill is evaluated for impairment on an annual basis . Management
also reviews goodwill for Impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of goodwill may be Impaired. If it is determined that an impairment in value has
occurred, goodwill will be written down to the present value of the expected future operating cash flows to
be generated by the respective reporting unit.

Vendor Disputes

In the normal course of business, Covista files disputes with its service providers . Covista's accounting
policy is to record the invoiced amount to cost of sales, which may include disputed amounts. When the
dispute is resolved and the credit is received, the amount is credited to cost of sales . Open disputes
included in cost of sales for the nine-month period and the three-month period ended October 31, 2002.
are approximately $3,116,000 and $3,007,000, respectively.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are carried at cost, less accumulated amortization, and are amortized on a double-
declining or straight-line basis over their expected lives based upon managements' expectation regarding
the timing of future realization .

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Market risk represents the risk of changes In value of a financial instrument, derivative or non-derivative,
caused by fluctuations in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. As Covista holds no
significant marketable securities at October 31, 2001, the exposure to Interest rate risk relating to
marketable securities no longer exists . Covista does not hold any derivatives related to its interest rate
exposure . Covista also maintains long-term debt at fixed rates . Due to the nature and amounts of
Covista's note payable, an immediate 10% change in interest rates would not
have a material effect in Covista's results of operations over the next fiscal year. Covista's exposure to
adverse changes in foreign exchange rates is also immaterial to the consolidated statements as a whole .
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ITEMS 1 - 5

	

Notapplicable

ITEM 6

	

Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K

COVISTA COMM UNICATIONS. INC. ANDSUBSIDIARIES

PART II -OTHER INFORMATION

No reports on Form 6-K were filed In the period
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1, A. John Leach, Jr., certify that;

1) I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q ofCovista;

2)

	

Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement ofa material factor
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light ofthe circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly
report;

3)

	

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in quarterly
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results ofoperations and cash
flows ofCovista as ot; and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4)

	

Covista's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for Covista are have;

a)

	

designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material .

	

information
relating to Covista, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;

b)

	

evaluated the effectiveness Covista's disclosure controls and procedures as ofa date with 90 days
prior to the filing date ofthis quarterly report (the "Evaluation Date") ; and

c)

	

presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the effectiveness ofthe disclosure controls
and procedures based on our evaluation as ofthe Evaluation Date ;

5)

	

Covista's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to Covista's
auditors and the audit committee ofCovista's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions) ;

a)

	

all significant deficiencies in the design or operation ofinternal controls which could adversely
affect Covista's ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial data, and I have
identified for Covista's auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls ; and

b) . any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in Covista's internal controls; and

6)

	

Covista's other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether there were significant
changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to
the date ofour most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: December 16, 2002

	

By: /s/ A. John Leach . Jr .
A . John Leach, Jr.
President and Chief
Executive Officer
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I, Thomas P. Gunning., certify that;

1)

	

1have reviewed this quarterly report on form 10-Q ofCovista;

2)

	

Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement ofa material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light ofthe circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly
report;

3)

	

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in quarterly
annual report, fairlypresent in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of Covista as ot; and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4)

	

Covista's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for Covista are have;

a)

	

designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material

	

information
relating to Covista, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared ;

b)

	

evaluated the effectiveness Covista's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date with 90 days
prior to the filing date of this quarterly report (the "Evaluation Date'j ; and

c)

	

presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the effectiveness ofthe disclosure controls
and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5)

	

Covista's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to Covista's
auditors and the audit committee of Covista's board ofdirectors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions) ;

a)

	

all significant deficiencies in the design or operation ofinternal controls which could adversely
affect Covista's ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial data, and I have
identified for Covista's auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls ; and

b)

	

anyfraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in Covista's internal controls ; and

6)

	

Covista's other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether there were significant
changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to
the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant .
deficiencies and material weaknesses .

Date : December 16, 2002

	

By: /s/ Thomas P. Gunning
Thomas P. Gunning,
Vice President, ChiefFinancial
Officer and Principal Accounting
Officer
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-0XLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report ofCovista Communications, Inc . on Form 10-Q for the period ending
October 31, 2002 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof(the "Reporfj, I, A.
John Leach, Jr., President and CEO ofCovista Communications, Inc ., certify, pursuantto 18 U.S.C . Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that;

1)

	

Thereport fully complies with the requirements ofsection 13 (a) or 15 (d) ofthe Securities Exchange Act
of1934;and

2)

	

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
result ofoperations ofCovista Communications, Inc.

Date : December 16, 2002

	

By: /s/ A . John Leach Jr .
A. John Leach, Jr.
President and Chief
Executive Officer



CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report ofCovista Communications, Inc . on Form 10-Q for the period ending
October 31, 2002 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the `Report'j, T,
Thomas P . Gunning, CFO ofCovista Communications, Inc ., certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of2002, that;

3)

	

Thereport fully complies with the requirements ofsection 13 (a) or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934; and

4)

	

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
result ofoperations of Covista Communications, Inc.

Date : December 16, 2002

	

By: /s/ Thomas P. Gunning
Thomas P . Gunning,
Vice President, ChiefFinancial
Officer and Principal Accounting
Officer



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Covista has duly caused this .report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized .

COVISTA COMMUNICATIONS. INC.
(Registrant)

Date : December 16, 2002

	

By:

	

/s/ A. John Leach
A. John Leach
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: December 16 . ' 2002

	

By.

	

Js/ Thomas P. Gunning
Thomas P. Gunning,
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Principal Accounting Officer
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